
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fleet Maintenance Bill Lackey


Approval of staff's recommendation to declare one Fire Apparatus as unserviceable and to sell the asset utilizing the GovDeals internet 
web site, and for all proceeds to be returned to the Fire "Vehicle Replacement" fund.


Unit #93241, A Fire Services 1990 E-One Hush "Reserve" Pumper developed an internal coolant leak in the engine.  Inspection revealed 
that the cylinder liners were leaking.  With over 100,000 miles on this unit, the best course of action would be to install a remanufactured 
engine at a cost of approximately $18,000.00.   
 
Based on the age and condition of this truck and considering this unit is one of three reserve pumpers, the decision was made to reduce 
the number of reserve units by one down to two and to not repair this unit.  Therefore, it is staff's recommendation that this unit be 
declared as unserviceable and to dispose of it utilizing the GovDeals web site.


Approve staff's recommendation to declare one Fire Apparatus as unserviceable and to sell the asset utilizing the GovDeals internet web 
site, and for all proceeds to be returned to the Fire "Vehicle Replacement" fund.


Not Applicable.  All proceeds for the sale of the Fire Apparatus will be returned to the Fire "Vehicle Replacement" fund.


No


No No


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners
December 12, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of Appreciation of Coweta County Chairman Bob Blackburn’s
Leadership.


2. Recognition of Ms. Hannah Newton of McIntosh High School for County
Pitcher of the Year.


3. Recognition of Ms. Kimberly Perkins of Whitewater High School for County
Batter of the Year.


4. Recognition of the Fayette County 2013 All-County Volleyball Team.


5. Recognition of Inman and Oak Grove Elementary Schools for being among
the 78 highest performing Title I Schools in the State of Georgia.


6. Recognition of Division Chief and Emergency Management Director Pete
Nelms of Fayette County’s Public Safety Division for his work in meeting
the incentive standards outlined in the Georgia Emergency Management
Agency-Homeland Security Federal-State-Local Disaster Match Policy.


7. Shop Fayette County for the Holidays.


8. Recognition and rewarding of the County Department who won Fayette
County’s Annual Door Decorating Contest.


9. Proclamation honoring Fayette County couples who are celebrating their
milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


PUBLIC HEARING:


10. Consideration of Petition No. 1231-13, 92 Oaks, LLC., Benjamin L. Autrey,
Owner, and Joseph L. Robinson, Agent, request to rezone property from
EST Estate Residential District and A-R Agriculture-Residential to A-R
Agriculture-Residential to develop six (6) residential lots and of RDP-011-
13 to revise the Development Plan for Rezoning Petition 1158-05.


 
PUBLIC COMMENT:
CONSENT AGENDA:


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
December 12, 2013
Page Number 2


11. Approval of the County Clerk’s request to adopt the 2014 County Commission Meeting Schedule.


12. Approval to register with the Commodities Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) and receive an Interim
Compliance Identifier (CICI); execute the proposed Credit Support Annex; execute the proposed Bilateral
Dodd-Frank (DF) Agreement and adopt the model resolution to conform to the provisions of the Dodd-Frank
Act.


13. Approval of staff’s recommendation to declare one Fire Apparatus as unserviceable and to sell the asset
utilizing the GovDeals internet website, and for all proceeds to be returned to the Fire “Vehicle
Replacement” fund.


14. Approval of the proposed 2014 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) project list for
unincorporated Fayette County and authorization for the Chairman to sign the LMIG Application and related
documents.


15. Approval of staff’s request to adopt the Georgia Department of Transportation’s Local State Route
Acceptance Resolution and Contract for Maintenance of Highways Numbered 3609M for the proposed
widening of State Route 54 (GDOT PI No. 721440).


16. Approval of staff’s recommendation to increase the NTE (not-to-exceed) award an additional $50,000 for an
aggregate amount not to exceed $200,000.00.


17. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend annual bid #861 for course aggregate with Hanson’s
Aggregates of Tyrone as the source for virgin aggregate and with Stephens Rock & Dirt, Inc., in an
aggregate amount not to exceed $270,672.00, for the purchase of recycled material for calendar year 2014.


18. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend annual Bid # 872 to E.R. Snell Contracting of Tyrone, in an
amount not to exceed $1,598,736.00, for the purchase of asphalt for the 2014 calendar year.


19. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award annual bid #895 to Con South, Inc. as the primary vendor and
to Faultless Business Center as the secondary vendor, in an amount not to exceed $280,916.00.00, for
dump truck services for calendar year 2014.


20. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessor’s Office.


21. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to donate a $900.00 water meter to the Veteran’s
Memorial at Patriots Park on behalf of all Veterans, conditioned upon the City of Fayetteville or the
responsible party signing a service agreement to pay the ongoing monthly bills.


22. Approval of the November 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:







Agenda
December 12, 2013
Page Number 3


23. Approval of District Attorney request to have certain employees reclassified from state employees to
employees of Fayette County; and County Attorney with the District Attorney to draft an IGA
(Intergovernmental Agreement) outlining the terms; and authorization for the County Manager to sign final
IGA related to this reclassification of employees.


24. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to appoint Pota Coston, who is currently serving as an alternate
member of the Fayette County Board of Ethics, to the vacancy on the Fayette County Board of Ethics for a
term beginning immediately and to expire on November 7, 2016.


25. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Mr. Thomas Mahon and Mr.
George “Larry” Blanks to the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals, and for each appointment to begin
on January 1, 2014 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


26. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Mr. Brian Haren and Mr. Bob
Simmons to the Fayette County Planning Commission, and for each appointment to begin on January 1,
2014 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


County Administration Steven Rapson


Approval of District Attorney request to have certain employees reclassified from state employees to employees of Fayette County; and 
County Attorney with the District Attorney to draft an IGA (Intergovernmental Agreement) outlining the terms; and authorization for the 
County Manager to sign final IGA related to this reclassification of employees.  


The Office of the District Attorney for the Griffin Judicial Circuit has employees who are currently state employees and are receiving 
income and benefits from the State of Georgia. The District Attorney desires to have these employees reclassified from state employees 
to employees of Fayette County. Retirement and health-care benefits are comparable to existing State benefits but are substantially less 
expensive warranting this reclassification. 
 
The County Employees will receive their pay through the Fayette County payroll and will likewise enjoy all benefits for which they are 
eligible which are made available to other county employees. The District Attorney agrees to reimburse Fayette County for all monies and 
benefits paid to the County Employees.  Such reimbursement shall occur contemporaneously with the County Employees receiving the 
monies and benefits from Fayette County. 
 
Fayette County contributes $324,480 to fund our share of the District Attorney Griffin Judicial Circuit; an IGA for these services will detail 
how this allocation would be reduced by the cost of these employees and may include it being eliminated and the District Attorney paying 
Fayette County if in excess.  


Approval of District Attorney request to have certain employees reclassified from state employees to employees of Fayette County; and 
County Attorney with the District Attorney to draft an IGA (Intergovernmental Agreement) outlining the terms; and authorization for the 
County Manager to sign final IGA related to this reclassification of employees.  


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


This is another example of intergovernmental cooperation between Fayette County and the District Attorney Office for the Griffin Judicial 
Circuit to provide services at a reduced cost to our taxpayers.


New BusinessThursday, December 12, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. 1231-13, 92 Oaks, LLC, Benjamin L. Autrey, Owner, and Joseph L. Robinson, Agent, request to rezone 


property from EST Estate Residential District and A-R Agriculture-Residential to A-R Agriculture-Residential to develop six (6) residential 


lots and of RDP-011-13 to revise the Development Plan for Rezoning Petition 1158-05. 


Staff recommends approval of both requests. 


 


The Planning Commission voted 5-0 to recommend approval of both requests. 


 


 


 


 


Approval of Petition No. 1231-13, 92 Oaks, LLC, Benjamin L. Autrey, Owner, and Joseph L. Robinson, Agent, request to rezone property 


from EST Estate Residential District and A-R Agriculture-Residential to A-R Agriculture-Residential to develop six (6) residential lots and 


of RDP-011-13 to revise the Development Plan for Rezoning Petition 1158-05. This property consists of 217.15 acres located in Land 


Lots 130, 140, 141, and 148 of the 4th District and fronts on State Route 92 South and Chapman Road.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Public HearingThursday, December 12, 2013





























































































		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1231-13 & RDP-011-13 Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1231-13 & RDP-011-13 Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of the Fayette County 2013 All-County Volleyball Team.


The Fayette County 2013 All-County Volleyball Team recognition is a list of players being recognized for their contribution to their teams' 


success this season. 


Among those to be recognized are:  Mollie Michel of McIntosh High School as Player of the Year 


Wendy Weaver of McIntosh High School as Volleyball Coach of the Year 


All-County Volleyball Team:  Abbi Schelkopf (McIntosh), Rhana Mitchell (McIntosh), Charlotte Hughes (Whitewater), Sydney Wilson 


(Sandy Creek), Diana Enriquez (Starrs Mill), Mollie Michel (McIntosh), Rheagan Mitchell (McIntosh), Alexis Broadwater (Sandy Creek), 


Kait Steele (Whitewater) and Kassandra Robert (McIntosh). 


All-County second team:  Dariah Powell (Sandy Creek), Laura Phillipp (Whitewater), Nikki Resler (Starrs Mill), Miara Bryant (McIntosh), 


Abbie Duke (McIntosh), Kyndall Wilson (Sandy Creek), Rachel Moore (Starrs Mill), Dana Whitis (Starrs Mill), Julianna Bright (Sandy 


Creek), Eden Aanstoos (Starrs Mill). 


Honorable Mentioned All-County team:  Autumn Martin (Sandy Creek), Olivia Krug (Starrs Mill), Sam Wagner (Fayette County High 


School), Casey Grant (Our Lady of Mercy), Alyssa Sack (Starrs Mill), Taylor Dunham (Fayette Cuonty High), Rachel Barfield (Our Lady of 


Mercy), Maha Rasian (Sandy Creek), Cate Patterson (Starrs Mill), Angelica Webb (Whitewater).


Recognition of the Fayette County 2013 All-County Volleyball Team.


Not Applicable.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionDecember 12, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's request to adopt the Georgia Department of Transportation's Local State Route Acceptance Resolution and Contract 


for Maintenance of Highways Numbered 3609M for the proposed widening of State Route 54 (GDOT PI No. 721440).


As part of the Plan Development Process, the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) has provided both Clayton and Fayette 


Counties with Resolutions and Contracts specifying the operations and maintenance requirements of each jurisdiction for roadways 


within the State Route 54 road widening project's limit of construction.   


 


Specifically for Fayette County, the portion of Banks Road from Deer Forest Trail to State Route 54 will be designated as temporary State 


Route 1260.  During construction, GDOT will make improvements to this section of roadway and, upon completion of the project, it will 


revert back to Fayette County for future operations and maintenance.   


 


These are standard documents by GDOT and there is no direct cost to Fayette County.   


Approval of staff's request to adopt the Georgia Department of Transportation's Local State Route Acceptance Resolution and Contract 


for Maintenance of Highways Numbered 3609M for the proposed widening of State Route 54 (GDOT PI No. 721440).


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 


One Georgia Center, 600 West Peachtree Street, NW 
Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
Telephone: (404) 631-1000 


Keith Golden, P.E., Commissioner 


November 5,2013 


The Honorable Steve Brown, Chairman 
Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Fayetteville, GA 30214-2198 


Re: Project No. STPOO-O 164-0 1(029) Fayette and Clayton 
P.I. No. 721440 


Dear Chairman Brown: 


Enclosed are two copies of the Local State Route Acceptance Resolution for the proposed State Route 54 
widening. Please sign the resolutions and return the copy to us and retain the other one for your file. Also 
enclosed are three copies of the Contract for Maintenance of Highways Numbered 3609M. Please sign all 
copies and return them as well. 


If there are any questions, please contact Jack Reed of this office at 706-646-6982. 


Yours very truly, 


Thomas B. Howell, P.E. 
District Engineer 


~ 


By: r...... ack Reed 
District Planning and Programming Engineer 


TBH:AJR:cb 


Enclosures 







3609 
66(1546R) 


LOCAL STATE ROUTE ACCEPTANCE RESOLUTION 


GEORGIA, Fayette and Clayton Counties 


WHEREAS, the Conunissioners of Fayette and Clayton Counties (hereinafter called the 


Counties) are being notified that the Georgia Department of Transportation (hereinafter 


called the Department) intends to widen and realign State Route 54 in said Counties as 


described in Order 3609 and as shown on the sketch maps attached thereto; and 


WHEREAS, upon execution of forthcoming Order 3609, the Clayton County shall accept 


title and ownership of the property on the old section of State Route 54 being removed from 


the State System; and 


WHEREAS, the Department shall continue to retain jurisdictional authority and maintenance 


responsibility on the section of State Route 54 being removed from the State System until the 


improvements referenced in Order 3609 are completed; 


WHEREAS, the Counties will accept as appropriate for maintenance, ownership, utility 


accommodation, and as part of their local road systems temporary State Routes 1260, 


1260TA and 1260TB, and the old section of State Route 54 which will remain open as a 


public road when removed from the State Highway System upon completion of the work 


required by the Department as stated above; and 


WHEREAS, when removed from the State Highway System, temporary State Routes 1260, 


1260TA and 1260TB shall be returned to the Counties as appropriate, and the Counties shall 


by operation of law have jurisdictional as well as maintenance and operational authority over 


said State Routes; and 


WHEREAS, upon completion of the road improvements described in said Order, the 


Counties shall as appropriate by operation of law have jurisdictional as well as maintenance 


and operational authority over temporary State Routes 1260, 1260TA and 1260TB and the old 


section of State Route 54 that will remain open as a public road; 


FOR FAYETTE COUNTY TO RETAIN FOR THEIR FILES 







-------------- --------------


3609 
66(1546R) 


WHEREAS, the advancement of this project to construction IS contingent upon the 


execution of this Resolution. 


NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the Counties will execute this Resolution 


and that a signed copy of this Resolution be furnished to the Department. 


This day of , 2013 


jZ-
--------f7'"--ff--------- Attest: _ 
Chairman, a 'ette County Clerk, Fayette County 
Board of Commissioners 


This day of , 2013 


Attest:
 
Chairman, Clayton County Clerk, Clayton County
 
Board of Commissioners
 







360!
 


I 85th Pk'!'Y 


:Ide Pkwy 


Ie Trail Rd 


1-1 tcliff Ct -------

J 


J 







elte Banks Rd 


Sugarland Trl 


Fayette Co. 


136091
 
INSET 1 


INSET 2 


GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
 
Offtce ofTransportation Data
 


Proposed Revi$ions to the State Higt'rN8Y System
 
m
 


CLAYTON AND FAYETTE COUNTIES 
SUI. ROtIlaI"'. 1200. \260TA, 12EOTB. 1260fC ~f'd 


Co<.IrcyRo.cl' 501. 1.n6.la 


_ AOOlTION •••• PROFOSEO .... OOITION 


_ REMOVAL X Ol>lilC'r3lion 


INSET 3 


ADD SR 54 
AS SR • 1260TC 


(TO BE DES\GNAF~~STATE ROUTE 
UNTIL OPENED 
SERViCE) 







66(1546R)
 


CONTRACT FOR MAINTENANCE OF HIGHWAYS
 


NUMBERED 3609M
 


THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this day of 


-'-'- , 2013, by and between the Department of Transportation of Georgia 


(hereinafter called the Department) and the Chairmen and Board of Commissioners of Fayette 


and Clayton Counties (hereinafter called the Counties), to be effective on the day of 


________, 2013. 


WITNESSETH: 


WHEREAS, the Counties are being notified that sections of Banks Road (Fayette County 


Road 38), Thomas Road (Clayton County Road 501) and Mundys Mill Road (Clayton County 


Road 1336) will be added as State Routes 1260, 1260TA and 1260TB while designated as part of 


the State Highway System; and 


WHEREAS, the Department and the Counties agree that it will be advantageous to all parties 


hereto, as well as to the traveling public, for the Counties to continue to accommodate utilities 


and to fully maintain the aforementioned County Roads (State Routes 1260, 1260TA and 


1260TB) while these sections of roadway are on the State Highway System; and 


WHEREAS, the parties hereto are acting under the authority of the Constitution of the State 


of Georgia, Article IX, Section III, paragraph I (1983). 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar by each of the parties to the 


other in hand paid, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, and the mutual covenants herein 


contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 


Continued ... 







3609M 
66(1546R) 


PAGE TWO OF THREE
 


(1)	 The Counties will continue to fully maintain, as may be required by law for county roads, 


within their respective jurisdictions and within the limits of rights-of-way the sections of 


Fayette County Road 38, Clayton County Roads 501 and 1336 while designated as State 


Routes 1260, l260TA and l260TB. Said sections of roadway are shown on the attached 


sketch map marked "Exhibit A" which by reference is incorporated herein and made a pal1 


of this instrument for the purpose of describing the roads to be maintained under this 


agreement. 


(2)	 To the extent authorized by law, the Counties agree to indemnify and hold harmless the 


Department from all suits, claims for damages, or causes of action brought on account of 


the County's failure to perform those maintenance activities required by this contract as 


associated with the aforementioned State Routes. 


(3)	 The Department agrees that these sections of roadway will remain on the State Highway 


System and designated as State Routes 1260, l260TA and l260TB until the improvements 


are completed. The Department shall provide written notice to the Counties as to the date 


that State Routes 1260, l260TA and l260TB are removed from the State Highway System 


and the date of final termination of this contract. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been and is executed by the Commissioner on 


behalf of the Department and on behalf of Fayette and Clayton Counties by their Chairman, he 


being duly authorized to do so by the Board of Commissioners of said Counties. 


Continued ... 







-------------


------------


3609M 
66(l546R) 


PAGE THREE OF THREE 


This on the date and year below written 


Executed on behalf of the Department 


this day of , 2013. 


By: 
Commissioner, Georgia 
Department of Transportation 


ATTEST: 


Treasurer, Georgia 
Department of Transportation 


Executed on behalf of Fayette County 


this day of , 2013. 


~. jj{)-:? 
By: ~( ~---


Chairman: Fayette County 
Board of Commissioners 


ATTEST: 


Clerk, Fayette County 


This on the date and year below written 


Executed on behalf of the Department 


this day of , 2013. 


By: _ 
Commissioner, Georgia 
Department of Transportation 


ATTEST:
 


Treasurer, Georgia 
Department of Transportation 


Executed on behalf of Clayton County 


this day of , 2013. 


By: 
Chairman, Clayton County 


Board of Commissioners 


ATTEST:
 


Clerk, Clayton County 







I3609M 
CLAYTON 


TYLER TERRACE 


Millers Oak Way 


Devilla Tree 


(1J 
<I) ~ 


U;C1l 
C1l"0 


~ 
Banks Rd Q. Banks Rd Banks Rd Q; 


u
e 
C
o 


E 


c
o 


C1l 
.>< o
E(/) Sugarland Trl sugarland T[I Sugarland Trl 


a
c
o 


o 


E 
C1l 


..>< 


E 
(/) Springhouse Ln Springhouse Ln 


"EXHIBIT A"
 







3609M 
66(l546R) 


AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION 


GEORGIA, Fayette and Clayton Counties 


WHEREAS, Fayette and Clayton Counties (hereinafter called the Counties) were notified that 


sections of Banks Road (Fayette County Road 38), Thomas Road (Clayton County Road 50 I) 


and Mundys Mill Road (Clayton County Road 1336) are being added to the State Highway 


System as State Routes 1260, 1260TA and 1260TB by an Order of the Commissioner of the 


Georgia Department of Transportation (hereinafter called the Department) as shown on the 


attached sketch map 3609M; and 


WHEREAS, the Counties and the Department agree that it is in the public interest and in the 


interest of all parties hereto, for the Counties and the Department to enter into a contract 


numbered 3609M wherein the Counties will agree to fully maintain the aforementioned 


roadways while designated as State Routes 1260, 1260TA and 1260TB. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of said Counties 


that their Chairman is hereby authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Counties; and 


that a copy of this Resolution be furnished to the Department. 


This on the date and year below written 


Executed on behalf of the County this .L--day of...o..- , 2013 


/-
By: -'-"-__~L_ff_--------Attest:=-------------~ Clerk, Fayette County
 Chairma~~y 


Board of Commissioners 


This on the date and year below written 


Executed on behalf of the County this day of , 2013 


By: Attest: 
-----~------- ------------ 
Chairman, Clayton County Clerk, Clayton County 
Board of Commissioners 





		Public Works SR 54 GDOT Resolution & Contract Agenda Request File

		Public Works SR 54 GDOT Resolution & Contract Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Approval of the County Clerk's request to adopt the 2014 County Commission Meeting Schedule.


Each year, the Board of Commissioners formally adopts their meeting schedule that can be distributed to the citizens, the media, and to 


staff.  This meeting schedule will also be added to the County's website for reference. 


 


Typically, the months of November and December will have only one meeting per month as the second Thursday of each month falls on 


a nationally recognized holiday.


Approval of the County Clerk's request to adopt the 2014 County Commission Meeting Schedule.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







 2014 COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE 


THIS SCHEDULE REFLECTS THE CURRENT MEETING FORMAT FOR MEETINGS AS FOLLOWS: 


 


REGULAR MEETINGS ON THE 2ND AND 4TH THURSDAY OF EACH MONTH AT 7 P.M.: Agendas for these “Regular” meetings can include any subject but 
in particular, matters of interest to the general public such as public hearings on rezoning petitions, budget discussions, and requests from County 
Departments that require action by the Board, etc. Thursday meetings include a time for “Public Comment” when attendees can speak to the 
Board on any subject not on the meeting’s agenda.  Attendees will be permitted to speak on Agenda items as they are addressed in the meeting. 
Agendas are prepared and published in advance. All sessions are open to the public and are attended by members of the Press. 
 
Canceled meetings, special called meetings and special topic workshops are announced in accordance with requirements of State law. *PLEASE 


NOTE THAT DURING THE MONTHS OF NOVEMBER AND DECEMBER, THE TYPICAL MEETING DATES ARE OFTEN ALTERED TO ACCOMMODATE 


HOLIDAY SCHEDULES. 


 
 
DATE 


 
TIME 


 
NOTES 


 
 


 
DATE 


 
TIME 


 
NOTES 


 
Thursday, January 9 


7:00 p.m. Organizational Meeting  
 


Thursday, July 10 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, January 23 7:00 p.m.  
 


 
 


Thursday, July 24 7:00 p.m.  


 
Thursday, February 13 


 
7:00 p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, August 14 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, February 27  
7:00 p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, August 28 7:00 p.m.  


 
Thursday, March 13 


 
7:00 p.m. 


 
 


 
 


Thursday, September 11 7:00 p.m. Patriot Day Observance 


 
Thursday, March 27 


 
7:00 p.m. 


 
  


 
 


Thursday, September 25 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, April 10 7:00 p.m.  
 


 
 


Thursday, October 9 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, April 24 7:00 p.m.  
 


 
 


Thursday, October 23 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, May 8 7:00 p.m.   
 


Thursday, November 13 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, May 22 7:00 p.m.   
 


Thursday, November 27 No Meeting Thanksgiving Day 


Thursday, June 12 7:00 p.m.  
 


 
 


Thursday, December 11 7:00 p.m.  


Thursday, June 26 7:00 p.m.  
 


 
 


Thursday, December 25 No Meeting Christmas Day 


 





		Commissioners- 2014 BOC Meeting Schedule Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- 2014 BOC Meeting Schedule Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of the proposed 2014 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) project list for unincorporated Fayette County and 


authorization for the Chairman to sign the LMIG Application and related documents.  


The Georgia Department of Transportation's LMIG program is designed to help local governments make needed improvements to local 


and state roads.  Fayette County's LMIG formula amount for CY 2014 is $591,886.24. 


 


In accordance with the LMIG program guidelines, County staff has prepared a project list in excess of this amount.  The focus of the 2014 


list is on roadway maintenance, including resurfacing, striping, installation of raised pavement markers, crack sealing, slurry seal, and 


stone (for gravel roads).  A minimum 30 percent local match of the LMIG funding is required for all projects.   


 


Fayette County's LMIG application and project list must be submitted to GDOT by January 1, 2014.  A check for the grant, up to 


$591,886.24 will then be sent to Fayette County.


Approval of the 2014 Local Maintenance & Improvement Grant (LMIG) project list for unincorporated Fayette County and authorization for 


the Chairman to sign the LMIG Application and related documents.  


A 30% local match is required for LMIG funds.  For the proposed maintenance activities, local match funds equal to $177,565.88 will be 


required in the Road Department's FY 2015 budget.  


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







No. Road Name Length Termini Type of Work Total LMIG Local (30%) Schedule


1 Lee's Mill Road 2.77 SR 92 to Sandy Creek Road
Asphalt Resurfacing, 
Striping & RPM's


$238,135.83 $183,181.00 $54,954.30 CY 2014


2 Old Road 0.53 Kenwood Road to SR 85
Asphalt Resurfacing, 
Striping & RPM's


$42,364.56 $32,589.00 $9,776.70 CY 2014


3 Lester Road 1.21
City Limits to Ebenzer Church 
Road


Asphalt Resurfacing, 
Striping & RPM's


$93,928.00 $72,252.23 $21,675.67 CY 2014


4 Hilo Road 2.04 Inman Road to SR 92
Asphalt Resurfacing, 
Striping & RPM's


$176,326.26 $135,635.45 $40,690.64 CY 2014


5 Eastin Road 1.51
Graves Road to Sandy Creek 
Road


Asphalt Resurfacing, 
Striping & RPM's


$128,005.44 $98,465.62 $29,539.69 CY 2014


6 Rising Star Road 3.80 Brooks Woolsey Road to SR 85
Thermoplastic Striping and 
RPM's


$48,450.00 $37,269.19 $11,180.76 CY 2014


7 Goza Road 4.60 SR 85 to SR 92
Thermoplastic Striping and 
RPM's


$58,650.00 $45,115.34 $13,534.60 CY 2015


8 Tyrone Road 4.50 SR 54 to City Limits
Thermoplastic Striping and 
RPM's


$57,375.00 $44,134.57 $13,240.37 CY 2014


9 Peters Road 0.60 Fayette County Line to SR 92
Thermoplastic Striping and 
RPM's


$7,650.00 $5,884.61 $1,765.38 CY 2014


10 Graves Road 1.21
Gingercake Road to Eastin 
Road


Asphalt Resurfacing or 
slurry seal


$103,580.17 $79,676.98 $23,903.09 TBD


11 Old Norton Road 0.99 SR 54 to Fayetteville City Limits Asphalt Resurfacing $77,529.23 $59,637.81 $17,891.34 TBD


12 Dixon Circle 0.73 S. Jeff Davis Drive to Dead End
Asphalt Resurfacing or 
slurry seal


$49,227.10 $37,866.96 $11,360.09 TBD


18 Mackenzie Lane 0.27 Eastin Road to Dead End
Asphalt Resurfacing or 
slurry seal


$42,693.68 $32,841.26 $9,852.38 TBD


13 Watershed Way 1.25 Antioch Road to Dead End
Asphalt Resurfacing or 
slurry seal


$51,976.27 $39,981.71 $11,994.51 TBD


14
McDonough 
Road


2.20 SR 85 to Fayette County Line
Thermoplastic Striping and 
RPM's


$28,050.00 $21,576.90 $6,473.07 TBD


15 Hardy Road 1.60 Mask Road to McIntosh Road
Thermoplastic Striping and 
RPM's


$20,400.00 $15,692.29 $4,707.69 TBD


16 County Wide 2.00 County Wide Replace missing RPM's $21,200.00 $16,307.68 $4,892.30 TBD


17 County Wide 10.00 County Wide
Crack Sealing various 
County Roads


$100,000.00 $76,923.00 $23,076.90 TBD


18 County Wide 5.00 County Wide Add #57 Stone to dirt roads $2,000.00 $1,538.46 $461.54 TBD


Totals:  $1,347,541.55 $1,036,570.07 $310,971.02


FAYETTE COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT's 2014 LMIG REQUEST LIST


$591,886.24 available from the State







Revised 10/30/13 


GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL
 
MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG)
 


APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014
 
TYPE OR PRINT LEGIBLY. ALL SECTIONS MUST BE COMPLETED. 


All Applications must be submitted by the Local Governing Official to the Georgia Department of Transportation. Office of 
Local Grants. 600 West Peachtree Street NW. Atlanta. Georgia 30308. 


. LOCAL G0vERNMEN1 tNFOIWATION . -~:_;~,: ~-,--; -. 


Date of Application: _"'-'11...,//-'2"--=-"-r/.......13=- _
 


Name oflocal government: FAyette County 
Address: //5 I11c~ono"gIi Rotur; ra.ye.tI~vI1le, GA 30Zf({ 
Contact Person and Title: Pit if /11(:( /loll . tJi're clot' ot "Pu. U/c Works 
Coo~ct~noo·sP~MN~~: 1~~~o~.=i~z~o~.~,~o=o~,~ _ 
Contact Person's Fax Number: 110' tJ'I- D'i11
 
Contact Person's Email: f/Yla/lol1@ f'o.yeHecot<nt>/§~....:C)~v,-- _
 


Is the Priority List attached? yes 


LOCAL GOvERNMENTAFFIDAVrrANtfcERTIFICATION 


I, PAil !YlIA.UOh, (Name). the /Jire.cfor at PUblic W(}(ks'(Title). on behalf of 
Fo..yetfe COt<tltv (local government). who being duly sworn do swear that the information given 


herein is true to the best of his/her knowledge and belief. Local Government swears and certifies that it has read and 
understands the LMIG General Guidelines and Rules and that it has complied with and will comply with the same. 


Local government further swears and certifies that it has read and understands the regulations for the Georgia Planning 
Act of 1989 (O.C.G.A. § 45-12-200, et seq.). Service Delivery Strategy Act (O.C.GA. § 36-70-20, et seq.), and the Local 
Government Budgets and Audits Act (O.C.G.A. 36-81-7 et seq.) and will comply in full with said provisions. Local 
government further swears and certifies that the roads or sections of roads described and shown on the local government's 
Project List are dedicated public roads and are part of the Public Road System in said county/city. Local government 
further swears and certifies that it complied with federal and/or state environmental protection laws and at the completion 
of the project(s), it met the match requirements as stated in the Transportation Investment ACT (TIA). 


Further. the local government shall be responsible for any claim, damage. loss or expense that is attributable to negligent 
acts. errors, or omissions related to the designs. drawings, speCifications, work and other services furnished by or on 
behalf ofthe local government pursuant to this Application ("Loss"). To the extent provided by law. the local government 
further agrees to hold harmless and indemnity the DEPARTMENT and the State of Georgia from all suits or claims that 
may arise from said Loss. 


Page 1 







Revised 10/30/13 


GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL
 
MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG)
 


APPLICATION FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014
 


. LOCAL GOVERNMENT AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATION.
 


If the local government fails to comply with these General Guidelines and Rules, or fails to comply with its Application and 
Certification, or fails to cooperate with the auditor(s) or fails to maintain and retain sufficient records, the DEPARTMENT may, at 
its discretion, prohibit the local government from participating in the LMIG program in the future and may pursue any available 
legal remedy to obtain reimbursement of the LMIG funds. Furthermore, if in the estimation ofthe DEPARTMENT, a roadway or 
bridge shows evidence of failure(s) due to poor workmanship, the use of substandard materials, or the failure to follow the 
required design and construction guidelines as set forth herein, the Department may pursue any available legal remedy to obtain 
reimbursement of the allocated LMIG funds or prohibit local government from participating in the LMIG program until such time 
as corrections are made to address the deficiencies or reimbursement is made. 


Local Government: 
E-VerifY Number 


____________(Signature) Sworn to and subscribed before me, 


___,-- -:- (Print) This __ day of -,,20_.
 
Mayor! Commission Chairperson In the presence of:
 
___________ (Date)
 


NOTARY PUBLIC
 
SEAL:
 


My Commission Expires:
 


.. FORGDOTUSEONLY .... : I I 
The local government's Application is hereby granted and the amount allocated to the local government is
 
________,. Such allocation must be spent on any or all of those projects listed in the Project List.
 


This day of "20_. 


Terry L Gable
 
Local Grants Administrator
 


Page 2 







      Revised: August 5, 2013 


        


LOCAL MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG) PROGRAM                               


GENERAL GUIDELINES AND RULES 


 


 


1. The following activities/projects will be eligible for LMIG funds:   


a. Preliminary engineering (including engineering work for  R/W plans and Utility plans) 


b. Construction supervision & inspection 


c. Utility Adjustments or replacement 


d. Patching, leveling and resurfacing a paved roadway   


e. Grading, Drainage, Base and Paving existing or new roads 


f. Replacing storm drain pipe or culverts 


g. Intersection improvements 


h. Turn lanes 


i. Bridge repair or replacement 


j. Sidewalk adjacent (within right of way) to a public roadway or street 


k. Roadway Signs, striping, guardrail installation 


l. Signal installation or improvement 


m. Aggregate Surface Course for dirt road maintenance 


 


2. The following activities/projects will not be eligible for LMIG funds:   


a. Right of Way acquisition for a county or city road 


b. Street Lighting 


c. Beautification & Streetscapes 


d. Walking trails and tracks 


e. Landscaping  


f. Administrative Services   


 


***Georgia Code does not allow state motor fuel tax dollars to be used for the acquisition of right of way on 


a county or city road system.  However, locally purchased R/W will be eligible to go toward the 10% or 30% 


match. 


 


 


3. The amount of your allocation is based on the total centerline road miles for your local road system and the total 


population of your county or city as compared with the total statewide centerline road miles and total statewide 


population.   To ensure the Department uses current mileage numbers for your county or city it is critical that you 


keep our Office of Data Transportation updated on any revisions or changes to your local road system.  We have sent 


several letters to local governments over the last few years concerning mileage information.  Please contact our 


Office of Transportation Data at 770-986-1431 if you have any questions. 


 


4. If a local government does not submit a project list, they will not receive local assistance for that program year.  The 


LMIG funds will be used for emergencies, economic development or school access projects elsewhere in the state, on 


an as needed basis, as determined by the Commissioner. 


 


5. You will be responsible for a 10% or 30% match to obtain your LMIG funds as stated in the Transportation 


Investment Act (TIA).   The counties and cities in the River Valley Region, Central Savannah River Area, and the 


Heart of Georgia Region will be at the 10% match.  All other remaining counties and cities will be at the 30% match.  


For example, if your formula allocation is $100,000 and your county’s match requirement is 30%, then your project 


list must have a total in value dollar amount over $130,000.  If the project list you submit does not equal or exceed 


your Formula Amount plus your required match, you will be asked to resubmit your application.   


 


 







2 


 


 


6. The LMIG funds can be escrowed by the local government for a maximum of three (3) fiscal years if approved by 


GDOT.  


 


7. LMIG Projects that include preliminary engineering, right of way and construction phases shall be completed as soon 


as possible but substantially complete within three (3) years from the date of receiving the LMIG Grant.  We expect 


resurfacing and maintenance type projects to be completed within a year from the date of receiving the LMIG Grant.   


 


8. If needed a local government can make a request to the Department for a time extension on the project completion 


date and/or a time extension on the escrowed funds. The county or city will need to write the Department a letter 


describing the project and giving justification for the request.  The Department will review the request and approve 


or reject it based on the justification and history of previous requests.   


 


9. All preconstruction activities, advertisements, lettings, and quality control of work and materials will be the 


responsibility of the local government.  It’s important to remember that all of these expenses are eligible for LMIG 


funds and the match requirements. 


 


10. All work to be paid with LMIG funds cannot begin until the Department has issued the Grant check to the Local 


Government. 


 


11. Wherever practical and feasible, GDOT encourages the use of  locally owned, disadvantaged business enterprises, 


and veteran owned businesses in any project that is funded in whole or in part with LMIG funds. GDOT ask each 


Local Government to report, at the end of the year, any DBE usage on LMIG contracts to your local District State 


Aid Coordinator.  This measure will be used to assist GDOT in meeting the 2012-2015 Race Neutral DBE Goals.  If 


you have any questions concerning firms that are DBE Certified, please visit our web page at www.dot.ga.gov.   


 


12. The local government shall accomplish all of the design activities in connection with the projects identified on the 


project list.  Design activities must be accomplished in accordance with the applicable guidelines of the American 


Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (“AASHTO”) and the Manual on Uniform Traffic 


Control Devices (MUTCD). 


 


13. In addition, all projects on the state route system shall be done in accordance with DEPARTMENT design policies & 


guidelines where applicable.  The local government shall also be responsible for submitting permit applications to 


the District Traffic Operations Office or the District Utilities Office if the project is on a state route. 


 


14. The Department recommends that any design plans for bridge replacement and structural repairs be reviewed by the 


State Bridge Engineer prior to construction.  If not, final bridge plans and all supporting documents must be 


submitted to the Local Grants Office in Atlanta.  Final plans will then be forwarded to the Bridge Maintenance 


Office for use in their biennial inspections.  Request for plan review should be coordinated with the Office of 


Bridge Design located at One Georgia Center, 600 West Peachtree Street, Atlanta, Georgia 30308.  Phone (404) 631-


1985. 


 


15. All projects identified on the project list shall be constructed in accordance with the DEPARTMENT's Standard 


Specifications Construction of Transportation Systems (current edition), Supplemental Specifications (current 


edition) and Special Provisions.   


 


16. Authorized representatives of the DEPARTMENT may at all reasonable times review and inspect the work, 


activities and data collected in connection with the projects identified on the project list, including but not limited 


to, all reports, drawings, studies, specifications, estimates, maps and computations prepared by or for the local 


government.  
 







3 


 


17. All projects on the project list shall be subject to a construction field audit at any time. The audit may be performed 


by employees of the DEPARTMENT or by an independent auditor on behalf of the DEPARTMENT.   Local 


governments shall make a good faith effort to cooperate with GDOT employees or auditor(s).  
 


18. The Local Government shall submit a status letter each year, showing the status of the work and a breakdown of all 


funds spent on the LMIG project(s) that year (including rolled projects).  This documentation must be received and 


approved before subsequent LMIG Grants can be approved.   


 


19. Upon completion of the LMIG project, the Local Government must submit a letter to the Local Grants Office in 


Atlanta stating that the project is complete and ready for final closeout.   


 


20. All inspections, sampling and testing of the work will be the responsibility of the local government.  Documentation 


of this work will not have to be submitted to the Department for review. 


 


21. For any questions about the LMIG process, please contact the Local Grants Office in Atlanta at 404-347-0240 or call 


your local District Local Grants Coordinator at the following locations: 


 


 


District Office Local Grants Coordinator Contact Number 


District One – Gainesville Chris Dills 770-718-5028 


District Two – Tennille Barry Wood 478-552-4604 


District Three – Thomaston Dane Bishop 706-646-6906 


District Four – Tifton Jeff Bridges 229-386-3280 


District Five – Jesup Hayden Rozier 912-427-5711 


District Six – Cartersville Steve Sanders 678-721-5271 


District Seven – Chamblee Katie Mullins 770-986-1419 


 


 


 





		Public Works- 2014 LMIG Agenda Request File

		Public Works- 2014 LMIG Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation of Appreciation of Coweta County Chairman Bob Blackburn's Leadership.


Fayette County shares a very important border to its west with Coweta County.  Each county is intertwined as they plan and 


communicate with each other. 


 


Coweta County Chairman Bob Blackburn has served as Chairman for 2013, and he has worked to build strong ties with Fayette County.  


He serves as a model of cooperation, support, and hospitality with Fayette County, and he is a true friend to Fayette County. 


 


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners is pleased to proclaim its appreciation of Chairman Blackburn.


Proclamation of Appreciation of Coweta County Chairman Bob Blackburn's Leadership.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Chairman Blackburn's son, Matt, worked for Fayette County during the summer as an intern.  The relationship between Fayette County 


and Coweta County serves as an example of each county working towards mutual solutions for the betterment of all their citizens.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 12, 2013







 
 
 


PROCLAMATION 
 


Appreciation of Chairman Bob Blackburn’s Leadership 


 
 


WHEREAS,  Fayette County shares a very important border with neighboring Coweta 


County; and  


WHEREAS, The success of the two counties is intertwined with our ability to properly 


plan and communicate with one another; and 


WHEREAS, Robert “Bob” Blackburn has served as Chairman of Coweta County for 


2013; and 


WHEREAS, Chairman Blackburn worked diligently to build stronger ties with Fayette 


County; and 


WHEREAS, Chairman Blackburn has served as a model of cooperation, support and 


hospitality in his dealings with Fayette County;  


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
HEREBY DO PROCLAIM our heartfelt appreciation for the leadership and friendship 
that Chairman Bob Blackburn has displayed towards Fayette County during his 2013 
term, thanking him for taking the time to get to know each of us and creating a 
wonderful working relationship. 
 
 


So Proclaimed this 12th Day of December 2013 


 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 


 
      ________________________ 


    Steve Brown, Chairman  





		Commissioners- Commissioner Blackburn Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Commissioner Blackburn Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Department Steven Rapson


Approval of staff's recommendation to increase NTE (non-to-exceed) award an additional $50,000 for an aggregate amount not to 


exceed $200,000.00.


The annual hauling bid #860 contract provides on-call dump truck hauling services. These services are intended to be used only when 


additional services over and above the capabilities of the Road Department are needed. Typically, the materials to be hauled will be 


gravel, soil, or asphalt on various projects undertaken by the Road Department. 


 


Previous January 10, 2013 agenda item and supporting procurement is attached for further review.


Approval of staff's recommendation to increase NTE (non-to-exceed) award an additional $50,000 for an aggregate amount not to 


exceed $200,000.00.


Funds are budgeted annual in the Road Department's O&M budget in Account Number 10040220-522111 or in various CIP or SPLOST 


project accounts.


Yes Thursday, January 10, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Board of Commissioner's approved four related NTE (non-to-exceed) contracts at the January 10, 2013 meeting. Hauling, Stone, Tack 


and Milling. These NTE contracts were estimated and the only contract requiring an adjustment is the hauling contract.


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Department Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #860 to Con South, Inc. as the primary vendor and to Bulkhaulers, Inc., as the 


secondary vendor for dump truck hauling services, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $150,000.00, and authorization for the 


Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


The intention of annual bid #860 is to contract with vendors who are able to provide on-call dump truck hauling services.  These services 


are intended to be used only when additional services over and above the capabilities of the Road Department are needed.  Typically, 


the materials to be hauled will be gravel, soil, or asphalt on various projects undertaken by the Road Department. 


 


The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid #860 to secure hauling services for calendar year 2013.  Invitations were direct-


mailed to 37 vendors and were also extended via the Fayette Daily News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access 


Marketplace, and Channel 23.  Seven vendors responded, but one was not considered because of issues with references.  The six 


eligible vendors quoted an hourly rate that is indexed in accordance with the Diesel Fuel Price Index as published monthly by the Georgia 


Department of Transportation.  To determine which vendor submitted the lowest bid, the bids were reviewed for all price ranges in the bid 


with particular attention to the range that has been experienced over the past two years.  The two lowest qualified bidders provided 


identical prices within the expected fuel index range.   


 


Staff recommends Con South, Inc as the primary vendor and Bulkhaulers as the secondary vendor based on fleet size and comments 


provided by references.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual Bid #860 to Con South, Inc. as the primary vendor and to Bulkhaulers, Inc., as the 


secondary vendor for dump truck hauling services, in an aggregate amount not to exceed $150,000.00, and authorization for the 


Chairman to sign the contract and related documents contingent upon the County Attorney's review.


Funds are budgeted annual in the Road Department's O&M budget in Account Number 10040220-522111 or in various CIP or SPLOST 


project accounts.


Yes Thursday, December 15, 2011


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, January 10, 2013







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  January 2, 2013 
 
Subject: Bid #860 – Hauling Services 
 
At times, the Road Department needs to haul more materials such as asphalt, stone, soil, or 
gravel that they can haul with their existing trucks.  To meet the excess needs, they contract each 
year with companies for occasional hauling services.  The contracts call for tandem axle dump 
trucks, because of the weight of the loads.  Due to fluctuations in need, the county has historically 
entered into a primary contract and a secondary contract. 
 
The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid #860 to secure hauling services for calendar 
year 2013.  Invitations were direct-mailed to 37 vendors.  In addition, invitations were extended 
via the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Seven vendors responded to the invitation to bid (please see 
Attachment 1).  One of the seven responses was not considered because of issues with 
references. 
 
Bidders submit a range of proposed hourly rates based on the diesel fuel component of the Fuel 
Price Index (Georgia Average Price), which is produced by the Georgia Department of 
Transportation.  The hourly rates bid include the truck, operator, fuel, insurance, and any other 
relevant costs. 
 
Based on recent trends and current indicators, the most likely relevant index range during 2013 
will be in the $3.00 - $4.49 per gallon range (Attachment 2).  Two vendors bid the same average 
prices within this range: Con South, Inc. and Bulkhaulers, Inc.  Of the two, Con South more 
closely meets the county’s needs, based on fleet size, experience, references, and other 
considerations.  Therefore, the Road Department recommends award of the primary contract to 
Con South, and a secondary contract to Bulkhaulers.  I concur with their recommendations. 
 
Attachments (2) 
 



http://www.glga.org/





Attachment 1


Con South Bulkhaulers Mar Trucking
Rock-It Sand 


& Gravel
Concrete 
Supply


Double O 
Hauling


Wynn 
Construction


$2.50 to $2.99 $55.00 $60.00 $45.00 $64.25 $65.00 $70.00
$3.00 to $3.49 60.00           60.00           50.00           64.25           67.50           70.00           
$3.50 to $3.99 65.00           65.00           75.00           68.00           70.00           70.00           
$4.00 to $4.49 70.00           70.00           75.00           72.00           72.50           80.00           
$4.50 to $4.99 75.00           70.00           80.00           75.00           75.00           85.00           
$5.00 to $5.49 80.00           75.00           80.00           78.00           77.50           100.00         
$5.50 to $5.99 85.00           75.00           80.00           81.00           80.00           100.00         


Average Price Bid Within Anticipated Range:
$3.00 to $4.49 65.00           65.00           66.67           68.08           70.00           73.33           


Anticipated
Range


Bid
Not


Considered


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid #860 - Hauling Service


{


Hourly Rates Bid


 Fuel Price Index
For Diesel
($/Gallon) 









		Public Works- Hauling NTE Agenda Request File

		Public Works- Hauling NTE Backup

		Road- Hauling Bid 860 Agenda Request File

		Road- Hauling Bid 860 Backup

		Road- Hauling Bid 860 Agenda Request File

		Road- Hauling Bid 860 Backup

		Hauling Bid 860 - Purchasing Backup 1

		Hauling Bid 860 - Purchasing Backup 2

		Tally - BOC



		Hauling Bid 860 - Purchasing Backup 3
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to extend annual Bid #872 to E.R. Snell Contracting of Tyrone, in an amount not to exceed 


$1,598,736.00, for the purchase of asphalt for the 2014 calendar year.


This contract is used to identify a vendor for the procurement of various asphalt mixes during the 2014 asphalt paving season.  E.R. Snell 


Contracting of Tyrone, as the primary vendor for 2013, has agreed to extend the contract for 2014 without any price changes.    


 


A not-to-exceed contract of $1,598,736.00 is recommended for the remainder of FY 2014 budget year.  After the FY 2015 budget has 


been established (after July 1, 2014) a revised not-to-exceed amount may be brought before the BOC if needed.  


 


If approved, this contract will expire December 31, 2014. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to extend annual Bid #872 to E.R. Snell Contracting of Tyrone, in an amount not to exceed 


$1,598,736.00, for the purchase of asphalt for the 2014 calendar year.


Funds are budgeted annually in the Road Department's O&M budget in account 10040220-531171, CIP project accounts, or SPLOST 


project accounts.


Yes Thursday, March 14, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Note: These types of calendar contracts will be converted to fiscal year contracts during next year’s budget process - along with revised 


NTEs to coincide with annual funding.


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







 


To:  Steve Rapson 


From:  Ted L. Burgess 


Date:  December 2, 2013 


Subject: Bid #872 Extension 1 – Asphalt 


Each year, the Road Department contracts for the purchase of various mixes of asphalt as 
needed.  The contract is primarily for a product called Superior Performing Asphalt Pavements 
(Superpave), which was the result in 1993 of research by the U.S. Strategic Highway Research 
Program. 


Asphalt prices are established based on the Asphalt Cement Price Index maintained by the 
Georgia Department of Transportation, which is updated every month (please see Attachment 
#1).  Based on recent trends, the relevant Index range continues to be between $501 and $700. 


Last winter, notices of Invitation to Bid #872 for the Calendar Year 2013 contract were direct-
mailed to 11 contractors, and 90 vendors were notified through the electronic Georgia 
Procurement Registry.  In addition, invitations were extended via the Fayette News, the county 
website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23.   


Since asphalt cannot be hauled long distances from the plant to the road construction site, the 
number of vendors who can realistically compete is limited.  Three vendors submitted bids for 
asphalt from a total of six plants (Attachment #2).  The Board of Commissioners awarded a 
primary contract to E.R. Snell’s Tyrone plant, and a secondary contract to C.W. Matthews’ 
Tyrone Plant, for asphalt purchases for the calendar year ending December 31, 2013.   


The contracts include a provision that they can be extended an additional year if both parties 
agree.  E.R. Snell agreed to hold their prices firm for Calendar Year 2014, While C.W. Matthews 
declined.  The Road Department recommends that the contract with E.R. Snell be extended for 
an additional year, holding prices per ton at their current levels.  The not-to-exceed amount is 
recommended to be $1,598,736.  The secondary contract would be eliminated for the upcoming 
year. 


The Purchasing Department supports the Road Department’s recommendations. 


Attachments 



http://www.glga.org/�

































ANNUAL CONTRACTS


November 25, 2013 Not-To-Exceed Estimates for Jan 1 - June 30, 2014


#861 #861 #872 #895
Stone Stone Asphalt Hauling


Stephens Hansons
531173 531173 531171 522111


2013 NTE 20,000$      180,000$          2,600,000$       150,000$          
2013 Actual


Remaining FY 2014 O&M Budget 46,066$            98,560$            2,181$              
LMIG2 225,377$          19,600$            
LMIG3 431,385$          56,400$            
LMIG4 431,278$          32,760$            


Road Projects:
Splost - 92 @ Veterans Pkwy 84,000$            148,000$          76,650$            
Splost - 85 @ Harp 51,468$            85,076$            46,247$            
Valleywood Rd 7,280$              


Drainage Projects:
Environmental Management Project #1 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #2 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #3 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #4 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #5 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Kirkley Rd Drainage 5,250$              2,475$              4,160$              
Road Dept Maintenance project #1 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Road Dept Maintenance project #2 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              


Other Projects:
Dept of Driver Services - parking lot 9,600$              17,000$            1,000$              


TOTALS 227,884$          1,453,396$       255,378$          


Contingency 10% 10% 10%


2014 NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT 20,000$      250,672$          1,598,736$       280,916$          


Agreed to Agreed to Agreed to rebid
extend extend extend - primary


only





		Road- Annual Contract Asphalt Agenda Request File

		Road- Annual Contract Asphalt Backup Revised

		Road- Annual Contract Asphalt - Purchasing Backup 1 REV

		Road- Annual Contract Asphalt Backup

		Road- Annual Contract Asphalt - Purchasing Backup 1

		Road- Annual Contract Asphalt - Purchasing Backup 2

		Road- Annual Contract Asphalt Backup



		Not To Exceed estimates-REV












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners County Clerk Floyd Jones


Consideration of staff's recommendation to appoint Pota Coston, who is currently serving as an alternate member of the Fayette County 


Board of Ethics, to the vacancy on the Fayette County Board of Ethics for a term beginning immediately and to expire November 7, 2016.


On November 7, 2012, Ms. Pota Coston was appointed by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners for a two-year term as an 


alternate member to the Fayette County Board of Ethics.  She has attended the previous meetings of the Fayette County Board of Ethics, 


understands the process, and is the last remaining alternate. 


 


Mr. Scott Rowland's appointment to the Fayette County Board of Ethics has expired. 


 


Ms. Coston has agreed to serve as a member on the Fayette County Board of Ethics until such time that her appointment expires.  


Currently, there is a standing committee that may recommend a rewrite of the County's ethics ordinances which could call for a 


reconstituted Board of Ethics and Ms. Coston is aware of that situation. 


 


The current ordinance calls for a three-year appointment to the Board in order to stagger the appointments.  Mrs. Larris Marks, who was 


previously moved up from alternate to board member, and Mrs. Sheila Huddleston are the other two members on the Ethics Board. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to appoint Pota Coston, who is currently serving as an alternate member of the Fayette County Board 


of Ethics, to the Fayette County Board of Ethics for a term beginning immediately and to expire November 7, 2016 or when the Board of 


Ethics is reconstituted.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Staff has advertised to fill the two open alternate positions on the Ethics Board.


New BusinessThursday, December 12, 2013







 1 


STATE OF GEORGIA  
COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 2010-10 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION; TO PROVIDE FOR ETHICAL STANDARDS; TO PROVIDE 
FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR PENALTIES; 
TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION DATE; TO 
PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 


 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of Commissioners 


thereof; 
 


WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the ethical 
standards of county officials as allowed by the State of Georgia; 
 


WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall be improved 
and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS 
HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 
 
Section 1.  That Article VIII of Chapter 2 Administration of the Code of Ordinances, Fayette County, Georgia is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced to read as follows: 
 
Sec. 2-207.  Purpose. 


The proper operation of local government requires that the public officials be independent, impartial and 
responsible to the people; that the government decisions and policy be made through proper channels of the 
governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal gain; that the public officials be free from the 
appearance of impropriety; and that the public have confidence in the integrity of its government. In recognition of 
these goals, a code of ethics for all county officials is adopted. The purpose of this policy is to establish ethical 
standards of conduct for all such officials by setting forth those acts or actions that are incompatible with the best 
interests of the county and by directing disclosure by such officials of private financial or other interests in matters 
affecting the county.  


Sec. 2-208.  Definitions. 


Business entity means any business, proprietorship, firm, partnership, person in either a representative or a 
fiduciary capacity, association, venture, trust, or corporation.  


Confidential information means any information which, by law or practice, is not available to the public.  


County official or official shall mean the county board of commissioners, county administrator, county attorney 
and his assistants, and any county employee who has been appointed to the position by the board of 
commissioners.  


Immediate family means an official and the spouse of an official, their parents, children, brothers and sisters 
related by blood or marriage.  







 2 


Interest means direct or indirect pecuniary or material benefit accruing to a public officer or official as a result of a 
contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or action by or with the county except for 
such contracts or transactions which, by their terms and by the substance of their provisions, confer the 
opportunity and right to realize the accrual of similar benefits to all other persons and/or property similarly 
situated.  


For purposes of this policy, a county official shall be deemed to have an interest in the affairs of:  


(1) his or her immediate family; 


(2) any business entity in which the county official is an officer, director, or member having a financial 
interest in, or employed by it; or 


(3) any business entity as to which the stock, legal ownership, or beneficial ownership of a county official 
is in excess of five percent of the total stock or total legal and beneficial ownership, or which is controlled 
or owned directly or indirectly by the county official.  


Official act or action means any legislative, administrative, appointive or discretionary act of any official of the 
county or any agency, board, committee, authority or commission thereof.  


Reprimand means an expression of disapproval.  


Sec. 2-209.  Standards. 


(a) Interest in contract or transaction. No county official having the power or duty to perform an official act or 
action related to a contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or action of the county 
shall:  


(1) have or thereafter acquire an interest in such contract or transaction, or 


(2) have an interest in any business entity involved in such contract or transactions, or  


(3) have solicited or accepted present or future employment with a person or business entity involved in 
such contract or transaction, or  


(4) have solicited or accepted a present or future gift, favor, service, or thing of value from a person 
involved in such contract or transaction, except as provided in section 2-210, below.  


(b) Pre-acquisition of interest. No county official shall acquire an interest in a contract or transaction which is or 
may be the subject of an official act or action of the county at a time when the county official believes or has 
reason to believe that such contract or transaction will be directly or indirectly affected by an official act or action 
of the county.  


(c) Disclosure of information. No county official shall without proper legal authorization, disclose confidential 
information concerning the property, government, or affairs of the county, or use such information to advance the 
financial or other private interest of himself or others.  


(d) No county official shall waive the attorney-client privilege or disclose any documents protected by the 
attorney-client privilege without the consent of the majority of the board of commissioners.  







 3 


(e)  No county official shall disclose to others matters discussed in executive session of any board or commission 
without the consent of the majority of the board of commissioners or until after the minutes of the meeting is 
required to be released as a matter of law.  


(f) Incompatible service. No county official shall engage in or accept private employment or render service for any 
private entity, when such employment or service is incompatible with the proper discharge of his official duties or 
would tend to impair his independence of judgment or action in the performance of his official duties, unless 
otherwise permitted by law and unless disclosure is made as provided in this policy.  


(g) Appearance. No county official shall appear on behalf of any private person other than himself, his spouse or 
minor children, before any county agency, authority or board. However, a member of the board of commissioners 
may appear before such groups on behalf of his constituents in the course of his duties as a representative of the 
electorate or in the performance of public or civic obligations.  


(h) Public property. No county official shall request or permit the unauthorized use of county-owned vehicles, 
equipment, materials or property for personal convenience or profit.  


(i) Special treatment. No county official shall grant any special consideration, treatment or advantage to any 
citizen beyond that which is available to every other citizen in the same or similar circumstances.  


(j) Later case interest. No county official shall, after the termination of service or employment with the county, 
accept remuneration of any kind for any appearance before any board, commission, committee, agency or 
authority of the county on behalf of any adverse party in relation to any case, proceeding, or application in which 
he personally participated during the period of his service or employment, which was under his active 
consideration during the period of his service or employment, or as to which he could have acquired knowledge 
or information during the period of his service or employment.  


(k) Political recrimination. No county official, whether elected or appointed, shall promise an appointment or 
threaten the dismissal from any county position as a reward or punishment for any political activity.  


(l) Withholding of information. No county official shall knowingly withhold any information which would impair the 
proper decision making of any of the county board, authorities, agency or commissions.  


(m) Payment of debts. All county officials shall settle all accounts between them and the county, including the 
payment of taxes, in a timely fashion.  


(n) Organizational integrity. County commissioners, as policy makers, shall refrain from interfering in the daily 
administrative affairs of department directors. Commissioners shall not, acting alone, make suggestions to the 
department directors or their employees regarding the performance of their duties, nor give instructions to 
department directors or other employees.  Commissioners shall not make recommendations regarding the hiring, 
firing or disciplining of department directors and other county employees.  


Sec. 2-210.  Exceptions. 


(a) It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if the interest of a county official in a person or 
business entity is a contractual obligation of less than $500.00 which has not been preceded by any other 
obligation, discharged or existing, between the parties, and which is not the first in a series of two or more loans 
or debts which either of the parties is under any obligation to make or incur.  


 







 4 


(b) The following shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy: 


(1) Legitimate salary, benefits, fees, commissions, or expenses associated with an official’s non-public 
business;  


(2) An award, plaque, certificate, memento, or similar item given in recognition of the official’s civic, 
charitable, political, professional, or public service;  


(3) Food, beverages, and registration at group events to which all similarly situated officials are invited; 


(4) Actual and reasonable expenses for food, beverages, travel, lodging, and registration for a meeting 
which are provided to an official so that he or she may participate or speak at the meeting;  


(5) A commercially reasonable loan made in the ordinary course of business; 


(6) Any gift with a total value less than $100.00 in any calendar year; 


(7) Promotional items generally distributed to public officials generally; 


(8) A gift from a member of the public official’s immediate family; or 


(9) Food, beverage, or expenses afforded public officials, and members of their immediate families, or 
others that are associated with normal and customary business or social functions or activities.  


(c) It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if a county official, in his capacity as such 
official, participates in the making of a contract even if such official has a private pecuniary interest or performs in 
regard to that contract some function requiring the exercise of discretion on his part, if;  


(1) The contract is awarded through a process of public notice and competitive bidding, or 


(2) The board of commissioners at regular meeting, after determining that it is in the best interest of the 
county to do so, authorizes the participation.  


Sec. 2-211.  Disclosure of interest in legislative action. 


(a) Any member of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia who has financial or personal interest 
in any proposed legislation before the commission shall immediately disclose on the record the nature and extent 
of such interest.  


(b) Any other official who has a financial or personal interest in any proposed legislative action of the board of 
commissioners, and who participates in discussion with or gives an official opinion or recommendation to the 
commission, shall disclose on the record the nature and extent of such interest.  


Sec. 2-212.  Abstentions. 


A county official who has an interest that he has reason to believe may be affected by an official act or 
action shall abstain from any participation in the same.  


Sec. 2-213.  Enforcement and administration.  


(a)  Constituting the board; chairman.  







 5 


(1) The board of ethics of the county is hereby created and authorized by the board of 
commissioners.  


(2) The board of ethics of the county shall be composed of three (3) residents of the county to be 
appointed as provided herein.  Each member of the board of ethics shall have been a resident of the 
county for at least one year immediately preceding the date of taking office and shall remain a resident 
of the county while serving as a member of the board of ethics.  No person shall serve as a member of 
the board of ethics if the person has, or has had within the preceding one year period, any interest in any 
contract, transaction, or official action of the county.  


(3) The members of the board of commissioners may nominate persons to serve on the board of 
ethics, who shall be appointed by a majority vote of the board of commissioners.  These individuals must 
agree to undergo a criminal background check conducted by the County Marshal prior to designation, 
and/or redesignation, the results of which will be forwarded to the board of commissioners. These 
individuals should be available to be called upon for their term of office.  At the end of each term, the 
board of commissioners shall appoint eligible residents to fill the board.  Current members can be 
reappointed and there shall be no term limits for the members.  If a member of the board of ethics does 
not finish their term, the remainder of the term shall be filled through an appointment by the board of 
commissioners. 


(4) Alternates.  In addition to the members of the board, the board of commissioners shall appoint 
two alternate members.  These alternates shall be appointed in the same manner as members of the 
board of ethics.   


(5) If any member of the board of ethics has a conflict of interest in any matter before the board, 
the remaining two members of the board of ethics shall select an alternate to serve for that matter from 
the two alternative members appointed by the board of commissioners. 


(6) The board shall select a chairman at the beginning of each matter to be heard.   


(7) Term of Office. The term of office for each member of the board of ethics and alternates shall 
be for three (3) years; however, in the appointment of the first board, one (1) member and one (1) 
alternate shall be appointed for three (3) years; one (1) member and one (1) alternate for two (2) years 
and one (1) member for one (1) year. It is the intent of this section that their terms be staggered. Any 
vacancy in the membership shall be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as the initial 
appointment.     


(b)  Duties of board. The board of ethics shall have the following duties and powers:  


(1)  To administer the ethics ordinance;  


(2)  To receive, review, process, make determinations on, and hear complaints of violations of standards 
required by this chapter.  The board is not designed to be an oversight board or to perform 
investigations;  


(3)  To make such response to a complaint as it deems necessary to determine whether any person has 
violated any provisions of this chapter;  


(4)  To hold such hearings and make such inquiries as deemed necessary to investigate and rule upon 
complaints; and 







 6 


(5)  To report its findings and actions to the board of commissioners.  


(c)  Administration.  


(1)  Complaints.  


a.  All complaints of ethical violations must be filed with the county clerk, in writing, signed by 
the complainant, no later than 90 days after the alleged act occurred unless the complainant, 
by exercising reasonable diligence, failed to discover the alleged ethical violation within such 90 
day period. In such a case, the complainant must file a written complaint with the county clerk 
no later than 90 days after the complainant discovered the alleged violation. In all such cases 
brought after 90 days from the date of the alleged ethical violation, the complainant bears the 
burden of convincing the board of the true date complainant learned of the alleged violation.  


b.  In no event, shall an ethical charge be filed with the county clerk more than two years from 
the date of the alleged ethical violation.  


c.  The complainant may withdraw the complaint at any time in writing.  


(2)  Pay and staff support.  


a.  The members of the board of ethics shall serve without compensation.  The governing 
authority of the county shall provide meeting space for the board of ethics. Subject to budgetary 
procedures and requirements of the county, the county shall provide the board of ethics with 
such supplies and equipment as may be reasonably necessary for it to perform its duties and 
responsibilities.  


b.  The county clerk shall serve as the recording secretary to the board and shall provide such 
administrative services to the board as may be necessary.  


c.  Subject to budgetary procedures and requirements of the county, the county shall provide 
the board of ethics with such legal staffing as may be reasonably necessary for it to perform its 
duties and responsibilities by an attorney who does not serve at the County Attorney. 


(3)  Action by the board. Within 30 days of receipt of a complaint from the county clerk, the board may 
perform one or more of the following:  


a.  Upon receipt of a complaint in proper form, review the complaint to determine whether the 
complaint is unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or fails to state facts sufficient to invoke 
disciplinary jurisdiction. The board of ethics shall be empowered to collect evidence and 
information concerning any complaint and to add the findings and results of its investigation to 
the file containing such complaint;  


b.  Upon completion of its review and/or investigation of a complaint, the board at a public 
meeting may dismiss those complaints which are unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or 
which fail to state facts sufficient to invoke disciplinary jurisdiction. Provided, however, that a 
rejection of such complaint by the board of ethics shall not deprive the complaining party of any 
action he/she might otherwise have at law or in equity against the respondent. A rejection shall 
prevent refiling of a complaint regarding the same subject(s) and alleged perpetrator(s) for the 
same offense;  







 7 


c.  Admonish, formally reprimand, publicly censure, any complaining party that files an 
unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or factually insufficient complaint;  


d.  Forward an order to the board of commissioners; or  


e.  Hold a public hearing within 60 days after the complaint was received.  


(4)  Parties rights. At any hearing held by the board of ethics, the official who is the subject of a 
complaint shall have the right to written notice of the allegations at least ten business days before a 
hearing, to be represented by counsel, to hear and examine the evidence and witnesses and to present 
evidence and witnesses in opposition or in extenuation according to the procedures contained in 
subparagraph (6).  


(5)  Advisory opinions. When any official has a doubt regarding the applicability of any provision of this 
chapter to a particular situation, or regarding the definition of its terms, he may apply in writing or 
verbally during a public meeting to the county attorney for an advisory opinion. The advisory opinion 
shall be written unless it is given verbally during a public meeting, and may be provided directly to the 
requestor of such opinion. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prohibit a request for an informal 
opinion by any public official from the county attorney regarding a potential conflict of interest. Neither a 
request for an informal opinion, nor the making of a statement concerning a potential conflict of interest 
made by a member of the governing body in the course of abstaining from voting shall create a 
presumption or inference that a public servant actually has a personal interest in the matter about which 
the opinion was requested.  


(6)  Hearing procedures.  


a.  At the hearing the conduct of the parties shall be dignified both on and off the record.  


b.  Misconduct before the board may be grounds for summary exclusion from the hearing. The 
hearing is intended to receive evidence either to refute or to substantiate specific charges. It 
shall not be a forum for discussion of extraneous or irrelevant matters having no bearing on the 
charges, and the alleged misconduct of others who may have escaped discipline in the past 
shall serve as no defense.  All parties at action and witnesses shall be given ample time and 
opportunity to develop points, subject to the discretion of the board.  


c.  It should be recognized that the board will be composed of private citizens. Accordingly, the 
board may not follow established legal procedures as might be expected in a court of law.  
However, in taking testimony and in considering the evidence, the board shall follow accepted 
legal procedure insofar as is practicable but shall not be bound by the technical rules of 
evidence observed in courts of law.  The board may decline to listen to numerous character 
witnesses or numbers of witnesses testifying to identical facts.  


d.  The chairman of the board of ethics shall conduct the hearing.  


e.  The hearing shall be recorded and the county clerk shall prepare a written summary of the 
hearing. The complainant and/or respondent may provide a court reporter at their expense for a 
verbatim transcript of the hearing, if so desired. The county clerk, or their designee shall take 
minutes of the hearing, specifically including the name of the board members who make any 
motions, the board members who second any such motions, and the names of the individuals 
on the board and  how each voted. This written report shall be presented to the board of 
commissioners at the conclusion of the board’s proceedings.  







 8 


f.  Three members of the constituted board shall be required to conduct the hearing.  The ethics 
board may, before the hearing and upon ten days notice to all parties, approve regulations 
governing conduct of ethics board hearings so long as such regulations do not conflict with this 
Article. 


g.  The person who filed the complaint (“complainant”) shall present his case to the board first.  


h.  All documentary evidence which is anticipated to be submitted to the board at the hearing by 
either the respondent or the complainant, and the names, with telephone numbers, of all 
individuals expected to present testimony to the board on behalf of either the respondent or 
complainant, must be given to the county clerk and the opposing party at least ten days in 
advance of the hearing. This requirement shall not apply to evidence used solely for purposes 
of cross-examination or rebuttal. The failure of a party to adhere to this rule shall preclude such 
party from tendering such evidence or individual’s testimony at the hearing through any form. 
The respondent, complainant, and the public shall be entitled to see all such lists which are 
placed on file with the county clerk.  


i.  The board may compel the production of any document in the possession of the county and 
subject to the Open Records Act and the testimony of any county employee.  Where the board 
compels any such document or testimony after a hearing has commenced a continuation shall 
be provided so that such order can be complied with. 


j.  Neither party shall have the right to require depositions of any individual, including the 
opposite party.  


k.  The complainant’s evidence must prove that respondent is guilty of the offense charged by 
the evidentiary standard commonly referred to as “preponderance of the evidence.”  


l.  Each witness presented by the complainant, and including the complainant, shall be subject 
to cross-examination by the individual accused of the ethical violation (“respondent”) or such 
person’s representative.  


m.  At the conclusion of the complainant’s case, the respondent shall be entitled to move for 
dismissal based on insufficient evidence on the part of complainant’s case. If respondent 
makes such a motion and the board, by majority vote, agrees to dismiss the complaint, the 
hearing shall be terminated at this point. If either the respondent fails to make such a motion, 
or, if the board decides by majority vote to overrule respondent’s motion, the hearing shall 
continue. The board may also direct a decision in favor of the respondent upon the board’s own 
initiative.  


n.  Respondent shall then be entitled to present his evidence to the board.  


o.  Respondent is not required to testify. The absence of respondent’s testimony shall not be 
viewed by the board as an admission of any sort.  


p.  If respondent testifies, then respondent shall be subject to cross-examination by 
complainant. All other witnesses who testify in the respondent’s case shall be subject to cross-
examination by complainant.  


q.  All persons who testify before the board, shall be placed under oath, by either the chairman 
or a person designated by the chairman.  







 9 


r.  At the conclusion of respondent’s case, the complainant may offer rebuttal evidence only to 
those items presented in respondent’s case. At the conclusion of complainant’s rebuttal, 
respondent shall be entitled to offer rebuttal evidence only to those matters presented in 
complainant’s rebuttal case.  


s.  During the course of testimony and at the conclusion of all the testimony and closure of all of 
the evidence, the board members may ask questions of any of the individuals who testified 
before the board.  


t.  At the conclusion of all questions by parties and board members, the chairman shall end the 
hearing and permit the board to deliberate in public. If the board decides by majority vote that 
additional evidence is needed to make a decision, the board shall have the authority to require 
either the complainant or respondent to submit additional evidence at a continuation of the 
hearing which must be held no later than 45 days after the date of the initial hearing. The board 
has no authority to continue the hearing past this 45-day deadline.  


u.  Following the conclusion of any additional evidence received at the continued hearing, the 
board shall continue to deliberate. When deliberations are concluded, the chairman shall call 
for a vote. The board may vote immediately after deliberations are concluded or they may 
continue the meeting for up to two weeks when a public vote must be taken. The board’s first 
vote must be whether the respondent violated the ethics code as charged by the complainant. 
If, by majority vote, the board rules that the respondent did not violate the ethics code as 
charged by the complainant, then the matter is concluded. If the board, by majority vote, 
concludes that the respondent did violate the ethics code as charged by the complainant, then 
the board must make a second decision by majority vote. The second decision involves the 
form of penalty. The board shall have six options of penalty which include:  


i.  No admonishment and no further action;  


ii.  A public reprimand and admonishment not to violate the ethics code in the future;  


iii.  Formal reprimand;  


iv.  Public censure;  


v.  Recommendation for termination, resignation, or recall; or  


vi.  Recommendation of prosecution in the State Court of Fayette County.  


v.  The complainant may withdraw his or her complaint at any time without the approval of the 
board. 


w.  An order will be generated by the board and submitted to the board of commissioners for 
inclusion in the minutes within fifteen (15) days of the completed hearing.  


(d)   Judicial review of decisions. 


(1)   Any public official adversely affected by any final decision of the board of ethics under subsection (f) 
of this section may obtain judicial review of such decision as provided in this subsection. 


(2)   An action for judicial review may be commenced in the Superior Court of Fayette County within 30 
days after the decision of the board of ethics becomes final. 







 10 


(3)   The effective date of the final decision of the board of ethics shall be postponed pending judicial 
review as provided for in this subsection. 


(4)   The record on review, unless otherwise stipulated by the parties, shall include the original or 
certified copies of all pleadings, testimony, evidence, exhibits, and other papers presented to or 
considered by the board of ethics and the findings and decisions of the board of ethics. As to alleged 
procedural irregularities, evidence may be taken independently by the court. 


(5)   If the court finds no error, it shall affirm the decision of the board of ethics. The court shall hold 
unlawful and set aside the decision of the board of ethics if it finds that such action was: 


i.  Arbitrary or capricious; 


ii.  A denial of a statutory right; 


iii.  Contrary to constitutional right, power, privilege, or immunity; 


iv.  In excess of statutory jurisdiction, authority, purposes, or limitation; 


v.  Not in accord with the procedures or procedural limitations of this section or as otherwise 
required by law; 


vi.  An abuse of discretion, unsupported by substantial evidence when the record is considered 
as a whole; or 


vii.  Otherwise contrary to law. 


(6)   The decision of the trial court shall be subject to appellate review in the same manner and with the 
same effect as in appeals from a final judgment or decree in any other civil action. 


Sec. 2-214.  Penalties. 


County officials are subject to the following penalties and action for breach of ethics: 


(1) Written warning or reprimand; 


(2) Cancellation of the contract or rejection of the bid or offer; 


(3) Recovery of the value transferred or received; and/or 


(4) Debarment or suspension from award of county contract for a period of up to three years. 


Sec. 2-215.  Compliance with applicable laws. 


No officer or official shall engage in any activity or transaction that is prohibited by any law, now existing 
or hereafter enacted, which is applicable to him or her by virtue of his or her office.  


Secs. 2-216—2-220. - Reserved. 


Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 
 







 11 


Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by the 
Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by 
law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every 
other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be the 
intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 
whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of 
any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that such invalidity, 
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, 
unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 
Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
expressly repealed. 
 
Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified herein. 
 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS 18th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2010. 
 
  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
 
  ________________________________________ 
                                  Jack R. Smith, Chairman 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
    Carol Chandler, County Clerk 
 


 


 


 


 


 







 12 


 





		Commissioners- Coston Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Coston Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual bid #895 to Con South, Inc. as the primary vendor and to Faultless Business Center 


as the secondary vendor, in an  amount not to exceed $280,916.00, for dump truck hauling services for calendar year 2014.


The intent of this annual contract is to identify a vendor to provide on-call dump truck hauling services.  These services are intended to be 


used only when additional services over and above the capabilities of the Road Department are needed.   Typically the materials hauled 


would be gravel, soil or asphalt on various projects undertaken by the Department. 


 


For this service bidders quoted an hourly rate that is indexed in accordance with the Diesel Fuel Price Index as published monthly by the 


Georgia Department of Transportation.  To determine which vendor submitted the lowest bid, the bids were reviewed for all price ranges 


in the bid with particular attention to the range that has been experienced over the past two years.  Of the four (4) bids received, Con 


South Inc. provided the lowest price within the expected fuel index range. Faultless Business Center provided the second lowest price 


within the expected fuel index range.   


 


Based on estimates of anticipated work, a not to exceed contract of $280,916.00 is recommended for the remainder of FY 2014 budget 


year. After the FY 2015 budget has been established (after July 1, 2014) a revised not-to-exceed amount may be brought before the 


BOC. 


If approved, this contract will expire on December 31, 2014.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award annual bid #895 to Con South, Inc. as the primary vendor and to Faultless Business Center 


as the secondary vendor, in an  amount not to exceed $280,916.00, for dump truck hauling services for calendar year 2014.


Funds are budgeted annually in the Road Department's O&M budget in account 10040220-522111 or in various CIP or SPLOST project 


accounts.


Yes Thursday, January 10, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Note: These types of calendar contracts will be converted to fiscal year contracts during next year’s budget process - along with revised 


NTEs to coincide with annual funding.


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  November 26, 2013 
 
Subject: Bid #895 – Tandem Axle Truck Hauling Services 
 
At times, the Road Department needs to haul more materials such as asphalt, stone, soil, or 
gravel that they can haul with their existing trucks.  To meet the excess needs, they contract each 
year with companies for occasional hauling services.  The contracts call for tandem axle dump 
trucks, because of the weight of the loads.  Due to fluctuations in need, the county has historically 
entered into a primary contract and a secondary contract. 
 
The Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid #895 to secure hauling services for calendar 
year 2014, and with options to renew for a total of three years.  Invitations were direct-mailed to 
15 vendors.  Another 287 were contacted through the web-based Georgia Procurement Registry.  
In addition, invitations were extended via the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local 
Government Access Marketplace (www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Four vendors submitted bids 
(please see Attachment 1). 
 
Bidders submit a range of proposed hourly rates based on the diesel fuel component of the Fuel 
Price Index (Georgia Average Price), which is produced by the Georgia Department of 
Transportation.  The hourly rates bid include the truck, operator, fuel, insurance, and any other 
relevant costs. 
 
Based on recent trends and current indicators, the most likely relevant index range during 2014 
will be in the $3.00 - $4.49 per gallon range (Attachment 2).  Within this range, Con South offered 
the lowest prices after discounts are taken (they were the only bidder than offered discounts for 
prompt payment).  The Road Department recommends Con South as the primary contractor, and 
Faultless Business Center (the second-lowest bidder) for the secondary contract.  I support their 
recommendations. 
 
Attachments (2) 
 



http://www.glga.org/�





Attachment 1


Quoted
Bid Price


Bid Price
With 


Discount
$2.50 to $2.99 $64.85 $59.01 $64.50 $64.90 $78.00
$3.00 to $3.49 64.85           $59.01 64.50          64.90            92.00             
$3.50 to $3.99 64.85           $59.01 64.50          64.90            102.00           
$4.00 to $4.49 68.85           $62.65 64.50          67.00            112.00           
$4.50 to $4.99 72.85           $66.29 64.50          70.00            121.50           
$5.00 to $5.49 75.85           $69.02 64.50          75.00            132.60           
$5.50 to $5.99 80.00           $72.80 64.50          80.00            142.00           


# of Trucks:
     Owned 5 +leased 12 2
     Avail in 24 Hr As needed 8 6


Discount Offered None None None


*9% discount if check drawn within 7 days and postmarked within 10 days of invoice.


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid #895 - Hauling Service


Hourly Rates Bid


Anticipated
Relevant
Range {


 Fuel Price Index
For Diesel
($/Gallon) 


Con South


Faultless
Business
Center


MGD
Transportation


Rock-It Sand 
& Gravel


See below*


10
6











ANNUAL CONTRACTS
November 25, 2013 Not-To-Exceed Estimates for Jan 1 - June 30, 2014


#861 #861 #872 #895
Stone Stone Asphalt Hauling


Stephens Hansons
531173 531173 531171 522111


2013 NTE 20,000$      180,000$          2,600,000$       150,000$          
2013 Actual


Remaining FY 2014 O&M Budget 46,066$            98,560$            2,181$              
LMIG2 225,377$          19,600$            
LMIG3 431,385$          56,400$            
LMIG4 431,278$          32,760$            


Road Projects:
Splost - 92 @ Veterans Pkwy 84,000$            148,000$          76,650$            
Splost - 85 @ Harp 51,468$            85,076$            46,247$            
Valleywood Rd 7,280$              


Drainage Projects:
Environmental Management Project #1 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #2 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #3 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #4 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #5 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Kirkley Rd Drainage 5,250$              2,475$              4,160$              
Road Dept Maintenance project #1 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Road Dept Maintenance project #2 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              


Other Projects:
Dept of Driver Services - parking lot 9,600$              17,000$            1,000$              


TOTALS 227,884$          1,453,396$       255,378$          


Contingency 10% 10% 10%


2014 NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT 20,000$      250,672$          1,598,736$       280,916$          


Agreed to Agreed to Agreed to rebid
extend extend extend - primary


only





		Road- Annual Contract Hauling Agenda Request File

		Road- Annual Contract Hauling Backup Revised

		Road- Annual Contract Hauling Backup

		Annual Contract Hauling - Purchasing Backup 1

		Annual Contract Hauling - Purchasing Backup 2

		Tally - BOC



		Annual Contract Hauling - Purchasing Backup 3

		Road- Annual Contract Hauling Backup



		Not To Exceed estimates-REV












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Steven Rapson


Approval to register with the Commodities Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) and receive an Interim Compliance Identifier (CICI); 


execute the proposed Credit Support Annex; execute the proposed Bilateral Dodd-Frank (DF) Agreement and adopt the model resolution 


to conform to the provisions of Dodd-Frank Act.


The County is party to an interest rate exchange (or swap) agreement in connection with its participation in GMA’s 1998 Equipment 


Leasing Program. This program has offered the City and other participating local governments the opportunity to lease-purchase 


equipment at extraordinarily low interest rates for the past 15 years. 


 


JP Morgan is required to post collateral equal to the “mark-to-market” value in the event their credit ratings fall below a minimum level.  


JP Morgan’s ratings have fallen to a level that requires them to post approximately $32.6M in collateral. This collateral will be pledged as 


security to the pool members based on their shares of the pool and divided proportionately; 


 


In order to receive and hold this collateral, each member of the swap is required to register with the Commodities Futures Trading  


Commission (CFTC) and receive an Interim Compliance Identifier (CICI); execute the proposed Credit Support Annex (Attachment B); 


execute the proposed Bilateral Dodd-Frank (DF) Agreement (Attachment C), and adopt the model resolution declaring its intentions of 


conforming to the provisions of Dodd-Frank and defining the role of the Qualified Independent Representative (QIR) (Attachment A).  


Approval to register with the Commodities Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) and receive an Interim Compliance Identifier (CICI); 


execute the proposed Credit Support Annex; execute the proposed Bilateral Dodd-Frank (DF) Agreement and adopt the model resolution 


to conform to the provisions of Dodd-Frank Act.


Not Applicable - Fayette County has minimum risk exposure ($1.3M of "naked bonds outstanding") and has debt service of $872,000 of 


Certificates of participation outstanding.  


No N/A


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


The County’s CICI registration, adoption of the proposed resolution, and execution of the agreements is needed no later than 30 days 


from date of letter to protect our ability to access collateral if needed in the future. While we don’t have reason to believe JP Morgan will 


default on the swap payments, it is prudent to return the documents in order to minimize additional credit-related risk.


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  
  


  
  


  
  


  
  


The Burgess Building  •   201 Pryor Street, SW    •    Atlanta, GA  30303-3606   •   Tel 404.688.0472   •    Toll Free 888.488.4462  •   Fax 678.686.6289   •     www.gmanet.com 


            
  


Mailing Address: PO Box 105377 ·  Atlanta, GA 30348 


President 


Beth English 


Mayor Pro Tem, Vienna 


 


First Vice President 


Keith Brady 


Mayor, Newnan 


 


Second Vice President 


Mike Bodker 


Mayor, Johns Creek 


 


Third Vice President 


Edna Jackson 


Mayor, Savannah 


 


Immediate Past President 


John Reid 


Mayor, Eatonton 


 


Executive Director 


Lamar Norton 


 


November 5, 2013 
 
Ms. Mary Holland 
Chief Financial Officer 
Fayette County 
140 Stonewall Avenue, West 
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214 
 
 Re: GMA 1998 Lease Pool Dodd-Frank Act Compliance 
 
Dear Ms. Holland, 
 
As Lessor and Sub-Servicer of the GMA 1998A Grantor Trust Certificates of Participation (the 
“98 Pool”), GMA continually monitors public finance market conditions for changes that affect 
this program.  
 
The implementation of the Dodd–Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 
2010 (Dodd-Frank) has resulted in changes that require immediate action by each member to 
ensure compliance.   
 
Necessitating this is a safeguard in the interest rate swap agreement that requires J.P. 
Morgan/Chase Bank (JPM), the interest rate swap provider, to post collateral if its credit 
rating from Moody’s falls below “A1” or its rating from Standard & Poor’s falls below “A+”.  
This collateral provides additional security to the members should JP Morgan’s financial 
condition further deteriorate.  Both of those events have occurred, leaving JPM’s credit 
ratings at “A2” from Moody’s and “A” from S&P. 
 
In order for 98 Pool members to obtain access to this collateral, compliance with Dodd-Frank 
is mandatory.  In order to do so, GMA asks that each member complete the following: 
 


 Obtain a Commodities Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) Interim Compliance 
Identifier (CICI) at www.ciciutility.org  to satisfy the requirement of the Dodd–Frank 
Act of 2010 which requires registration of state and local governments (called “Special 
Entities” in the law) that are parties to interest rate swap agreements.  This places 
responsibility for regulating such agreements with the Commodities Futures Trading 
Commission (CFTC); 


 Adopt the attached resolution; 


 Execute the attached Credit Support Annex (CSA); and 


 Execute the attached Bilateral Dodd-Frank Agreement. 
 
In our role as program administrator GMA has taken the following actions on the County’s 
behalf: 
 
 



http://www.ciciutility.org/





 
 


a. Retained U.S. Bank to serve as custodian of the collateral, which shall consist only of cash and 
those investments authorized under O.C.G.A. §36-80-3; 
 


b. Retained the law firm of Gray, Pannell & Woodward to assist GMA in negotiating the 
aforementioned agreements and coordinating with the County’s attorney (if necessary) 
regarding any and all necessary approvals; 
 


c. Retained PFM Asset Management (i) to periodically determine the market-to-market value of 
the County’s swap and the then current market value of the collateral held by U.S. Bank related 
to that swap to allow GMA to determine whether additional collateral is needed or surplus 
collateral may be released to JPM, and (ii) to serve as Swap Advisor to GMA on behalf of the 
County and other pool participants; 
 


d. Negotiated the attached Credit Support Annex between the County and JPM pursuant to which 
the required collateral will be posted; 
 


e. Negotiated the attached Bilateral DF Agreement between the County and JPM pursuant to 
which all of the representations and warranties required by Dodd-Frank are set forth. 
 


The County’s CICI registration, adoption of the proposed resolution, and execution of the agreements 
in items d. and e. above, is needed no later than 30 days from date of letter to protect your ability to 
access collateral if needed in the future.  While we don’t have reason to believe JP Morgan will default 
on the swap payments, it is prudent to return the documents in order to minimize additional credit-
related risk. 
 
Should you have any questions about the agreements, obtaining the CICI, or any other issues GMA and 
its advisors stand ready to answer any questions the County may have.  Please don’t hesitate to call me. 
  


Sincerely, 


 
Matt Williams  
Manager, Financial Services Programs 


 
Attachments (3) 
 
 
 
 


GMA Dodd-Frank Act Compliance 
November 5, 2013 
Page 2 







A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF AN ISDA 


CREDIT SUPPORT ANNEX, A JP MORGAN MARCH 2013 BILATERAL 


DODD-FRANK AGREEMENT, AND TO AUTHORIZE AND ADOPT 


CERTAIN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR SWAP TRANSACTIONS IN 


COMPLIANCE WITH THE WALL STREET TRANSPARENCY AND 


ACCOUNTABILITY ACT 


WHEREAS, Fayette County, Georgia (the “County”) is a legally created, valid and 


existing political subdivision of the State of Georgia, created and existing under the Constitution 


and laws of the State of Georgia; and 


WHEREAS, the County is a participant in the (GMA) 1998 Georgia Local Government 


1998A Grantor Trust Certificates of Participation equipment loan program (the “Loan 


Program”); and 


WHEREAS, in connection with the Loan Program, the County entered into a 1998A 


Master Lease and Option Agreement Georgia, dated as of June 1, 1998 (the “Lease”), between 


the County and Georgia Municipal Association (“GMA”), under the terms of which GMA leases 


various items of equipment to the County (as described therein) and the County agrees to make 


certain rental payments to GMA; and 


WHEREAS, in connection with the Loan Program, the County entered into an ISDA 


Master Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998 (the “Master Agreement”) and a schedule to the 


Master Agreement (collectively, the “Swap Agreement”) with JPMorgan Chase Bank (formerly, 


Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York) (the “Swap Counterparty”), under the terms of 


which, on a same-day net-payment basis determined by reference to notional amounts equal to 


the principal components of the rental payments under the Lease, (1) the Swap Counterparty 


agrees to pay the County an amount based on interest rates that are identical to the interest rates 


used to determine the interest components of the rental payments under the Lease (the “Swap 


Counterparty Payments”), and (2) the County agrees to pay the Swap Counterparty a floating 


amount (as described therein); and 


WHEREAS, it is proposed that the County amend the Swap Agreement and enter into an 


ISDA Credit Support Annex (the “Credit Support Annex”), between the County and the Swap 


Counterparty, the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, under the terms of which the 


Swap Counterparty will provide additional collateral to secure the payment of the Swap 


Counterparty Payments; and 


WHEREAS, it is proposed that the County appoint GMA, as its agent, in connection with 


a Custody Agreement, between U.S. Bank National Association, as custodian, and GMA, as 


agent for the participant governments in the Loan Program (the “Custody Agreement”), the form 


of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, under the terms of which U.S. Bank National 


Association will serve as the custodian for the collateral provided by the Swap Counterparty to 


secure the payment of the Swap Counterparty Payments (the “Posted Collateral”); and 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

ATTACHMENT A







WHEREAS, pursuant to Title VII of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 


Protection Act (the “Wall Street Transparency and Accountability Act”), enacted in response to 


the financial markets crisis of 2008, participants in over-the-counter derivatives transactions 


(including the Swap Agreement) shall adopt certain policies and procedures and enter into 


certain agreements to ensure compliance with the regulatory requirements of the Wall Street 


Transparency and Accountability Act; and 


WHEREAS, it is proposed that the County enter into a JPM March 2013 Bilateral DF 


Agreement, between the County and the Swap Counterparty (the “Bilateral DF Agreement”), the 


form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C, to ensure compliance with the regulatory 


requirements of the Wall Street Transparency and Accountability Act. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette 


County, Georgia, as follows: 


Section 1. The execution, delivery and performance of the Credit Support Annex are 


hereby authorized.  The Chairman of the Board of Commissioners (the “Chairman”) is hereby 


authorized to execute and deliver the Credit Support Annex on behalf of the County, which 


Credit Support Annex shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A with such 


minor changes, insertions or omissions as may be approved by the Chairman, and the execution 


of the Credit Support Annex by the Chairman as hereby authorized shall be conclusive evidence 


of any such approval. 


 


Section 2. The County hereby appoints GMA as its agent in connection with the 


Custody Agreement.  GMA is hereby authorized to execute, deliver and perform the Custody 


Agreement as agent for the County.   


 


Section 3. The County hereby appoints U.S. Bank National Association as the 


custodian for the Posted Collateral.  


 


Section 4. The execution, delivery and performance of the Bilateral DF Agreement 


are hereby authorized.  The Chairman of the Board of Commissioners (the “Chairman”) is 


hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Bilateral DF Agreement on behalf of the County, 


which Bilateral DF Agreement shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C 


with such minor changes, insertions or omissions as may be approved by the Chairman, and the 


execution of the Bilateral DF Agreement by the Chairman as hereby authorized shall be 


conclusive evidence of any such approval. 


 


Section 5. Pursuant to the Wall Street Transparency and Accountability Act, the 


County hereby designates The PFM Group as its Qualified Independent Representative (“QIR”) 


in connection with the Bilateral DF Agreement.  


 


Section 6. It is the intent of the County to adopt policies and take such actions to 


ensure compliance with the requirements relating to the Wall Street Transparency and 


Accountability Act.  Pursuant to such intent, it is the policy of the County  that:  the designated 


QIR agrees to meet and meets the requirements specified in Commodity Futures Trading 


Commission Regulation 23.450(b)(1) or any successor regulation thereto (herein referred to as 







the “Representative Regulation”); the designated QIR provide a written certification to the 


County to the effect that such designated QIR agrees to meet and meets the requirements 


specified in the Representative Regulation; (iii) County  staff monitor the performance of each 


designated QIR consistent with the requirements specified in the Representative Regulation; (iv) 


County  staff exercise independent judgment in consultation with the County’s designated QIR 


in evaluating all recommendations, if any, presented by any counterparty with respect to 


transactions authorized pursuant to this policy; and (v) County staff rely on the advice of the 


County’s designated QIR with respect to transactions authorized pursuant to this policy and do 


not rely on recommendations, if any, presented by any counterparty with respect to transactions 


authorized pursuant to this policy. 


 
Section 7. From and after the execution and delivery of the documents herein 


authorized, the Chairman and such other proper officers, agents and employees of the County are 


hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such 


documents and certificates as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of 


the documents herein authorized and are further authorized to take any and all further actions and 


to execute and deliver any and all further documents and certificates as may be necessary or 


desirable in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of the documents and the 


compliance with the Wall Street Transparency and Accountability Act herein authorized.  


Without limiting the foregoing, if the Chairman is not available to execute the documents herein 


authorized, the Vice-Chairman shall execute such documents on the Chairman’s behalf. 


 


Section 8. All acts and doings of the officers, agents and employees of the County 


which are in conformity with the purposes and intents of this resolution and in furtherance of the 


execution, delivery and performance of the Credit Support Annex and the Bilateral DF 


Agreement and the compliance with the Wall Street Transparency and Accountability Act shall 


be, and the same hereby are, in all respects, approved and confirmed. 


 


Section 9. No stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained in 


the Credit Support Annex and the Bilateral DF Agreement shall be deemed to be a stipulation, 


obligation or agreement of the Chairman or the Clerk of the County in their individual capacity, 


and neither the Chairman nor the Clerk of the County shall be personally liable under the Credit 


Support Annex and the Bilateral DF Agreement or be subject to personal liability or 


accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. 


 


Section 10. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.  All 


resolutions or parts thereof in conflict with this resolution are hereby repealed. 


  







ADOPTED this ____ day of ______________, 2013. 


 


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


(SEAL)      BY:_______________________________ 


      Chairman 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


BY:__________________________________ 


      Clerk of Commission 







EXHIBIT A 


 


CREDIT SUPPORT ANNEX







EXHIBIT B 


 


CUSTODY AGREEMENT 







EXHIBIT C 


 


BILATERAL DF AGREEMENT 







(Bilateral Form)           (ISDA Agreements Subject to New York Law Only) 


 


 


 


I S D A 


International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. 
 


CREDIT SUPPORT ANNEX 
 


Dated as of __________________, 2013 


 


to the Schedule to the 


 


ISDA Master Agreement 
 


dated as of June 1, 1998 


between 


 


 


 


JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. 


 


(“Party A”) 


and  FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA  


 


(“Party B”) 


 


This Annex supplements, forms part of, and is subject to, the above-referenced Agreement, is part of its Schedule   


and is a Credit Support Document under this Agreement with respect to each party. 


 


Accordingly, the parties agree as follows:-- 


 


Paragraph 1.  Interpretation 


 


(a) Definitions and Inconsistency.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein or elsewhere in this 


Agreement have the meanings specified pursuant to Paragraph 12, and all references in this Annex to Paragraphs    


are to Paragraphs of this Annex.  In the event of any inconsistency between this Annex and the other provisions         


of this Schedule, this Annex will prevail, and in the event of any inconsistency between Paragraph 13 and the other 


provisions of this Annex, Paragraph 13 will prevail. 


 


(b) Secured Party and Pledgor.  All references in this Annex to the “Secured Party” will be to either party   


when acting in that capacity and all corresponding references to the “Pledgor” will be to the other party when     


acting in that capacity; provided, however, that if Other Posted Support is held by a party to this Annex, all   


references herein to that party as the Secured Party with respect to that Other Posted Support will be to that party      


as the beneficiary thereof and will not subject that support or that party as the beneficiary thereof to provisions         


of law generally relating to security interests and secured parties. 


 


Paragraph 2.  Security Interest 


 


Each party, as the Pledgor, hereby pledges to the other party, as the Secured Party, as security for its Obligations,   


and grants to the Secured Party a first priority continuing security interest in, lien on and right of Set-off against       


all Posted Collateral Transferred to or received by the Secured Party hereunder.  Upon the Transfer by the Secured 


Party to the Pledgor of Posted Collateral, the security interest and lien granted hereunder on that Posted Collateral 


will be released immediately and, to the extent possible, without any further action by either party. 


 


 


 


 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

ATTACHMENT B







2 


 


 
Paragraph 3.  Credit Support Obligations 


 


(a) Delivery Amount.   Subject to Paragraphs 4 and 5, upon a demand made by the Secured Party on or  


promptly following a Valuation Date, if the Delivery Amount for that Valuation Date equals or exceeds the   


Pledgor’s Minimum Transfer Amount, then the Pledgor will Transfer to the Secured Party Eligible Credit Support 


having a Value as of the date of Transfer at least equal to the applicable Delivery Amount (rounded pursuant to 


Paragraph 13).  Unless otherwise specified in Paragraph 13, the “Delivery Amount” applicable to the Pledgor for   


any Valuation Date will equal the amount by which: 


 


(i) the Credit Support Amount 


 


 exceeds 


 


(ii) the Value as of that Valuation Date of all Posted Credit Support held by the Secured Party. 


 


(b) Return Amount.  Subject to Paragraphs 4 and 5, upon a demand made by the Pledgor on or promptly 


following a Valuation Date, if the Return Amount for that Valuation Date equals or exceeds the Secured Party’s 


Minimum Transfer Amount, then the Secured Party will Transfer to the Pledgor Posted Credit Support specified      


by the Pledgor in that demand having a Value as of the date of Transfer as close as practicable to the applicable 


Return Amount (rounded pursuant to Paragraph 13).  Unless otherwise specified in Paragraph 13, the “Return 


Amount” applicable to the Secured Party for any Valuation Date will equal the amount by which: 


 


(i) the Value as of that Valuation Date of all Posted Credit Support held by the Secured Party  


 


 exceeds 


 


(ii) the Credit Support Amount. 


 


“Credit Support Amount” means, unless otherwise specified in Paragraph 13, for any Valuation Date (i) the   


Secured Party’s Exposure for that Valuation Date plus (ii) the aggregate of all Independent Amounts applicable        


to the Pledgor, if any, minus (iii) all Independent Amounts applicable to the Secured Party, if any, minus (iv) the 


Pledgor’s Threshold; provided, however, that the Credit Support Amount will be deemed to be zero whenever         


the calculation of Credit Support Amount yields a number less than zero. 


 


Paragraph 4.  Conditions Precedent, Transfer Timing, Calculations and Substitutions 


 


(a) Conditions Precedent.  Each Transfer obligation of the Pledgor under Paragraphs 3 and 5 and of the  


Secured Party under Paragraphs 3, 4(d)(ii), 5 and 6(d) is subject to the conditions precedent that: 


 


(i) no Event of Default, Potential Event of Default or Specified Condition has occurred and is continuing 


with respect to the other party; and 


 


(ii) no Early Termination Date for which any unsatisfied payment obligations exist has occurred or been  


designated as the result of an Event of Default or Specified Condition with respect to the other party. 


 


(b) Transfer Timing.  Subject to Paragraphs 4(a) and 5 and unless otherwise specified, if a demand for the 


Transfer of Eligible Credit Support or Posted Credit Support is made by the Notification Time, then the relevant 


Transfer will be made not later than the close of business on the next Local Business Day; if a demand is made     


after the Notification Time, then the relevant Transfer will be made not later than the close of business on the    


second Local Business Day thereafter. 


 


(c) Calculations.  All calculations of Value and Exposure for purposes of Paragraphs 3 and 6(d) will be made 


by the Valuation Agent as of the Valuation Time.  The Valuation Agent will notify each party (or the other party,      


if the Valuation Agent is a party) of its calculations not later than the Notification Time on the Local Business       


Day following the applicable Valuation Date (or in the case of Paragraph 6(d), following the date of calculation). 







3 


 


(d) Substitutions. 


 


(i) Unless otherwise specified in Paragraph 13, upon notice to the Secured Party specifying the items of 


Posted Credit Support to be exchanged, the Pledgor may, on any Local Business Day, Transfer to the 


Secured Party substitute Eligible Credit Support (the “Substitute Credit Support”); and 


 


(ii) subject to Paragraph 4(a), the Secured Party will Transfer to the Pledgor the items of Posted Credit 


Support  specified by  the  Pledgor  in  its  notice not later than the Local Business Day following the date 


on  which  the Secured Party receives the Substitute Credit Support, unless otherwise specified in 


Paragraph 13 (the “Substitution Date”); provided that the Secured Party will only be obligated to Transfer         


Posted Credit Support with a Value as of the date of Transfer of that Posted Credit Support equal to the 


Value as of that date of the Substitute Credit Support. 


 


 Paragraph 5.  Dispute Resolution 


 


If a party (a “Disputing Party”) disputes (I) the Valuation Agent’s calculation of a Delivery Amount or a Return 


Amount or (II) the Value of any Transfer of Eligible Credit Support or Posted Credit Support, then (1) the       


Disputing Party will notify the other party and the Valuation Agent (if the Valuation Agent is not the other party)   


not later than the close of business on the Local Business Day following (X) the date that the demand is made     


under Paragraph 3 in the case of (I) above or (Y) the date of Transfer in the case of (II) above, (2) subject to 


Paragraph 4(a), the appropriate party will Transfer the undisputed amount to the other party not later than the       


close of business on the Local Business Day following (X) the date that the demand is made under Paragraph 3         


in the case of (I) above or (Y) the date of Transfer in the case of (II) above, (3) the parties will consult with each  


other in an attempt to resolve the dispute and (4) if they fail to resolve the dispute by the Resolution Time, then: 


 


(i) In  the  case  of  a dispute involving a Delivery Amount or Return Amount, unless otherwise specified 


in Paragraph 13, the Valuation Agent will recalculate the Exposure and the Value as of the Recalculation 


Date by: 


 


(A) utilizing any calculations of Exposure for the Transactions (or Swap Transactions) that the parties 


have agreed are not in dispute;  


 


(B) calculating the Exposure for the Transactions (or Swap Transactions) in dispute by seeking four 


actual quotations at mid-market from Reference Market-makers for purposes of calculating Market 


Quotation, and taking the arithmetic average of those obtained; provided that if four quotations are not 


available for a particular Transaction (or Swap Transaction), then fewer than four quotations may be 


used for that Transaction (or Swap Transaction); and if no quotations are available for a particular 


Transaction (or Swap Transaction), then the Valuation Agent’s original calculations will be used for 


that Transaction (or Swap Transaction); and 


 


(C) utilizing the procedures specified in Paragraph 13 for calculating the Value, if disputed, of Posted 


Credit Support. 


 


(ii) In  the case of a dispute involving the Value of any Transfer of Eligible Credit Support or Posted 


Credit Support, the Valuation Agent will recalculate the Value as of the date of Transfer pursuant to 


Paragraph 13. 


 


Following  a  recalculation  pursuant to this Paragraph, the Valuation Agent will notify each party (or the other 


party, if the Valuation Agent is a party)  not later than the Notification Time on the Local Business Day following 


the  Resolution  Time.   The appropriate  party  will, upon  demand  following  that notice by the Valuation Agent or 


a resolution pursuant to (3) above and subject to Paragraphs 4(a) and 4(b), make the appropriate Transfer. 







4 


 


Paragraph 6.  Holding and Using Posted Collateral 


 


(a) Care of Posted Collateral.  Without limiting the Secured Party’s rights under Paragraph 6(c), the Secured 


Party will exercise reasonable care to assure the safe custody of all Posted Collateral to the extent required by 


applicable  law,  and  in  any  event  the  Secured  Party  will  be  deemed  to  have  exercised  reasonable care if it 


exercises at  least  the same  degree of care  as it would exercise with respect to its own property.  Except as 


specified  in the preceding sentence, the Secured  Party will have no duty with respect to Posted Collateral, 


including, without limitation, any duty to collect any Distributions, or enforce or preserve any rights pertaining 


thereto. 


 


(b) Eligibility to Hold Posted Collateral; Custodians. 


 


(i) General.  Subject to the satisfaction of any conditions specified in Paragraph 13 for holding Posted 


Collateral,  the Secured Party will be entitled to hold Posted Collateral or to appoint an agent (a 


“Custodian”) to hold Posted Collateral for the Secured Party.  Upon notice by the Secured Party to the 


Pledgor of the appointment of a Custodian, the Pledgor’s obligations to make any Transfer will be 


discharged  by making  the Transfer to  that  Custodian.  The holding of Posted Collateral by a Custodian 


will  be deemed  to be the  holding of  that Posted  Collateral by the Secured Party for which the Custodian 


is acting. 


 


(ii) Failure to Satisfy Conditions.   If  the Secured Party or its Custodian fails to satisfy any conditions 


for holding Posted Collateral, then upon a demand made by the Pledgor, the Secured Party will, not later 


than five Local Business Days after the demand, Transfer or cause its Custodian to Transfer all Posted 


Collateral  held by  it to a Custodian  that satisfies those conditions or to the Secured Party if it satisfies 


those conditions.  


 


(iii) Liability.  The Secured Party will be liable for the acts or omissions of its Custodian to the same 


extent that the Secured Party would be liable hereunder for its own acts or omissions. 


 


(c) Use of Posted Collateral.   Unless otherwise specified in Paragraph 13 and without limiting the rights and 


obligations of the parties under Paragraphs  3,  4(d)(ii),  5,  6(d) and 8, if the Secured Party is not a Defaulting Party 


or an Affected Party with respect to a Specified Condition and no Early Termination Date has occurred or been 


designated as the result of an Event of Default or Specified Condition with respect to the Secured Party, then the 


Secured  Party will,  notwithstanding  Section  9-207 of  the New York  Uniform Commercial  Code, have the right 


to: 


 


(i) sell,  pledge,  rehypothecate, assign, invest, use, commingle or otherwise dispose of, or otherwise use 


in  its business any  Posted Collateral  it holds,  free from any  claim or  right of any nature whatsoever of 


the Pledgor, including any equity or right of redemption by the Pledgor; and 


 


(ii) register any Posted Collateral in the name of the Secured Party, its Custodian or a nominee for either. 


  


For  purposes of  the obligation  to Transfer  Eligible Credit  Support or  Posted Credit Support pursuant to 


Paragraphs  3 and  5 and any rights or remedies  authorized under this Agreement, the  Secured Party  will be 


deemed to continue to hold all Posted Collateral and to receive Distributions made thereon, regardless of whether 


the Secured Party has exercised any rights with respect to any Posted Collateral pursuant to (i) or (ii) above.   


 


(d) Distributions and Interest Amount. 


 


(i) Distributions.  Subject to Paragraph 4(a), if the Secured Party receives or is deemed to receive 


Distributions on a Local Business Day, it will Transfer to the Pledgor not later than the following Local 


Business Day any Distributions it receives or is deemed to receive to the extent that a Delivery Amount 


would  not be  created or increased  by  that Transfer, as calculated by  the Valuation Agent  (and the date 


of calculation will be deemed to be a Valuation Date for this purpose). 


 







5 


 


(ii) Interest Amount.  Unless otherwise specified in Paragraph 13 and subject to Paragraph 4(a), in lieu 


of any interest, dividends or other amounts paid or deemed to have been paid with respect to Posted 


Collateral  in the  form of Cash (all of  which may be  retained by the Secured Party), the Secured Party 


will  Transfer to  the Pledgor at the times  specified in  Paragraph 13 the Interest Amount to the extent that 


a Delivery Amount would not be created or increased by that Transfer, as calculated by the Valuation 


Agent (and the date of calculation will be deemed to be a Valuation Date for this purpose).  The Interest 


Amount  or portion thereof  not Transferred pursuant  to  this Paragraph  will constitute  Posted Collateral 


in the form of Cash and will be subject to the security interest granted under Paragraph 2. 


 


Paragraph 7.  Events of Default 


 


For  purposes  of  Section 5(a)(iii)(1)  of  this  Agreement,  an  Event  of  Default will exist with respect to a party if: 


 


(i) that party fails (or fails to cause its Custodian) to make, when due, any Transfer of Eligible 


Collateral, Posted Collateral or the Interest Amount, as applicable, required to be made by it and that failure 


continues for two Local Business Days after notice of that failure is given to that party; 


 


(ii) that party fails to comply with any restriction or prohibition specified in this Annex with respect to 


any of the rights specified in Paragraph 6(c) and that failure continues for five Local Business Days after 


notice of that failure is given to that party; or 


 


(iii) that party fails to comply with or perform any agreement or obligation other than those specified 


in  Paragraphs  7(i) and  7(ii) and that failure continues for 30 days after notice of that failure is given to 


that party. 


 


Paragraph 8.  Certain Rights and Remedies 


 


(a) Secured Party’s Rights and Remedies.  If at any time (1) an Event of  Default or Specified Condition with 


respect to the Pledgor has occurred and is continuing or (2) an Early Termination Date has occurred or been 


designated  as the result of an Event of  Default or Specified Condition  with respect to the  Pledgor,  then,  unless 


the  Pledgor has paid  in full all of its Obligations  that are then due, the Secured  Party may  exercise  one or more 


of the following rights and remedies: 


 


(i) all rights and remedies available to a secured party under applicable law with respect to Posted 


Collateral held by the Secured Party; 


 


(ii) any other rights and remedies available to the Secured Party under the terms of Other Posted Support, 


if any; 


 


(iii) the right to Set-off any amounts payable by the Pledgor with respect to any Obligations against any 


Posted Collateral or the Cash equivalent of any Posted Collateral held by the Secured Party (or any 


obligation of the Secured Party to Transfer that Posted Collateral); and 


 


(iv) the  right  to  liquidate any Posted  Collateral held by the Secured  Party through  one or  more public 


or private  sales or other dispositions with  such  notice, if any, as  may  be required under applicable law, 


free from any claim or right of any nature whatsoever of the Pledgor, including any equity or right of 


redemption by the Pledgor (with the Secured Party having the right to purchase any or all of the Posted 


Collateral to be sold) and  to apply the proceeds (or  the  Cash equivalent thereof) from the liquidation of 


the Posted Collateral to any amounts payable by  the  Pledgor with respect to any Obligations in that order 


as the Secured Party may elect. 


 


Each party acknowledges and agrees that Posted Collateral in the form of securities may decline speedily in value 


and  is of  a type customarily sold on  a  recognized  market,  and, accordingly, the Pledgor is not entitled to prior 


notice  of  any  sale of that Posted Collateral by the Secured Party, except any notice that is required under 


applicable law and cannot be waived. 







6 


 


 (b) Pledgor’s Rights and Remedies.   If at any time an Early Termination Date has occurred or been 


designated  as the result of an Event of Default or Specified Condition with respect to the Secured Party, then 


(except  in the  case of an Early Termination Date relating to less than all Transactions (or Swap Transactions) 


where  the Secured Party has paid in full all of its obligations that are then due under Section 6(e) of this 


Agreement): 


 


(i) the Pledgor may exercise all rights and remedies available to a pledgor under applicable law with 


respect to Posted Collateral held by the Secured Party;  


 


(ii) the Pledgor may exercise any other rights and remedies available to the Pledgor under the terms of 


Other Posted Support, if any; 


 


(iii) the Secured Party will be obligated immediately to Transfer all Posted Collateral and the Interest 


Amount to the Pledgor; and 


 


(iv) to  the  extent  that  Posted  Collateral  or  the Interest  Amount  is  not so  Transferred  pursuant  to  


(iii) above, the Pledgor may: 


 


(A) Set-off any amounts payable by the Pledgor with respect to any Obligations against any Posted 


Collateral or the Cash equivalent of any Posted Collateral held by the Secured Party (or any obligation 


of the Secured Party to Transfer that Posted Collateral); and 


 


(B) to the extent that the Pledgor does not Set-off under (iv)(A) above, withhold payment of any 


remaining amounts payable by the Pledgor with respect to any Obligations, up to the Value of any 


remaining  Posted Collateral held by the Secured Party, until that Posted Collateral is Transferred to 


the Pledgor. 


 


(c) Deficiencies and Excess Proceeds.  The Secured Party will Transfer to the Pledgor any proceeds and 


Posted Credit Support remaining after liquidation, Set-off and/or application under Paragraphs 8(a) and 8(b) after 


satisfaction in full of all amounts payable by the Pledgor with respect to any Obligations; the Pledgor in all events 


will remain liable for any amounts remaining unpaid after any liquidation, Set-off and/or application under 


Paragraphs 8(a) and 8(b). 


 


(d) Final Returns.  When  no amounts are or thereafter may become payable by the Pledgor with respect to 


any Obligations (except for any potential liability under Section 2(d) of this Agreement), the Secured Party will 


Transfer to the Pledgor all Posted Credit Support and the Interest Amount, if any. 


 


Paragraph 9. Representations 


 


Each party represents to the other party (which representations will be deemed to be repeated as of each date on 


which it, as the Pledgor, Transfers Eligible Collateral) that: 


 


(i) it has the power to grant a security interest in and lien on any Eligible Collateral it Transfers as the 


Pledgor and has taken all necessary actions to authorize the granting of that security interest and lien; 


 


(ii) it is the sole owner of or otherwise has the right to Transfer all Eligible Collateral it Transfers to the 


Secured Party hereunder, free and clear of any security interest, lien, encumbrance or other restrictions 


other than the security interest and lien granted under Paragraph 2;   


 


(iii) upon the Transfer of any Eligible Collateral to the Secured Party under the terms of this Annex, the 


Secured Party will have a valid and perfected first priority security interest  therein (assuming that any 


central clearing corporation or any third-party financial intermediary or other entity not within the control 


of the Pledgor involved in the Transfer of that Eligible Collateral gives the notices and takes the action 


required of it under applicable law for perfection of that interest); and 


 


(iv) the performance by it of its obligations under this Annex will not result in the creation of any 


security  interest,  lien or other encumbrance  on any  Posted Collateral  other  than  the security interest and 


lien granted under Paragraph 2. 


 







7 


 


Paragraph 10. Expenses 
 


(a) General.  Except as otherwise provided in Paragraphs 10(b) and 10(c), each party will pay its own costs 


and  expenses in  connection with performing its obligations under this Annex and neither party will be liable for 


any costs and expenses incurred by the other party in connection herewith. 


 


(b) Posted Credit Support.  The Pledgor will promptly pay when due all taxes, assessments or charges of any 


nature  that  are imposed  with  respect  to  Posted  Credit  Support  held by the Secured Party upon becoming aware 


of the same, regardless of whether any portion of that Posted Credit Support is subsequently disposed of under 


Paragraph  6(c),  except  for  those taxes, assessments and charges that result from the exercise of the Secured 


Party’s rights under Paragraph 6(c). 


 


(c) Liquidation/Application of Posted Credit Support.  All reasonable costs and expenses incurred by or on 


behalf  of  the Secured Party or the Pledgor in connection with the liquidation and/or application of any Posted 


Credit Support under Paragraph 8 will be payable, on demand and pursuant to the Expenses Section of this 


Agreement, by the Defaulting Party or, if there is no Defaulting Party, equally by the parties. 


 


Paragraph 11. Miscellaneous 


 


(a) Default Interest.  A Secured Party that fails to make, when due, any Transfer of Posted Collateral or the 


Interest  Amount will be obligated  to pay the Pledgor (to the extent permitted under applicable law) an amount 


equal to interest at the Default Rate multiplied by the Value of the items of property that were required to be 


Transferred,  from (and  including)  the date that Posted Collateral or Interest Amount was required to be 


Transferred to (but excluding) the date of Transfer of that Posted Collateral or Interest  Amount.  This interest will 


be calculated on the basis of daily compounding and the actual number of days elapsed. 


 


(b) Further Assurances.  Promptly following a demand made by a party, the other party will execute, deliver, 


file and record  any financing statement, specific assignment or other document and take any other action that may 


be necessary or desirable and  reasonably requested  by  that party to create, preserve, perfect or validate any 


security interest or lien granted under Paragraph 2, to enable that party to exercise or enforce its rights under this 


Annex  with respect to Posted Credit Support or  an  Interest Amount  or  to effect or document a release of a 


security interest on Posted Collateral or an Interest Amount. 


 


(c) Further Protection.  The Pledgor will promptly give notice to the Secured Party of, and defend against, 


any suit, action, proceeding or lien that involves Posted Credit Support Transferred by the Pledgor or that could 


adversely affect the security interest and lien  granted  by  it under Paragraph 2, unless that suit, action, proceeding 


or lien results from the exercise of the Secured Party’s rights under Paragraph 6(c). 


 


(d) Good Faith and Commercially Reasonable Manner.  Performance of all obligations under this Annex, 


including, but not  limited  to,  all  calculations,  valuations  and determinations made by either party, will be made 


in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner. 


 


(e) Demands and Notices.  All demands and notices made by a party under this Annex will be made as 


specified in the Notices Section of this Agreement, except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 13. 


 


(f) Specifications of Certain Matters.  Anything  referred to  in  this  Annex as being specified in Paragraph 


13 also may be specified in one or more Confirmations or other documents and this Annex will be construed 


accordingly. 


 







8 


 


Paragraph 12. Definitions 


 


As used in this Annex:-- 


 


“Cash” means the lawful currency of the United States of America. 


 


“Credit Support Amount” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 3. 


 


“Custodian” has the meaning specified in Paragraphs 6(b)(i) and 13. 


 


“Delivery Amount” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 3(a). 


 


“Disputing Party” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 5. 


 


“Distributions” means with respect to Posted Collateral other than Cash, all principal, interest and other payments 


and  distributions of cash or other property with respect thereto, regardless of whether the Secured Party has 


disposed  of that  Posted Collateral under Paragraph 6(c).  Distributions will not include any item of property 


acquired by the Secured Party upon any disposition or  liquidation of  Posted Collateral or, with respect to any 


Posted Collateral in the form of Cash, any distributions on that collateral, unless otherwise specified herein. 


 


“Eligible Collateral” means, with  respect  to a  party,  the  items,  if  any,  specified  as  such  for  that  party  in 


Paragraph 13. 


 


“Eligible Credit Support” means Eligible Collateral and Other Eligible Support. 


 


“Exposure”  means  for any Valuation  Date  or  other date  for  which  Exposure  is  calculated  and  subject  to 


Paragraph  5  in  the  case  of  a  dispute,  the  amount,  if  any,  that  would  be  payable to a party that is the Secured 


Party by the other party (expressed as a positive number) or by a party that is the Secured Party to the other party 


(expressed as a negative number) pursuant to Section 6(e)(ii)(2)(A) of this Agreement as if all Transactions (or 


Swap Transactions)  were  being  terminated as of the relevant Valuation Time;  provided  that Market Quotation 


will be determined by the Valuation  Agent  using  its estimates  at mid-market of the amounts that would be paid 


for Replacement Transactions (as that term is defined in the definition of “Market Quotation”). 


 


“Independent Amount” means, with respect to a party,  the  amount  specified  as  such  for  that party  in Paragraph 


13; if no amount is specified, zero. 


 


“Interest Amount” means,  with respect to an Interest Period, the aggregate sum of the amounts of interest 


calculated for each day in  that  Interest Period on the principal  amount of Posted Collateral in the form of Cash 


held by the Secured Party on that day, determined by the Secured Party for each such day as follows: 


 


 (x) the amount of that Cash on that day; multiplied by 


 


 (y) the Interest Rate in effect for that day; divided by 


 


 (z) 360. 


 


“Interest Period” means  the period  from (and including) the  last Local Business  Day on which an Interest 


Amount was Transferred (or, if no Interest Amount has yet been Transferred, the Local Business Day on which 


Posted  Collateral in the form of Cash was  Transferred to or received by the  Secured  Party) to  (but  excluding)  


the Local Business Day on which the current Interest Amount is to be Transferred. 


 


“Interest Rate” means the rate specified in Paragraph 13. 


 


“Local Business Day”, unless otherwise specified in Paragraph 13, has the meaning specified in the Definitions 


Section  of  this  Agreement, except that  references to a  payment  in clause  (b)  thereof  will  be deemed to  include  


a Transfer under this Annex. 







9 


 


“Minimum Transfer Amount” means, with respect to a party, the amount specified as such for that party in 


Paragraph 13; if no amount is specified, zero. 


 


“Notification Time” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 13. 


 


“Obligations” means, with respect to a party, all present and future obligations of that party under this Agreement 


and any additional obligations specified for that party in Paragraph 13. 


 


“Other Eligible Support” means, with respect to a party, the items, if any, specified as such for that party in 


Paragraph 13. 


 


“Other Posted Support” means  all Other Eligible Support Transferred to the Secured Party that remains in effect 


for the benefit of that Secured Party. 


 


“Pledgor” means either party, when that party (i) receives a demand for or is required to Transfer Eligible Credit 


Support under Paragraph 3(a) or (ii) has Transferred Eligible Credit Support under Paragraph 3(a). 


 


“Posted Collateral” means all Eligible Collateral, other property, Distributions, and all proceeds thereof that have 


been  Transferred  to  or  received by the Secured Party under this Annex and not Transferred to the Pledgor 


pursuant to Paragraph 3(b), 4(d)(ii) or 6(d)(i) or released by the Secured Party under Paragraph 8.  Any Interest 


Amount or portion thereof not Transferred pursuant to Paragraph 6(d)(ii) will constitute Posted Collateral in the 


form of Cash. 


 


“Posted Credit Support” means Posted Collateral and Other Posted Support. 


 


“Recalculation Date” means  the Valuation  Date that  gives rise to the dispute under Paragraph 5; provided, 


however,  that  if a  subsequent Valuation Date  occurs under  Paragraph  3 prior to the  resolution of the dispute, then 


the “Recalculation Date” means the most recent Valuation Date under Paragraph 3. 


 


“Resolution Time” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 13. 


“Return Amount” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 3(b). 


 


“Secured Party” means either party, when that  party (i)  makes a  demand for or is entitled to receive Eligible 


Credit Support under Paragraph 3(a) or (ii) holds or is deemed to hold Posted Credit Support. 


 


“Specified Condition” means, with respect to a party, any event specified as such for that party in Paragraph 13. 


“Substitute Credit Support” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 4(d)(i). 


“Substitution Date” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 4(d)(ii). 


 


“Threshold” means, with respect to a party, the amount specified as such for that party in Paragraph 13; if no 


amount is specified, zero. 


 


“Transfer” means, with  respect to any Eligible  Credit Support, Posted  Credit  Support  or  Interest  Amount, and 


in accordance with the instructions of the Secured Party, Pledgor or Custodian, as applicable: 


 


(i) in  the  case of  Cash,  payment or  delivery  by  wire transfer  into  one or more bank accounts  specified  


by the recipient; 


 


(ii) in  the  case of  certificated  securities that cannot  be paid or delivered by book-entry,  payment  or  


delivery in appropriate physical form to the recipient or its account accompanied by any duly executed 


instruments of transfer, assignments in blank, transfer tax stamps and any other documents necessary to 


constitute a legally valid transfer to the recipient. 


 


(iii) in  the  case  of  securities that can  be  paid  or  delivered by book-entry, the giving of written instructions 


to  the  relevant  depository  institution  or  other entity specified  by  the recipient,  together  with a  written  


copy  thereof  to  the  recipient,  sufficient  if  complied with to result in a legally effective transfer of the 


relevant interest to the recipient; and 


 


(iv) in the case of Other Eligible Support or Other Posted Support, as specified in Paragraph 13. 







10 


 


 


“Valuation Agent” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 13. 


 


“Valuation Date” means each date specified in or otherwise determined pursuant to Paragraph 13. 


 


“Valuation Percentage” means, for any item of Eligible Collateral, the percentage specified in Paragraph 13. 


 


“Valuation Time” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 13. 


 


“Value”  means  for  any  Valuation  Date  or  other  date  for  which  Value is calculated and subject to Paragraph 5 


in the case of a dispute, with respect to: 


 


(i) Eligible Collateral or Posted Collateral that is: 


 


(A) Cash, the amount thereof; and 


 


(B) a security, the bid price obtained by the Valuation Agent multiplied by the applicable Valuation 


Percentage, if any: 


 


(ii) Posted Collateral that consists of items that are not specified as Eligible Collateral, zero; and 


 


(iii) Other Eligible Support and Other Posted Support, as specified in Paragraph 13. 


 


Paragraph 13.  Elections and Variables 
 


(a) Security Interest for “Obligations”.  The term “Obligations” as used in this Annex includes no 


additional obligations with respect to either party. 


 


(b) Credit Support Obligations.   


 


(i) Delivery Amount, Return Amount and Credit Support Amount. 


 


(A)   “Delivery Amount” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 3(a). 


 


(B) “Return Amount” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 3(b). 


 


(C) “Credit Support Amount” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 3(b). 


 







11 


 


 


(ii) Eligible Collateral.  The following items will qualify as “Eligible Collateral”:   


 


 
  


ISDA COLLATERAL 


ASSET DEFINITION 


(ICAD) CODE 


 


REMAINING MATURITY FROM THE 


VALUATION DATE 


 


 


VALUATION 


 PERCENTAGE 


(1) US-CASH  Not applicable 100% 


(2) US-TBILL,  US-TNOTE, US-


TBOND, US-TIPS 


Less than 1 year 


From 1 year, up to and including 5 years 


More than 5 years, up to and including 10 years 


More than 10 years 


 


96% 


96% 


96% 


91% 


(3) US-STRIP  All maturities 84% 


(4) US-GNMA  Less than 1 year 


From 1 year, up to and including 5 years 


More than 5 years, up to and including 10 years 


More than 10 years 


 


96% 


96% 


96% 


91% 


 


 


Party B shall provide notice to Party A if any of the securities listed above as Eligible Collateral are not legally 


authorized investments of governing bodies under the laws of the State.    


 


The definitions used in this Annex are taken from the ISDA publication “Collateral Asset Definitions” (First 


Edition – June 2003), and are set forth in Paragraph (l) of this Annex. 


 


    (iii) Other Eligible Support.  There shall be no “Other Eligible Support” for either party for purposes of this 


Annex, unless agreed in writing between the parties. 


 


(iv)    Thresholds.   


 


(A) “Independent Amount” shall not apply for purposes of this Annex. 


 


 (B) “Threshold” means, (i) with respect to Party A, the amounts determined on the basis of the 


lower of the Credit Ratings set forth in the following table, provided, however, that if (a) 


Party A has no Credit Rating, or (b) an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing with 


respect to Party A, Party A’s Threshold shall be U.S.$0 and (ii) with respect to Party B, 


infinity:   


 


CREDIT RATING 


(S&P / Moody's)  


 


THRESHOLD  


Party A 


 


AA-/Aa3 and above Infinity 


A+/A1 and below US$0 


 


As used herein: 


 


“Credit Rating” means, with respect to a party, the rating assigned by either S&P or Moody's to 


the long term, unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of such party, or, if applicable, the 


Credit Support Provider of such party. 


 


“Moody’s” shall mean Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or its successor. 


 







12 


 


“S&P” shall mean Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group, or its successor. 


 


(C) “Minimum Transfer Amount” means, with respect to a party, U.S.$250,000, provided, however, 


that if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing with respect to a party, the Minimum 


Transfer Amount with respect to such party shall be U.S.$0. 


 


(D) Rounding.  The Delivery Amount and the Return Amount will be rounded up and down to the 


nearest integral multiple of U.S.$10,000, respectively. 


 


(c) Valuation and Timing. 


 


(i)  “Valuation Agent” means the party making the demand under Paragraph 3, unless there has 


occurred and is continuing any Event of Default, Potential Event of Default or Additional 


Termination Event with respect to such party, in which case the other party shall be the Valuation 


Agent. 


 


(ii)  “Valuation Date” means any Local Business Day. 


 


(iii)  “Valuation Time” means the close of business in the city of the Valuation Agent on the Local 


Business Day immediately preceding the Valuation Date or date of calculation, as applicable;  


 


provided that the calculations of Value and Exposure will be made as of approximately the same 


time on the same date.  


 


(iv)  “Notification Time” means by 12:00 noon, New York time, on a Local Business Day. 


 


 (v) Events of Default. Paragraph 7(i) of the Credit Support Annex is hereby amended by deleting the 


word “two” in the third line thereof and replacing it with the word “one”.  


 


(d) Conditions Precedent.  With respect to Party A, any Additional Termination Event (if Party A is the 


Affected Party with respect to such Termination Event) will be a “Specified Condition”.  With 


respect to Party B, any Additional Termination Event (if Party B is the Affected Party with respect to 


such Termination Event) will be a “Specified Condition”. 


 


(e) Substitution. 


 


(i)  “Substitution Date” has the meaning specified in Paragraph 4(d)(ii). 


 


(ii)  Consent.  Inapplicable.  


 


(f) Dispute Resolution. 


 


(i)  “Resolution Time” means 12:00 noon, New York time, on the Local Business Day following the 


date on which notice is given that gives rise to a dispute under Paragraph 5. 


 


(ii)  Value.  For the purpose of Paragraphs 5(i)(C) and 5(ii), the Value of Posted Credit Support other 


than US-Cash will be calculated as follows:  


 


(A)   with respect to any Eligible Collateral except US-Cash, the sum of (I) (x) the mean of 


the high bid and low asked prices quoted on such date by two principal market makers for 


such Eligible Collateral chosen by the Disputing Party, or (y) if no quotations are available 


from two principal market makers for such date, the mean of such high bid and low asked 


prices as of the first day prior to such date on which such quotations were available, plus 


(II) the accrued interest on such Eligible Collateral (except to the extent Transferred to a 


party pursuant to any applicable provision of this Agreement or included in the applicable 


price referred to in (I) of this clause (A)) as of such date; multiplied by the applicable 


Valuation Percentage. 


 


(iii)  The provisions of Paragraph 5 will apply. 


 







13 


 


(g) Holding and Using Posted Collateral. 


 


(i)  Eligibility to Hold Posted Collateral; Custodians.   


 


Party A will be entitled to hold Posted Collateral itself or through a Custodian pursuant to Paragraph 


6(b), provided that the following conditions applicable to it are satisfied:   


 


(1)  Party A is not a Defaulting Party. 


 


(2)  The Custodian is a Bank (as defined in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act) whose rating 


with respect to its long term unsecured, unsubordinated indebtedness is at least BBB+ by 


S&P or Baa1 by Moody's. 


 


Party B will be entitled to hold Posted Collateral itself or through a Custodian pursuant to Paragraph 


6(b), provided that the following conditions applicable to it are satisfied:   


 


(1)  Party B is not a Defaulting Party. 


 


(2)  The Custodian is a Bank (as defined in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act) whose rating 


with respect to its long term unsecured, unsubordinated indebtedness is at least BBB+ by 


S&P or Baa1 by Moody's. 


   


(ii)  Use of Posted Collateral.  The provisions of Paragraph 6(c) will apply to both parties. 


 


(h) Distributions and Interest Amount.   


 


(i)  Interest Rate. The Interest Rate for any day means the greater of (x) 0% or (y) the Federal Funds 


Overnight Rate. For the purposes hereof, “Federal Funds Overnight Rate” means, for any day, an 


interest rate per annum equal to the rate published as the Federal Funds Effective Rate that appears on 


Telerate Page 118 or on Bloomberg Page FEDL01 for such day. 


 


(ii) Transfer of Interest Amount. The transfer of the Interest Amount will be made monthly on the 


second Local Business Day of each calendar month. 


 


(iii)  Alternative to Interest Amount.  The provisions of Paragraph 6(d)(ii) will apply. 


 


(i) Additional Representations.   None. 


 


(j) Other Eligible Support and Other Posted Support.   


 


(i)  “Value” shall have no meaning with respect to either party with respect to Other Eligible Support 


and Other Posted Support. 


 


(ii)  “Transfer” shall have no meaning with respect to either party with respect to Other Eligible                      


Support and Other Posted Support. 


 


(k) Demands and Notices.   


 


(i) All demands, specifications and notices made by a party to this Annex will be made pursuant 


to the Notices Section of this Agreement, unless otherwise specified here:   


 


With respect to Party A: 


JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association 


Collateral Middle Office Americas 3/OPS2  


500 Stanton Christiana Road 


Newark, Delaware  19713  


Telephone No.:  (302) 634-3154 


Facsimile No.:  (302) 634-3270 


Email: collateral_services@jpmorgan.com 


 







14 


 


With respect to Party B: 


Fayette County  


140 Stonewall Avenue, West  


Fayetteville, GA 30214  


ATTN: Chief Financial Officer  


Telephone Number (770) 461-6041 


 


(ii) Section 12 of this Agreement shall be amended by inserting “or email” after “electronic 


messaging system” in the third line thereof, deleting “or” after clause (iv) thereof, and by adding the 


following clause (vi): 


 


“(vi) if sent by e-mail, on the date it is delivered,” 


 


(l) Collateral Asset Definitions.  As used in this Annex, the following definitions are specified below: 


 


US-CASH - United States of America Dollar (USD) Cash. 


The lawful currency of the United States of America. 


 


US-TBILL -  US Treasury Bills. 


Negotiable debt obligations issued pursuant to USC Title 31, Chapter 31, Section 3104 by the 


Department of the Treasury backed by the credit of the United States of America, having a maturity at 


issuance of no greater than 1 year. 


 


US-TNOTE -  US Treasury Notes. 


Negotiable debt obligations issued pursuant to USC Title 31, Chapter 31, Section 3103 by the 


Department of the Treasury backed by the credit of the United States of America, having a maturity at 


issuance of at least 1 year but less than 10 years. 


 


US-TBOND - US Treasury Bonds. 


Negotiable debt obligations issued pursuant to USC Title 31, Chapter 31, Section 3102 by the 


Department of the Treasury backed by the credit of the United States of America. 


 


US-TIPS -  US Treasury Inflation Protected Issues (TIPS). 


Securities issued by the Department of the Treasury backed by the credit of the United States of 


America where the principal is changed based on changes of the consumer price index. 


 


US-STRIP - US Treasury Strips. 


Securities issued by the Department of the Treasury backed by the credit of the United States of 


America that represent either interest components or principal components stripped from underlying 


US treasury obligations under the program of the Department of the Treasury called “Separate 


Trading of Registered Interest and Principal Securities”. 


 


US-GNMA - Callable Agency Debt – Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) 


Fixed-rate, callable, non-amortizing U.S. Dollar denominated debt securities in book entry form issued 


by GNMA the full and timely payment of principal and interest of which is guaranteed by the U.S. 


Government. 


 


US-FNMA - Callable Agency Debt – Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or Fannie Mae). 


Fixed-rate, callable, non-amortizing U.S. Dollar denominated senior debt securities in book entry form 


issued by FNMA. 


 


US-FHLMC - Callable Agency Debt – the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or 


Freddie Mac). 


Fixed-rate, callable, non-amortizing U.S. Dollar denominated senior debt securities in book entry form 


issued by FHLMC. 


 


US-NCAD - Non-Callable Agency Debt – Various Issuers. 


Fixed-rate, non-callable, non-amortizing U.S. Dollar denominated senior debt securities of fixed 


maturity in book entry form issued by GNMA, FNMA or FHLMC. 


 







15 


 


US-NCADN - Non-Callable Agency Discount Notes – Various Issuers. 


Non-callable U.S. Dollar denominated discount notes sold at a discount from their principal amount 


payable at maturity with an original maturity of 360 days or less in book entry form and issued by 


GNMA, FNMA or FHLMC. 


 


US-GNMAMBS - Government National Mortgage Association Certificates – Mortgage Backed 


Securities (GNMA or Ginnie Mae). 


Single-class fully modified pass-through certificates (GNMA Certificates) in book-entry form backed 


by single-family residential mortgage loans, the full and timely payment of principal and interest of 


which is guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association (excluding Real Estate 


Mortgage Investment Conduit (REMIC) or other multi-class pass-through certificates, collateralized 


mortgage obligations, pass-through certificates backed by adjustable rate mortgages, securities paying 


interest or principal only and derivatives and similar derivatives securities). 


 


US-FNMAMBS - Federal National Mortgage Association Certificates – Mortgage Backed Securities  


Single-class mortgage participation certificates (FNMA Certificates) in book-entry form backed by 


single-family residential mortgage loans, the full and timely payment of interest at the applicable 


certificate rate and the ultimate collection of principal of which are guaranteed by the Federal 


National Mortgage Association (excluding Real Estate Mortgage Investment Conduit (REMIC) or 


other multi-class pass-through certificates, collateralized mortgage obligations, pass-through 


certificates backed by adjustable rate mortgages, securities paying interest or principal only and 


derivatives and similar derivatives securities). 


 


US-FHLMCMBS - Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Certificates – Mortgage Backed 


Securities  


Single-class mortgage participation certificates (FHLMC Certificates) in book-entry form backed by 


single-family residential mortgage loans, the full and timely payment of interest at the applicable 


certificate rate and the ultimate collection of principal of which are guaranteed by the Federal Home 


Loan Mortgage Corporation (excluding Real Estate Mortgage Investment Conduit (REMIC) or other 


multi-class pass-through certificates, collateralized mortgage obligations, pass-through certificates 


backed by adjustable rate mortgages, securities paying interest or principal only and derivatives and 


similar derivatives securities). 


 


(m) Other Provisions.  Agreement as to Single Secured Party and Pledgor. Party A and Party B agree 


that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the recital to this Annex, Paragraph 1 (b) or Paragraph 2 or the 


definitions in Paragraph 12, (a) the term “Secured Party” as used in this Annex means only Party B, (b) the term 


“Pledgor” as used in this Annex means only Party A, (c) only Party A makes the pledge and grant in Paragraph 


2, the acknowledgement in the final sentence of Paragraph 8(a) and the representations in Paragraph 9 and (d) 


only Party A will be required to make Transfers of Eligible Credit Support hereunder. 


 


 







16 


 


 
 


 Please confirm your agreement to the terms of the foregoing by signing below. 


 


 


JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 


 


 


By:  _______________________________ 


        


Name:______________________________ 


        


Title:_______________________________ 


 


 


 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA  


 


By:__________________________________  


 


Name:________________________________  


 


Title:_________________________________  


 


Counterparty ID Number 30000242271  


 


 


 


 


 







For use with non-financial entities (single counterparties): 


 


 


JPM MARCH 2013 BILATERAL DF AGREEMENT 


 


 


 


dated as of  __________________ 


 


between 


 


JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. 


(“Party A”) 


 


and 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


(“Party B”) 


 


 


 


  



fjones

Typewritten Text

ATTACHMENT C







2 


The Parties hereto wish to enter into this agreement (this “Bilateral DF Agreement II”) in relation to their trading 


relationship in respect of DF Swaps (as defined in Annex I hereto) in order to ensure compliance with the regulatory 


requirements of Title VII of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Act”) and the 


Applicable DF Regulations (as defined in Annex I hereto). 


Effective on the date hereof, the terms of this Bilateral DF Agreement II shall supplement and form part of the terms of 


(i) the JPM August 2012 Bilateral DF Agreement and (ii) each DF Swap entered into between Party A and Party B 


(each a “Party” and, together, the “Parties”). 


If the Parties have executed an Existing Swap Agreement (as defined in Annex I hereto), this Bilateral DF Agreement II 


between Party A and Party B shall supplement and form part of such Existing Swap Agreement, as amended and 


supplemented from time to time.  If the parties have not executed an Existing Swap Agreement, this Bilateral DF 


Agreement II shall supplement and form part of an agreement in the form of the ISDA 2002 Master Agreement with a 


Schedule (as such term is defined in the ISDA 2002 Master Agreement) that includes the following terms (the “Deemed 


ISDA 2002 Master Agreement”): (i) the Deemed ISDA 2002 Master Agreement will govern any DF Swap between the 


Parties that is entered into on or after the date hereof that is (1) not governed by an Existing Swap Agreement, and (2) 


not intended by the Parties to be cleared on a clearing organization and, for the avoidance of doubt, will not govern any 


DF Swap that is governed by an Existing Swap Agreement, or intended by the Parties to be cleared on a clearing 


organization;  (ii) the Deemed ISDA 2002 Master Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the 


laws of the State of New York (without reference to choice of law doctrine), unless otherwise agreed by the Parties; and 


(iii) except as otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, “Multiple Transaction Payment Netting” (1) will apply with 


respect to each Transaction that is an “FX Transaction” or “Currency Option Transaction” as defined in the ISDA 1998 


FX and Currency Option Definitions (as published by ISDA, the Emerging Markets Traders Association and the 


Foreign Exchange Committee), as supplemented from time to time, and (2) will not apply with respect to other 


Transactions, in each case for the purposes of Section 2(c) of the Deemed ISDA 2002 Master Agreement. 


Accordingly, the Parties agree as follows:  


 


1. Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in this Bilateral DF Agreement II shall have 


the meanings assigned to such terms in Annex I hereto. 


 


2. General Representations and Agreements of Party A and Party B. 


 


(a) Each Party represents to the other Party (which representation is deemed repeated as of the time of each 


Swap Transaction Event) that, as of the date of each Swap Transaction Event, (i) all Relevant 


Information (excluding representations) furnished by or on behalf of it to the other Party is true, accurate 


and complete in every material respect, and (ii) no representation provided in the Relevant Information 


or in this Bilateral DF Agreement II is incorrect or misleading in any material respect. All Relevant 


Information is incorporated herein by reference.
1
 


(b) Each Party acknowledges that the other Party has agreed to incorporate one or more of the Annexes 


hereto into this Bilateral DF Agreement II and if the Parties enter into any DF Swap on or after the date 


of this Bilateral DF Agreement II, the other Party will do so in reliance upon the Relevant Information 


and the representations provided by such Party or its agent in the Relevant Information and this Bilateral 


DF Agreement II.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Party agrees that an event of default, 


termination event, or other similar event that gives a Party grounds to cancel or otherwise terminate a 


DF Swap shall not occur under any contract between the Parties solely on the basis of (i) a 


representation provided solely in this Bilateral DF Agreement II or in the Relevant Information provided 


hereunder being incorrect or misleading in any material respect, or (ii) a breach of any covenant or 


agreement set forth solely in this Bilateral DF Agreement II; provided, however, that nothing in this 


Paragraph 2(b) shall prejudice any other right or remedy of a Party at law or under any contract in 


respect of any misrepresentation or breach hereunder or thereunder.  For the avoidance of doubt, this 


Paragraph 2(b) shall not alter a Party’s termination rights or remedies, if any, applicable to a breach of 


any representation, warranty, covenant, or agreement that is not provided or set forth solely in the 


Relevant Information or in this Bilateral DF Agreement II, including any such breach relating to any 


event or condition that could also cause or constitute an event specified in (i) or (ii) above. 


                                                           
1  CFTC Regulations 23.402(d) and 23.504(b)(5) 







3 


(c) Each Party agrees to promptly notify the other Party in writing in accordance with the Notice Procedures 


(i) of any material change to information (other than representations) previously provided by such Party 


or on behalf of such Party pursuant to this Bilateral DF Agreement II and (ii) if any representations 


made in the Relevant Information or in this Bilateral DF Agreement II by or on behalf of such Party 


become incorrect or misleading in any material respect.  For any representation that would be incorrect 


or misleading in any material respect if repeated on any date following the date on which the 


representation was last repeated, the notifying Party shall timely amend such representation by giving 


notice of such amendment to the other Party in accordance with the Notice Procedures.  A notification 


pursuant to this Paragraph 2(c) shall be effective on the Notice Effective Date and the Relevant 


Information or representation will be deemed amended as of such Notice Effective Date.
2
 


(d) Party A has received, reviewed, and understood the Principal Information and Status Representations 


applicable to it in Part III of Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  Such Principal Information and 


Status Representations are incorporated herein by reference and constitute a part hereof.  For the 


avoidance of doubt, all Principal Information and Status Representations shall constitute Relevant 


Information. 


(e) Party B has received, reviewed, and understood the Principal Information and Status Representations 


applicable to it in Part I of Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  Such Principal Information and 


Status Representations are incorporated herein by reference and constitute a part hereof.  For the 


avoidance of doubt, all Principal Information and Status Representations shall constitute Relevant 


Information. 


(f) Party B has received, reviewed, and understood the Party B Principal Elections applicable to it in Part II 


of Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  Such Party B Principal Elections are incorporated herein 


by reference and constitute a part hereof.  For the avoidance of doubt, all Party B Principal Elections 


shall constitute Relevant Information. 


(g) Each Party represents to the other Party (which representations are deemed repeated by each Party as of 


the time of each Swap Transaction Event) that: 


(i) Status.  It is, if relevant, duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its 


organization or incorporation and, if relevant under such laws, in good standing; 


(ii) Powers.  It has the power to execute and deliver this Bilateral DF Agreement II and to perform its 


obligations under this Bilateral DF Agreement II, and has taken all necessary action to authorize 


such execution, delivery and performance;  


(iii) No Violation or Conflict.  Such execution, delivery and performance do not violate or conflict with 


any law applicable to it, any provision of its constitutional documents, any order or judgment of any 


court or other agency of government applicable to it or any of its assets or any contractual 


restriction binding on or affecting it or any of its assets;  


(iv) Consents.  All governmental and other consents that are required to have been obtained by it with 


respect to this Bilateral DF Agreement II have been obtained and are in full force and effect and all 


conditions of any such consents have been complied with; and 


(v) Obligations Binding.  Its obligations under this Bilateral DF Agreement II constitute its legal, valid 


and binding obligations, enforceable in accordance with their respective terms (subject to applicable 


bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights 


generally and subject, as to enforceability, to equitable principles of general application (regardless 


of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding in equity or at law)). 


 
  


                                                           
2  CFTC Regulation 23.402(d). 







4 


3. Confirmations 


Unless the Parties have agreed otherwise in writing, each Party agrees that a confirmation of a DF Swap or 


another type of transaction under this Bilateral DF Agreement II may be created by delivery of written terms 


by each Party; provided that (i) the terms delivered by each Party match the terms delivered by the other Party 


and (ii) the terms are either delivered by each Party to the other Party in a manner that permits each Party to 


review such terms or delivered by each Party to a third-party agent or service provider that confirms the 


matching of such terms to the Parties (in each case by telex, electronic messaging system, email or otherwise).  


In each case, such a confirmation will be sufficient for all purposes to evidence a binding supplement to this 


Bilateral DF Agreement II.  The foregoing shall not limit other agreed methods of creating binding 


confirmations and shall not be construed as an agreement to use a method provided in this paragraph to 


confirm any Transaction.
3
 


4. Clearing Notifications and Representations 


 


(a) Each Party is hereby notified that, upon acceptance of a DF Swap by a DCO: 


 


(i) the original DF Swap between Party A and Party B is extinguished; 


(ii) the original DF Swap between Party A and Party B is replaced by equal and opposite DF Swaps 


with the DCO; and 


(iii) all terms of the DF Swap shall conform to the product specifications of the cleared DF Swap 


established under the DCO’s rules.
4
 


 


(b) Party B represents to Party A that it is not a Category 1 Entity or a Category 2 Entity.  


5. Orderly Liquidation Authority 


 


(a) Effective on and after the Applicable STRD Compliance Date, each Party agrees to provide notice to the 


other Party, in accordance with the Notice Procedures, if it becomes, or ceases to be, an Insured 


Depository Institution or a Financial Company.
5
 


 


(b) Each Party is hereby notified that in the event that a Party is (i) a Covered Financial Company or (ii) an 


Insured Depository Institution for which the FDIC has been appointed as a receiver (the “Covered 


Party”):  


 


(i) certain limitations under Title II of the Dodd-Frank Act or the FDIA may apply to the rights of the 


non-Covered Party to terminate, liquidate, or net any DF Swap by reason of the appointment of the 


FDIC as receiver, notwithstanding the agreement of the Parties; and 


(ii) the FDIC may have certain rights to transfer DF Swaps of the Covered Party under Section 


210(c)(9)(A) of the Dodd-Frank Act, 12 U.S.C. § 5390(c)(9)(A), or 12 U.S.C. § 1821(e)(9)(A).
6
 


6. Calculation of Risk Valuations and Dispute Resolution 


Where Party B has agreed to incorporate Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II pursuant to Part II(1) of 


Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II, the provisions of Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II are 


incorporated herein by reference and constitute a part hereof.  Each Party hereto represents that it has received, 


reviewed and understood the provisions of Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  For the avoidance of 


doubt, all provisions of Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II shall constitute Relevant Information. 


  


                                                           
3  CFTC Regulation 23.501. 
4  CFTC Regulation 23.504(b)(6). 
5  CFTC Regulation 23.504(b)(5)(iv). 
6  CFTC Regulation 23.504(b)(5)(iii). 







5 


7. Portfolio Reconciliation 


 


Where Party B has agreed to incorporate Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II pursuant to Part II(2) of 


Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II, the provisions of Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II are 


incorporated herein by reference and constitute a part hereof.  Each Party hereto represents that it has received, 


reviewed and understood the provisions of Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  For the avoidance of 


doubt, all provisions of Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II shall constitute Relevant Information. 


8. End-User Exception 


 


Where Party B has agreed to incorporate Annex V to this Bilateral DF Agreement II pursuant to Part II(4)(a) of 


Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II, the provisions of Annex V to this Bilateral DF Agreement II are 


incorporated herein by reference and constitute a part hereof.  Each Party hereto represents that it has received, 


reviewed and understood the provisions of Annex V to this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  For the avoidance of 


doubt, all provisions of Annex V to this Bilateral DF Agreement II shall constitute Relevant Information. 


9. Miscellaneous 


(a) Entire Agreement; Survival.  This Bilateral DF Agreement II (together with Annexes I through V 


hereto, as elected, which, the Parties agree, supplement and form part of this Bilateral DF Agreement II) 


constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of each Party with respect to its subject matter and 


supersedes all oral communication and prior writings (except as otherwise provided herein) with respect 


thereto.  Each Party acknowledges that, in entering into this Bilateral DF Agreement II, it has not relied 


on any oral or written representation, warranty or other assurance (except as provided for or referred to 


elsewhere in this Bilateral DF Agreement II) and waives all rights and remedies which might otherwise 


be available to it in respect thereof, except that nothing in this Bilateral DF Agreement II will limit or 


exclude any liability of either Party for fraud. 


(b) Headings and Footnotes.  The headings and footnotes used in this Bilateral DF Agreement II are for 


informational purposes and convenience of reference only, and are not to affect the construction of or to 


be taken into consideration in interpreting this Bilateral DF Agreement II. 


(c)  Counterparts.  This Bilateral DF Agreement II (and each amendment, modification and waiver in 


respect of it) may be executed and delivered in counterparts (including by facsimile transmission, by 


electronic messaging system or by any other means acceptable to the Parties), each of which will be 


deemed an original. 


(d) No Waiver of Rights.  A failure or delay in exercising any right, power or privilege in respect of this 


Bilateral DF Agreement II will not be presumed to operate as a waiver, and a single or partial exercise 


of any right, power or privilege will not be presumed to preclude any subsequent or further exercise, of 


that right, power or privilege or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. 


(e) Governing Law.  This Bilateral DF Agreement II will be governed by and construed in accordance with 


the laws of the State of New York, without reference to choice of law doctrine, provided that, if the DF 


Swaps to which this Bilateral DF Agreement II applies are subject to an Existing Swap Agreement 


between the Parties, then, any supplements to such Existing Swap Agreement arising out of the 


application of this Bilateral DF Agreement II to such DF Swaps shall be governed by and construed in 


accordance with the law governing such Existing Swap Agreement. 


(f) Jurisdiction.  With respect to any suit, action or proceedings relating to any dispute arising out of or in 


connection with this Bilateral DF Agreement II (“Proceedings”), each Party: 


(i) irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of New York and 


the United States District Court located in the Borough of Manhattan in New York City; 


(ii) waives any objection which it may have at any time to the laying of venue of any Proceedings 


brought in any such court, waives any claim that such Proceedings have been brought in an 


inconvenient forum and further waives the right to object, with respect to such Proceedings, that 


such court does not have any jurisdiction over such Party; and 


(iii) agrees, to the extent permitted by applicable law, that the bringing of Proceedings in any one or 


more jurisdictions will not preclude the bringing of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction. 







6 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Bilateral DF Agreement II to be executed by their 


respective officers duly authorized, as of the date first above written. 


 


Accepted and agreed: 


JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. 


 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


By:  ______________________________ 


        Name:   


        Title:    


 


By:  ______________________________ 


        Name:   The Honorable Steve Brown 


        Title:     Chairman, Fayette County BOC 


 


  


  







7 


ANNEX I 


Defined Terms  


“Active Fund” means a “private fund,” as defined in Section 202(a) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, that (i) is 


not a Third-Party Subaccount and (ii) has executed 200 or more swaps per month on average over the 12 months 


preceding November 1, 2012.  For purposes of clause (ii) of this definition, “swaps” shall mean swaps as defined by the 


CFTC for purposes of implementation schedules under parts 23 and 50 of CFTC Regulations and shall exclude, without 


limitation, foreign exchange swaps and foreign exchange forwards exempted from regulation as “swaps” by the 


Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to authority granted by Section 1a(47)(E) of the CEA.  


“Additional Pre-Trade Mark Transaction” means a transaction (other than a Covered Forex Transaction or Covered 


Derivative Transaction) for which the CFTC provides no-action or other relief from CFTC Regulation 23.431(a)(3) that 


is based, in whole or in part, upon the agreement of a party that a Swap Dealer counterparty need not disclose pre-trade 


mid-market marks. 


“Annually” means once each calendar year.   


“Applicable Law” means all applicable laws of the United States and rules, regulations, orders and written 


interpretations of U.S. federal authorities, self-regulatory organizations, markets, exchanges and clearing facilities. 


“Applicable DF Regulations” means CFTC Regulations 23.500 through 23.505, CFTC Regulation 50.50, and CFTC 


Regulation 50.4 adopted in the following Federal Register publications, as amended and supplemented from time to 


time: (i) CFTC, Final Rule, Confirmation, Portfolio Reconciliation, Portfolio Compression, and Swap Trading 


Relationship Documentation Requirements for Swap Dealers and Major Swap Participants, 77 Fed. Reg. 55904 (Sept. 


11, 2012); (ii) CFTC, Final Rule, End-User Exception to the Clearing Requirement for Swaps, 77 Fed. Reg. 42559 (July 


19, 2012); and (iii) CFTC, Final Rule, Clearing Requirement Determination Under Section 2(h) of the CEA, 77 Fed. 


Reg. 74284 (Dec. 13, 2012). 


“Applicable Portfolio Reconciliation Compliance Date” means the date on which Party A’s compliance is required 


with respect to Party B under CFTC Regulation 23.502 and applicable law regarding the scope of application of CFTC 


Regulation 23.502, including applicable CFTC interpretations and other CFTC Regulations.   


“Applicable STRD Compliance Date” means the date on which Party A’s compliance is required with respect to Party 


B under CFTC Regulation 23.504 and applicable law regarding the scope of application of CFTC Regulation 23.504, 


including applicable CFTC interpretations and other CFTC Regulations.   


“Bilateral Covered Agreement” means (i) a Deemed ISDA 2002 Master Agreement or (ii) an Existing Swap 


Agreement. 


“BIS 31 Currencies” refer to one of the following currencies: US dollar, Euro, Japanese yen, Pound sterling, Australian 


dollar, Swiss franc, Canadian dollar, Hong Kong dollar, Swedish krona, New Zealand dollar, Korean won, Singapore 


dollar, Norwegian krona, Mexican peso, Indian rupee, Russian rouble, Chinese renminbi, Polish zloty, Turkish lira, 


South African rand, Brazilian real, Danish krone, New Taiwan dollar, Hungarian forint, Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht, 


Czech koruna, Philippine peso, Chilean peso, Indonesian rupiah, Israeli new shekel.
7
 


“Category 1 Entity” means (i) a Swap Dealer, (ii) a Major Swap Participant, (iii) a Security-Based Swap Dealer, (iv) a 


Major Security-Based Swap Participant or (v) an Active Fund.
8
  


“Category 2 Entity” means (i) a commodity pool as defined in Section 1a(10) of the CEA and CFTC Regulations 


thereunder, (ii) a “private fund,” as defined in Section 202(a) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, other than an 


Active Fund, or (iii) a person predominantly engaged in activities that are in the business of banking, or in activities that 


are “financial in nature,” as defined in Section 4(k) of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, provided that, in each 


case, the entity is not a Third-Party Subaccount.
9
 


                                                           
7  CFTC Letter No. 13-12, at text accompanying n. 16 (citing Bank for International Settlements, 2010 BIS Triennial Central Bank Survey, Report 


on global foreign exchange market activity in 2010 12 (Dec. 2010), available at http://www.bis.org/publ/rpfxf10t.pdf). 
8  CFTC Regulation 50.25. 
9  CFTC Regulation 50.25. 







8 


“CEA” means the Commodity Exchange Act, as amended.   


“CFTC” means the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission. 


“CFTC Regulations” means the rules, regulations, orders and interpretations published or issued by the CFTC, as 


amended. 


“Close-Out Provision” means (i) in respect of a DF Swap for which the Parties have agreed in writing (whether as part 


of the Bilateral Covered Agreement or otherwise) to a process for determining the payments to be made upon early 


termination of such DF Swap, the provisions specifying such process, and (ii) in respect of a DF Swap for which the 


Parties have not agreed in writing (whether as part of the Bilateral Covered Agreement or otherwise) to a process for 


determining the payments to be made upon early termination of such DF Swap, Section 6(e)(ii)(1) of the ISDA 2002 


Master Agreement as if such DF Swap were governed thereby. 


“Commodity Trade Option” means a commodity option entered into pursuant to CFTC Regulation 32.3(a). 


“Covered Derivative Transaction” means a transaction for which real-time tradeable bid and offer prices are available 


electronically, in the marketplace, to Party B (if such transaction is executed prior to the issuance of final CFTC 


Regulations governing the registration of swap execution facilities, subject to any compliance implementation period 


contained therein) or for which real-time executable bid and offer prices are available on a designated contract market 


or swap execution facility (if such transaction is executed subsequent to the issuance of final CFTC Regulations 


governing the registration of swap execution facilities, subject to any compliance implementation period therein), and 


that is: (i) an untranched credit default swap referencing the on-the-run and most recent off-the-run series of the 


following indices: CDX.NA.IG 5Y, CDX.NA.HY 5Y, iTraxx Europe 5Y and iTraxx Europe Crossover 5yr; or (ii) an 


interest rate swap (A) in the “fixed-for-floating swap class” (as such term is used in CFTC Regulation 50.4(a)) 


denominated in USD or EUR, (B) for which the remaining term to the scheduled termination date is no more than 30 


years, and (C) that has specifications set out in CFTC Regulation 50.4.
10


 


“Covered Financial Company” means a “covered financial company,” as defined in Section 201(a)(8) of the Dodd-


Frank Act, 12 U.S.C. § 5381(a)(8). 


“Covered Forex Transaction” means a transaction for which real-time tradeable bid and offer prices are available 


electronically, in the marketplace, to Party B, and that is: (i) a “foreign exchange forward” or “foreign exchange swap,” 


as defined in Sections 1a(24) and 1a(25) of the Commodity Exchange Act, respectively, that, by its terms, is physically 


settled, where each currency is one included among the BIS 31 Currencies, and where the transaction has a stated 


maturity of one year or less; or (ii) a vanilla foreign exchange option that, by its terms, is physically settled, where each 


currency is one included among the BIS 31 Currencies, and where the option has a stated maturity of six months or 


less.
11


 


“Credit Support Agreement” means a written agreement, if any, between the Parties (whether part of the Bilateral 


Covered Agreement or otherwise) that governs the posting or transferring of collateral or other credit support related to 


one or more DF Swaps. 


“Credit Support Call” means a request or demand for the posting or transferring of collateral or other credit support 


related to one or more DF Swaps made pursuant to the terms of a Credit Support Agreement. 


“CSA Valuation” means, in respect of a DF Swap and a Risk Valuation Date and subject to the terms of Part II of 


Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II in the case of a dispute, the value of such DF Swap determined in 


accordance with the CSA Valuation Process, if any, expressed as a positive number if such DF Swap has positive value 


for the Risk Valuation Agent, and as a negative number if such DF Swap has negative value for
 
the Risk Valuation 


Agent. 


“CSA Valuation Process” means the process, if any, agreed by the Parties in writing (whether as part of the Bilateral 


Covered Agreement or otherwise) for determining the value of one or more transactions that may include a DF Swap or 


portfolio of DF Swaps for the purpose of posting or transferring collateral or other credit support.  For the avoidance of 


doubt, such writing may be in the form of an ISDA Credit Support Annex or any other written agreement. 


                                                           
10  CFTC Letter No. 12-58. 
11  CFTC Letter No. 13-12. 







9 


“Daily” means once each Joint Business Day. 


“Data Delivery Date” means a date determined pursuant to Section 4.2 of Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II, 


as applicable, that is a Joint Business Day.  


“Data Reconciliation” means a comparison of Portfolio Data and, to the extent applicable, SDR Data received or 


obtained by a Party against such Party’s own books and records of DF Swaps between the Parties and, in respect of any 


Discrepancy, a process for identifying and resolving such Discrepancy.  A Data Reconciliation may include (but shall 


not be required to include or be limited to) a systematic, line-by-line, field-by-field matching process performed using 


technological means such as a third-party portfolio reconciliation service or a technology engine.   


 


“DCO” means a “derivatives clearing organization,” as such term is defined in Section 1a(15) of the CEA and CFTC 


Regulations. 


“DF Swap” means a “swap” as defined in Section 1a(47) of the CEA and regulations thereunder that is, or is to be, 


governed by the Bilateral Covered Agreement; provided that a Commodity Trade Option is not a DF Swap for purposes 


of this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  The term “DF Swap” also includes any foreign exchange swaps and foreign 


exchange forwards that are, or are to be, governed by the Bilateral Covered Agreement and that are exempted from 


regulation as “swaps” by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to authority granted by Section 1a(47)(E) of the CEA.  


For the avoidance of doubt, the term “DF Swap” does not include a swap that has been cleared by a DCO. 


“Discrepancy” means, (i) in respect of the Portfolio Data received with respect to a DF Swap and any SDR Data 


obtained for such DF Swap, a difference between a Material Term in such Portfolio Data or SDR Data and a Party’s 


own records of the corresponding Material Term and (ii) in respect of the Portfolio Data received with respect to a DF 


Swap, a difference between a Valuation reported in such Portfolio Data and such Party’s own Valuation of such DF 


Swap (calculated as of the same Joint Business Day in good faith and using commercially reasonable procedures in 


order to produce a commercially reasonable result) that is greater than the Discrepancy Threshold Amount.  


“Discrepancy Threshold Amount” means, in respect of a DF Swap, an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the 


higher of the two absolute values of the respective Valuations assigned to such DF Swap by the Parties.  


“Dodd-Frank Act” means the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, as amended. 


“Election Approval” means, if Party B is an SEC Issuer/Filer, an appropriate committee of Party B’s board of directors 


(or equivalent body) has reviewed and approved the decision to enter into DF Swaps that are exempt from the clearing 


requirements of Sections 2(h)(1) and 2(h)(8) of the CEA. 


“Existing Swap Agreement” means, in respect of a DF Swap, a written agreement that (i) exists at the time of 


execution of such DF Swap, (ii) provides for, among other things, terms governing the payment obligations of the 


parties, and (iii) the Parties have established, by written agreement, oral agreement, course of conduct or otherwise, will 


govern such DF Swap. 


“FDIA” means the Federal Deposit Insurance Act of 1950, as amended. 


“FDIC” means the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 


 “Financial Company” means a “financial company,” as defined in Section 201(a)(11) of the Dodd-Frank Act, 12 


U.S.C. § 5381(a)(11). 


“Financial Entity” means a person that is a “financial entity” as defined in Section 2(h)(7)(C)(i) of the CEA, without 


regard to an exemption or exclusion provided in Section 2(h)(7)(C)(ii) of the CEA and CFTC regulations thereunder or 


in Section 2(h)(7)(C)(iii) of the CEA.
12


 


  


                                                           
12  Section 2(h)(7)(C)(i) of the CEA defines a “financial entity” for purposes of mandatory clearing as (i) a swap dealer, (ii) a security-based swap 


dealer, (iii) a major swap participant, (iv) a major security-based swap participant, (v) a commodity pool, (vi) a private fund as defined in Section 
202(a) of the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, (vii) an employee benefit plan as defined in paragraphs (3) and (32) of section 3 of the Employee 


Retirement Income and Security Act of 1974, and (viii) a person predominantly engaged in activities that are in the business of banking, or in 


activities that are financial in nature as defined in Section 4(k) of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956. 







10 


“Initial Mandatory Clearing Determination” means the CFTC determination initially published in the Federal 


Register on December 12, 2012, pursuant to rulemaking under Section 2(h) of the CEA providing that certain classes of 


interest rate swaps and credit default swaps shall be subject to mandatory submission for clearing to a DCO eligible to 


clear such swaps under CFTC Regulation 39.5, as amended.
13


 


“Insured Depository Institution” means an “insured depository institution,” as defined in 12 U.S.C. § 1813. 


“Joint Business Day” means a day that is a Local Business Day in respect of each Party.  


“LEI/CICI” means a “legal entity identifier” satisfying the requirements of CFTC Regulation 45.6 or such other entity 


identifier as shall be provided by the CFTC, pending the availability of such legal entity identifiers. 


“Local Business Day” means, as used in a provision of this Bilateral DF Agreement II, (i) with respect to Party A, the 


City of New York; and (ii) with respect to Party B, a day on which commercial banks are open for general business 


(including for dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the city or cities specified by Party B in 


Part II(3) of Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  If Party B does not specify a city in the Part II(3) of Annex II 


to this Bilateral DF Agreement II, Party B will be deemed to have specified the City of New York. 


“Major Security-Based Swap Participant” means a “major security-based swap participant,” as defined in Section 


3(a)(67) of the SEA and Rule 3a67-1 thereunder. 


“Major Swap Participant” means a “major swap participant,” as defined in Section 1a(33) of the CEA and CFTC 


Regulation 1.3(hhh) thereunder. 


“Material Terms” has the meaning ascribed by the CFTC to such term for purposes of CFTC Regulation 23.502. 


“Monthly” means once each calendar month.   


“Notice Effective Date” means with respect to a Party to whom a notice has been delivered, the Local Business Day 


following the date on which such notice would be effective pursuant to the Notice Procedures or such other date as the 


Parties may specify in writing. 


“Notice Procedures” means (i) the procedures specified in the Bilateral Covered Agreement regarding delivery of 


notices or information to a Party, (ii) such other procedures as may be agreed in writing between the Parties from time 


to time, and (iii) with respect to a Party and a particular category of information or notice, if the other Party has 


specified other permissible procedures in writing, such procedures. 


“Party” means, in respect of a Bilateral Covered Agreement, a party thereto. 


“Party B Principal Elections” means the elections made by Party B in Part II of Annex II to this Bilateral DF 


Agreement II. 


“Principal Information and Status Representations” means (i) in respect of Party A, the information provided and 


representations made by Party A in Part III of Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II; and (ii) in respect of Party B, 


the information provided and representations made by Party B in Part I of Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II. 


“Portfolio Data” means, in respect of a Party providing or required to provide such data, information (which, for the 


avoidance of doubt, is not required to include calculations or methodologies) relating to the terms of all outstanding DF 


Swaps between the Parties in a form and standard that is capable of being reconciled, with a scope and level of detail 


that is reasonably acceptable to each Party and that describes and includes, without limitation, current Valuations 


attributed by that Party to each such DF Swap.  The information comprising the Portfolio Data to be provided by a Party 


on a Data Delivery Date shall be prepared (i) as at the time or times that such Party computes its end of day valuations 


for DF Swaps (as specified by that Party for this purpose in writing) on the immediately preceding Joint Business Day, 


as applicable, and (ii) in the case of Valuations, in good faith and using commercially reasonable procedures in order to 


produce a commercially reasonable result.   


                                                           
13  77 Fed. Reg. 74284 (Dec. 13, 2012). 







11 


“Quarterly” means once each calendar quarter. 


“Recalculation Date” means the Risk Valuation Date on which a Risk Valuation that gives rise to the relevant dispute 


is calculated; provided, however, that if one or more subsequent Risk Valuation Dates occurs prior to the resolution of 


such dispute, then the “Recalculation Date” in respect of such dispute means the last such Risk Valuation Date. 


“Reference Market-makers” means four leading dealers in the relevant market selected by the Risk Valuation Agent 


in good faith (i) from among dealers of the highest credit standing which satisfy all the criteria that the Risk Valuation 


Agent applies generally at the time in deciding whether to offer or to make an extension of credit and (ii) to the extent 


practicable, from among such dealers having an office in the same city. 


“Relevant Information” means (a) any information or representation agreed in writing by the Parties to be Relevant 


Information; and (b) any information provided pursuant to Annex II to this Bilateral DF Agreement II, in each case, as 


amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance with Paragraph 2(c) of this Bilateral DF Agreement II or in 


another manner agreed by the Parties. 


“Risk Exposure” means, in respect of a DF Swap and a Risk Valuation Date and subject to the terms of Part II of 


Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II in the case of a dispute, the amount, if any, that would be payable to the 


Risk Valuation Agent by Party B (expressed as a positive number)
 
or by the Risk Valuation Agent to Party B (expressed 


as a negative number) pursuant to the Close-Out Provision as of the Risk Valuation Time as if such DF Swap (and not 


any other DF Swap) was being terminated as of such Risk Valuation Date; provided that (i) if the Bilateral Covered 


Agreement provides for different calculations depending on whether one of the Parties is an Affected Party or 


Defaulting Party (as such terms are defined in the Bilateral Covered Agreement), such calculation will be determined 


using estimates at mid-market of the amounts that would be paid for a replacement transaction; and (ii) such calculation 


will not include the amount of any legal fees and out-of-pocket expenses.   


“Risk Valuation” means, in respect of a DF Swap and a Risk Valuation Date for which (i) there is a CSA Valuation 


determined by the Risk Valuation Agent or its agent, such CSA Valuation, and (ii) there is no CSA Valuation 


determined by the Risk Valuation Agent or its agent, the Risk Exposure determined by the Risk Valuation Agent or its 


agent for such DF Swap and Risk Valuation Date, unless, pursuant to Section 3.1 of Annex III to this Bilateral DF 


Agreement II, the Risk Valuation Agent has elected to use the CSA Valuation provided by Party B for such DF Swap 


and Risk Valuation Date, in which case, such CSA Valuation provided by Party B.   


“Risk Valuation Agent” means, in respect of any Risk Valuation Date and any DF Swap, Party A. 


“Risk Valuation Date” means, with respect to a DF Swap, each Local Business Day for Party A. 


“Risk Valuation Time” means, with respect to a DF Swap and any day, the close of business on the prior Local 


Business Day in the locality specified by the Risk Valuation Agent in its notice of the Risk Valuation to Party B. 


“SDR” means a “swap data repository,” as defined in Section 1a(48) of the CEA and the CFTC Regulations. 


“SDR Data” means Material Terms data that is available from an SDR.  


“SEA” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 


“SEC” means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.  


 “Security-Based Swap Dealer” means a “security-based swap dealer,” as defined in Section 3(a)(71) of the SEA and 


Rule 3a71-1 thereunder. 


“Swap Dealer” means a “swap dealer,” as defined in Section 1a(49) of the CEA and CFTC Regulation 1.3(ggg) 


thereunder. 


“Swap Transaction Event” means the execution of a new DF Swap between Party A and Party B or any material 


amendment, mutual unwind or novation of an existing DF Swap between Party A and Party B.
14


 


                                                           
14  See 77 Fed. Reg. 9734, 9741 (Feb. 17, 2012). 







12 


“Third-Party Subaccount” means an account that is managed by an investment manager who is (1) independent of and 


unaffiliated with the account’s beneficial owner or sponsor and (2) responsible for the documentation necessary for the 


account’s beneficial owner to clear swaps. 


 “Transaction Event” means any event that results in a new DF Swap between the Parties or in a change to the terms of 


a DF Swap between the Parties, including execution, termination, assignment, novation, exchange, transfer, amendment, 


conveyance, or extinguishing of rights or obligations of a DF Swap. 


“Valuation” has the meaning ascribed to such term in CFTC Regulation 23.500. 


“Weekly” means once each calendar week. 







13 


ANNEX II 


Part I. Principal Information and Status Representations of Party B 


(1) LEI/CICI
15


 


Party B’s LEI/CICI is:                           .   


(2) CFTC Swap Entity
16


 


Party B confirms that is not a CFTC Swap Entity. 


(3) Financial Entity
17


 


To the best of its knowledge, Party B is not a Financial Entity. 


(4) Financial Company
18


 


Party B is not a Financial Company. 


(5) Insured Depository Institution
19


 


Party B is not an Insured Depository Institution. 


(6) E-mail Address for Delivery of Notices 


Party B’s e-mail address for the delivery of notices pursuant to this Bilateral DF Agreement II other than 


notices related to Risk Valuations or Portfolio Data is as follows: mholland@fayettecountyga.gov 


(7) Notice Details 


 


Where there is no Existing Swap Agreement between Party A and Party B, Party B agrees to enter into the 


Deemed ISDA 2002 Master Agreement with Party A and the notice information in respect of Party B for the 


purposes of such Deemed ISDA 2002 Master Agreement is: 


 


Name: Ms. Mary Holland, Chief Financial Officer 


Address: 140 Stonewall Avenue, West      


  Fayetteville, GA 30214 


Phone: (770) 460-5730 ext 5235      


Fax: (770) 719-5535 


E-mail: mholland@fayettecountyga.gov 


Electronic Messaging System Details:       


Specific Instructions:          


                                                           
15  CFTC Regulation 45.6. 
16  A “CFTC Swap Entity” is a person who is, or may become, a principal to one or more swaps and is, or expects shortly to be, registered as a 


swap dealer or major swap participant with the CFTC.  Designation as a CFTC Swap Entity in this Annex II is not a representation by Party B that it 
is a “swap dealer” or a “major swap participant,” as such terms are defined in the CEA and applicable CFTC regulations or that it is registered as 


such.  However, parties who do not in good faith believe they will register as a swap dealer or major swap participant should not be designated as a 


CFTC Swap Entity in this Annex II.  If Party B elects that it is not initially a CFTC Swap Entity, it may subsequently change its status to CFTC Swap 
Entity by providing written notice to Party A that it has become registered with the CFTC as a swap dealer or major swap participant. 
17  See, e.g., CFTC Regulation 23.501 and 23.504(b)(4).  The term “financial entity” is used for various purposes through the CEA and CFTC 


Regulations, including for the purposes of determining who must enter into “swap trading relationship documentation” satisfying various 
requirements and the deadlines for execution of confirmations under CFTC Regulation 23.501.   
18  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 23.504(b)(5)(i)-(ii), swap trading relationship documentation must include a statement for each Party indicating 
whether it is a Financial Company.  
19  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 23.504(b)(5)(i)-(ii), swap trading relationship documentation must include a statement for each Party indicating 


whether it is an Insured Depository Institution. 







14 


Part II. Party B Principal Elections  


(1) Annex III Calculation of Risk Valuations and Dispute Resolution 


 


Calculation of Risk Valuations and Dispute Resolution Election for Non-Financial Entities
20


 


 


Party B agrees to incorporate Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II and for purposes of Annex III, Party 


B’s e-mail address for the delivery of Risk Valuations is as follows: mholland@fayettecountyga.gov.
21


 


 


Party B does not agree to incorporate Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II. 


 


(2) Annex IV Portfolio Reconciliation 


 


Portfolio Reconciliation Election
22


 


 


Party B agrees to incorporate Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II and for purposes of Annex IV, Party 


B’s e-mail address for the delivery of Portfolio Data is as follows: _____________________.
23


 


 


Party B does not agree to incorporate Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II. 


 


(3) Local Business Day
24


 


 


Party B designates the following city or cities as the relevant Local Business Day city or cities: Atlanta, GA.. 


 


(4) Annex V Use of End-User Exception
25


 


 


(a) Standing End-User Exception 


 


Party B elects the End-User Exception for each DF Swap entered into with Party A that is subject to a 


mandatory clearing determination under Section 2(h) of the CEA and agrees to incorporate Annex V to this 


Bilateral DF Agreement II unless Party B notifies Party A otherwise in writing prior to the execution of such 


DF Swap. 


 


Party B does not elect the End-User Exception for each DF Swap entered into with Party A that is subject to 


a mandatory clearing determination under Section 2(h) of the CEA and does not agree to incorporate Annex 


V to this Bilateral DF Agreement II. 


 


(b) Standing Opt-Out of Annual Filing
26, 27


 


 


Party B elects a Standing Opt-Out of Annual Filings. 


 


Party B does not elect a Standing Opt-Out of Annual Filings. 


  


                                                           
20  One box in this section must be checked.  Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II provides a set of agreements intended to address the 


documentation requirements of CFTC Regulation 23.504(b)(4). 
21  If Party B elects to incorporate Annex III to this Bilateral DF Agreement II by making such election in Part II(1)(a) in this Annex II, Party B 


must provide an email address for the delivery of Risk Valuations.  
22  One box in this section must be checked.  Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II provides a set of agreements intended to address the data 
portfolio reconciliation requirements of CFTC Regulation 23.502. 
23  For the purpose of the data portfolio reconciliation procedures set forth in Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II, Party B must provide an 


email address. 
24  If Party B elects to incorporate Annex III or Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II, Party B may indicate a city or cities for purposes of 


determining the Local Business Day with respect to each of Annex III and Annex IV to this Bilateral DF Agreement II. 
25  Party B may elect the End-User Exception by checking the relevant box in this section.  For the avoidance of doubt, Party B’s answer to this 
question will in no way prejudice its rights to elect to, or not to, use the End-User Exception in respect of any particular DF Swap. 
26  By electing a Standing Opt-Out of Annual Filing, Party B notifies Party A that it will not make an Annual Filing, as described in Annex V to 
this Bilateral DF Agreement II, for any DF Swap subject to mandatory clearing (such notification, the “Standing Opt-Out of Annual Filing”) unless 


Party B subsequently notifies Party A to the contrary (either with respect to a particular DF Swap or generally). 
27  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 50.50, one box in this section must be checked by Party B.  







15 


(i) Party B’s financial obligations associated with entering into non-cleared swaps
28


 


 


Party B generally meets its financial obligations associated with entering into non-cleared swaps using: 


 
 (A) a written credit support agreement; 
 
(B) pledged or segregated assets (including posting or receiving margin pursuant to a credit support 


arrangement or otherwise); 
 
(C) a written third-party guarantee; 
 
(D) its available financial resources; or 
 
(E) means other than those described in the foregoing subsections (A) through (D) above. 
 


(ii) SEC Issuer/Filer
29


 


 


Party B is an SEC Issuer/Filer and Party B’s SEC Central Index Key Number is as follows:      .
30


 


 


Party B is not an SEC Issuer/Filer. 


 


(iii) Election Approval
31


  


 


Party B received Election Approval. 


 


Party B did not receive Election Approval. 


 


(5) Elections Not to Receive Disclosure of Pre-Trade Mid-Market Marks
32, 33  


 


(a) Party B does not require Party A to disclose pre-trade mid-market marks in respect of any Covered 


Forex Transaction. 


 


Party B requires Party A to disclose pre-trade mid-market marks in respect of any Covered Forex 


Transaction. 


 


(b) Party B does not require Party A to disclose pre-trade mid-market marks in respect of any Covered 


Derivative Transaction. 


 


Party B requires Party A to disclose pre-trade mid-market marks in respect of any Covered Derivative 


Transaction. 


 


(c) Party B does not require Party A to disclose pre-trade mid-market marks in respect of any Additional 


Pre-Trade Mark Transaction.
34


 


 


Party B requires Party A to disclose pre-trade mid-market marks in respect of any Additional Pre-


Trade Mark Transaction. 


                                                           
28  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 50.50, at least one box in this section must be checked if Party B has elected the Standing Opt-Out of Annual 
Filing in Part II(4)(b) of this Annex II above.   
29  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 50.50, one box in this section must be checked if Party B has elected the Standing Opt-Out of Annual Filing in 


Part II(4)(b) of this Annex II above.  Party B must indicate if it is an issuer of securities registered under Section 12 of, or required to file reports 
under Section 15(d) of, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  
30  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 50.50, Party B must provide this information if it has elected in Part II(4)(b)(ii) of this Annex II that it is an SEC 


Issuer/Filer. 
31  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 50.50, Party B must make this election if it has elected in Part II(4)(b)(ii) of this Annex II, that it is an SEC 


Issuer/Filer. 
32  CFTC Regulation 23.431(a)(3).  
33  CFTC Letter No. 13-12 and CFTC Letter No. 12-58 provide that Swap Dealers will not be required to disclose pre-trade mid-market marks in 


connection with any Covered Forex Transactions or Covered Derivatives Transactions, respectively, provided that the counterparty agrees in advance, 
in writing, that the Swap Dealer need not disclose a pre-trade mid-market mark. 
34  Party B may agree in advance that Party A will not be required to disclose pre-trade mid-market marks in connection with any Additional Pre-


Trade Mark Transaction. 







16 


Part III. Principal Information and Status Representations of Party A 


(1) LEI/CICI
35


 


Party A’s LEI/CICI is 7H6GLXDRUGQFU57RNE97.   


(2) CFTC Swap Entity 


Party A confirms that is a CFTC Swap Entity. 


(3) Financial Entity
36


 


Party A is a Financial Entity. 


(4) Financial Company
37


 


Party A is a Financial Company. 


(5) Insured Depository Institution
38


 


Party A is an Insured Depository Institution. 


(6) E-mail Address for Delivery of Notices 


Party A’s e-mail address for the delivery of notices pursuant to this Bilateral DF Agreement II other than 


notices related to Risk Valuations or Portfolio Data is as follows:    DF.Notices@jpmorgan.com. 


(7) Notice Details 


 


Where there is no Existing Swap Agreement between Party A and Party B, Party A agrees to enter into the 


Deemed ISDA 2002 Master Agreement with Party B and the notice information in respect of Party A for the 


purposes of such Deemed ISDA 2002 Master Agreement is: 


 


Name: JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 


Address: 277 Park Avenue 


 New York, New York 10172-0003 


 Attention: Legal Department- Derivatives Practice Group 


Fax:  (646) 534-6393 


 


(8) E-Mail Address for Delivery of Risk Valuations 


 


Party A’s e-mail address for the delivery of Risk Valuations given pursuant to Annex III hereof is as follows: 


risk.valuation@jpmorgan.com. 


 


(9) E-mail Address for Delivery of Portfolio Data 


 


Party A’s e-mail address for the delivery of Portfolio Data delivered pursuant to Annex IV hereof is as follows:  


portfolio.reconciliation@jpmorgan.com. 


 


                                                           
35  CFTC Regulation 45.6. 
36  See, e.g., CFTC Regulation 23.501 and 23.504(b)(4).  The term “financial entity” is used for various purposes through the CEA and CFTC 


Regulations, including for the purposes of determining who must enter into “swap trading relationship documentation” satisfying various 
requirements and the deadlines for execution of confirmations under CFTC Regulation 23.501.   
37  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 23.504(b)(5)(i)-(ii), swap trading relationship documentation must include a statement for each Party indicating 
whether it is a Financial Company.  
38  Pursuant to CFTC Regulation 23.504(b)(5)(i)-(ii), swap trading relationship documentation must include a statement for each Party indicating 


whether it is an Insured Depository Institution. 



mailto:DF.Notices@jpmorgan.com

mailto:risk.valuation@jpmorgan.com

mailto:portfolio.reconciliation@jpmorgan.com





17 


ANNEX III 


Calculation of Risk Valuations and Dispute Resolution 


 


 


Part I. Calculation of Risk Valuations for Purposes of Section 4s(j) of the CEA 


 


Each Party agrees that: 


 


3.1 On each Risk Valuation Date, the Risk Valuation Agent in respect of each DF Swap for which a Transaction 


Event has occurred after the Applicable STRD Compliance Date (or its agent) will calculate the Risk Valuation 


of such DF Swap, provided that if Party B has provided the Risk Valuation Agent with a CSA Valuation for 


such DF Swap and such Risk Valuation Date pursuant to the CSA Valuation Process that the Risk Valuation 


Agent has determined in good faith will allow the Risk Valuation Agent to satisfy the requirements of CFTC 


Regulation 23.504(b) as they relate to Section 4s(j) of the CEA, the Risk Valuation Agent may elect to treat 


such CSA Valuation as the Risk Valuation for such DF Swap. 


 


3.2 Upon written request by Party B delivered to the Risk Valuation Agent in accordance with the Notice 


Procedures on or prior to the Joint Business Day following a Risk Valuation Date, the Risk Valuation Agent 


(or its agent) will notify Party B of the Risk Valuations determined by it for such Risk Valuation Date pursuant 


to Section 3.1 above.  Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, the Risk Valuation Agent shall not be obligated 


to disclose to Party B any confidential, proprietary information about any model the Risk Valuation Agent may 


use to value a DF Swap. 


 


3.3 Notification of a Risk Valuation may be provided through any of the following means, each of which is agreed 


by the Parties to be reliable:  (i) written notice delivered by the Risk Valuation Agent to Party B in accordance 


with the Notice Procedures, (ii) any means agreed by the Parties for the delivery of CSA Valuations or (iii) 


posting on a secured web page at, or accessible through, a URL designated in a written notice given to Party B 


pursuant to the Notice Procedures.  


 


3.4 Each Risk Valuation will be determined by the Risk Valuation Agent (or its agent) acting in good faith and 


using commercially reasonable procedures in order to produce a commercially reasonable result. 


 


Part II. Dispute Resolution for Risk Valuations for Purposes of Section 4s(j) of the CEA 


 


Each Party agrees that: 


 


3.5 If Party B wishes to dispute the Risk Valuation Agent’s calculation of a Risk Valuation, Party B shall notify 


the Risk Valuation Agent in writing in accordance with the Notice Procedures on or prior to the close of 


business on the Joint Business Day following the date on which Party B was notified of such Risk Valuation.  


Such notice shall include Party B’s calculation of the Risk Valuations for all DF Swaps as of the relevant date 


for which the Risk Valuation Agent has provided Risk Valuations to Party B, which must be calculated by 


Party B acting in good faith and using commercially reasonable procedures in order to produce a commercially 


reasonable result. 


 


3.6 If Party B disputes the Risk Valuation Agent’s calculation of a Risk Valuation and the Parties have agreed in 


writing (whether as part of the Bilateral Covered Agreement or otherwise) to a valuation dispute resolution 


process by which CSA Valuations are to be determined, then such process will be applied to resolve the 


dispute of such Risk Valuation (as if such dispute of a Risk Valuation were a dispute of a CSA Valuation, each 


DF Swap that is the subject of the dispute were the only DF Swap for which a CSA Valuation was being 


disputed, and Party B was the disputing party). 


 


3.7 If Party B disputes the Risk Valuation Agent’s calculation of a Risk Valuation and the Parties have not agreed 


in writing (whether as part of the Bilateral Covered Agreement or otherwise) to a valuation dispute resolution 


process by which CSA Valuations are to be determined, then the following process will apply in respect of the 


dispute of such Risk Valuation: 


  







18 


 


 


 (a) the Parties will consult with each other in an attempt to resolve the dispute; and  


 


(b) if they fail to resolve the dispute in a timely fashion, then the Risk Valuation Agent will recalculate 


the Risk Valuation as of the Recalculation Date by seeking four actual quotations at mid-market from 


Reference Market-makers and taking the arithmetic average of those obtained; provided that if four 


quotations are not available, then fewer than four quotations may be used; and if no quotations are 


available, then the Risk Valuation Agent’s original Risk Valuation calculation will be used.  


 


3.8 Following a recalculation pursuant to Section 3.7 above, the Risk Valuation Agent will notify Party B no later 


than the close of business on the Local Business Day of the Risk Valuation Agent following the date of such 


recalculation, and such recalculation shall be the Risk Valuation for the applicable Risk Valuation Date.  


 


Part III. Relationship to Other Valuations 


 


3.9 The Parties agree and acknowledge that the process provided herein for the production and dispute of Risk 


Valuations is exclusively for determining the value of each relevant DF Swap for the purpose of compliance by 


each Party with risk management requirements under Section 4s(j) of the CEA.  Failure by Party B to dispute a 


Risk Valuation calculated by the Risk Valuation Agent does not constitute acceptance by Party B of the 


accuracy of the Risk Valuation for any other purpose. 


 


3.10 Resolution of any disputed Risk Valuation using a procedure specified in Part II of Annex II to this Bilateral 


DF Agreement II is not binding on either Party for any purpose other than Party A’s compliance with risk 


management requirements under Section 4s(j) of the CEA.  Each Party agrees that nothing in this Bilateral DF 


Agreement II providing for the calculation of Risk Valuations or for any right to dispute valuations in 


connection with such Risk Valuations shall affect any agreement of the Parties regarding the calculation of 


CSA Valuations or disputes regarding CSA Valuations or constitute a waiver of any right to dispute a CSA 


Valuation.  Any resolutions of disputes regarding CSA Valuations may be different from the resolutions of 


disputes regarding Risk Valuations.  The Parties acknowledge that the adoption of margin regulations under 


Section 4s(e) of the CEA may require additional agreements between the Parties regarding the calculation of 


DF Swap valuations for purposes of such regulations and Party A’s compliance with risk management 


requirements under Section 4s(j) of the CEA, and Party B’s agreement to incorporate this Annex III in no way 


constitutes agreement to adopt the procedures herein with respect to the calculation of, or resolution of disputes 


regarding, margin valuations. 


 


3.11 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Bilateral DF Agreement II, the Parties may in good faith agree 


to any other procedure for (i) the calculation of Risk Valuations and/or (ii) the resolution of any dispute 


between them, in either case, whether in addition to or in substitution of the procedures set out in this Annex 


III.  


  







19 


 


ANNEX IV 


Portfolio Reconciliation 


Part I. Required Reconciliation Dates 


4.1 From time to time after the Applicable Portfolio Reconciliation Compliance Date, Party A may give Party B a 


notice (a “Required Reconciliation Date Notice”) in which Party A represents that it is (in Party A’s good 


faith belief) necessary for the Parties to perform a Data Reconciliation in order for Party A to comply with the 


Applicable DF Regulations regarding the frequency with which portfolio reconciliations are to be performed.  


A Required Reconciliation Data Notice will specify (i) the frequency with which such portfolio reconciliations 


are believed by Party A to be required, which may be “Daily,” “Weekly,” Quarterly,” “Annually” or another 


frequency required by the Applicable DF Regulations and (ii) one or more Data Delivery Dates. 


Part II. One-way Delivery of Portfolio Data 


4.2 On each Data Delivery Date Party A will deliver Portfolio Data to Party B and Party B will review such data, 


and the following shall apply: 


(a) The Required Reconciliation Date Notice will specify one or more Data Delivery Dates, provided that 


the first such date will be a day no earlier than the second Joint Business Day following the date on 


which such notice is given to Party B, and provided further that if, prior to the first such date, Party B 


requests one or more different Data Delivery Dates, the relevant Data Delivery Dates will be as 


agreed by the Parties. 


(b) On each Data Delivery Date, Party A (or its agent) will provide Portfolio Data to Party B (or its agent) 


for verification by Party B.  For purposes of this Section 4.2, Portfolio Data will be considered to have 


been provided to Party B (and Party B will be considered to have received such Portfolio Data) if it 


has been provided (i) in accordance with the Notice Procedures, or (ii) to a third-party service 


provider agreed to between Party A and Party B for this purpose. 


(c) On or as soon as reasonably practicable after each Data Delivery Date and in any event not later than 


the close of business on the second Local Business Day of Party B following the Data Delivery Date, 


Party B will review the Portfolio Data delivered by Party A with respect to each relevant DF Swap 


against its own books and records and Valuation for such DF Swap and notify Party A whether it 


affirms the relevant Portfolio Data or has identified any Discrepancy.  Party B shall notify Party A of 


all Discrepancies identified with respect to the Portfolio Data provided. 


(d) If Party B has notified Party A of any Discrepancies in Portfolio Data in respect of any Material 


Terms or Valuations, then each Party agrees to consult with the other in an attempt to resolve all such 


Discrepancies in a timely fashion. 


Part III. Valuation Differences Below the Discrepancy Threshold Amount 


4.3 The Parties hereby agree that a difference in Valuations in respect of a DF Swap that is less than the 


Discrepancy Threshold Amount shall not be deemed a “discrepancy” for purposes of CFTC Regulation 23.502 


and neither Party shall be required under this Annex IV to notify the other Party of such a difference or consult 


with the other Party in an attempt to resolve such a difference.   


Part IV. Other Portfolio Reconciliation Procedures 


4.4 In the event that the Parties have agreed to multiple Data Delivery Dates with a frequency specified in a 


Required Reconciliation Date Notice, Party A shall notify Party B if, at any time, during the period that such 


Data Delivery Dates are in effect, it is no longer required by the Applicable DF Regulations to conduct 


portfolio reconciliations with the specified frequency.  Such notice shall specify (i) the new frequency with 


which portfolio reconciliations are believed by Party A to be required, which may be “Daily,” “Weekly,” 


“Quarterly,” “Annually” or another frequency required by the Applicable DF Regulations and (ii) one or more 


new Data Delivery Dates.  Upon delivery of such a notice, the Parties’ obligations to deliver Portfolio Data on 


the previously agreed Data Delivery Dates shall terminate, and such notice shall be a new Required 


Reconciliation Date Notice for purposes of Section 4.2 above. 







20 


4.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Bilateral DF Agreement II, the Parties may in good faith agree 


to any other procedure for (i) the exchange, delivery and/or reconciliation of Portfolio Data, and/or (ii) the 


resolution of any discrepancy between them, in either case, whether in addition to or in substitution of the 


procedures set out in this Bilateral DF Agreement II.  Nothing in this Annex IV shall prejudice any right of 


dispute or right to require reconciliation that either Party may have under Applicable Law, any term of the 


Bilateral Covered Agreement other than in this Annex IV, or any other agreement.  







21 


ANNEX V 


End-User Exception 


5.1 If Party B elects not to clear any DF Swap that is subject to a mandatory clearing determination under Section 


2(h) of the CEA pursuant to an exception from mandatory clearing provided under Section 2(h)(7) of the CEA 


and CFTC Regulation 50.50 (the “End-User Exception”), Party B shall notify Party A of such election in 


writing prior to execution of such DF Swap, which notice may be provided as a standing notice for multiple 


swaps (in Relevant Information or otherwise) (the “Standing End-User Exception”) or on a trade-by-trade 


basis.
39


  By providing such notice and executing any such DF Swap, Party B shall be deemed to represent that 


(i) it is eligible for an exception from mandatory clearing with respect to such DF Swap under Section 2(h)(7) 


of the CEA and CFTC Regulation 50.50 and (ii) either:  


 


(a) it has reported the information listed in CFTC Regulation 50.50(b)(1)(iii) in an annual filing made 


pursuant to CFTC Regulation 50.50(b)(2) no more than 365 days prior to entering into such DF Swap, 


such information has been amended as necessary to reflect any material changes thereto, such annual 


filing covers the particular DF Swap for which such exception is being claimed, and such information in 


such filing is true, accurate, and complete in all material respects (the “Annual Filing”); or  


 


(b) it: 


 


(1) has notified Party A in writing in accordance with the Notice Procedures prior to entering into 


such DF Swap that it has not reported the information listed in CFTC Regulation 50.50(b)(1)(iii) 


in an annual filing described in paragraph 5.1(a)(i) above;  


 


(2) has provided to Party A all information listed in CFTC Regulation 50.50(b)(1)(iii) and such 


information is true, accurate and complete in every material respect and covers the particular DF 


Swap for which such exception is being claimed; 


 


(3) (A) is not a “financial entity,” as defined in Section 2(h)(7)(C)(i) of the CEA, without regard to 


any exemptions or exclusions provided under Sections 2(h)(7)(C)(ii), 2(h)(7)(C)(iii), or 


2(h)(7)(D) or related CFTC regulations, (B) qualifies for the small bank exclusion from the 


definition of “financial entity” in Section 2(h)(7)(C)(ii) of the CEA and CFTC Regulation 


50.50(d), (C) is excluded from the definition of “financial entity” in accordance with Section 


2(h)(7)(C)(iii) of the CEA, or (D) qualifies for an exception from mandatory clearing in 


accordance with Section 2(h)(7)(D) of the CEA; 


 


(4) is using such DF Swap to hedge or mitigate commercial risk as provided in CFTC Regulation 


50.50(c); and  


 


(5) generally meets its financial obligations associated with entering into non-cleared DF Swaps.
40


 


 


5.2 If (i) Party A and Party B enter into a DF Swap subject to a mandatory clearing determination under Section 


2(h) of the CEA that Party B has elected not to clear pursuant to an exception from mandatory clearing 


provided under Section 2(h)(7) of the CEA and CFTC Regulation 50.50 and (ii) Party B has satisfied the 


conditions specified in Section 5.1(b)(1) and (2) above, then, if the DF Swap is subject to mandatory reporting 


to the CFTC or an SDR and Party A is the “reporting counterparty,” as defined in CFTC Regulation 45.8, Party 


A shall report the information listed in CFTC Regulation 50.50(b)(1)(iii) to the relevant SDR.
41


 


 


  


                                                           
39  CFTC Regulation 23.505(a)(2). 


40  CFTC Regulation 50.50 and 23.505(a). 


41  CFTC Regulation 50.50. 







22 


5.3 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any non-disclosure, confidentiality or similar agreement 


between the Parties, if Party B elects the exception from the DF Swap clearing requirement under Section 


2(h)(7)(A) of the CEA and CFTC Regulation 50.50 with respect to a particular DF Swap, each Party hereby 


consents to the disclosure of information related to such election to the extent required by the Applicable DF 


Regulations.  Each Party acknowledges that disclosures made pursuant to this Section 5.3 may include, without 


limitation, the disclosure of trade information, including a Party’s identity (by name, identifier or otherwise) to 


an SDR and relevant regulators.  Each Party further acknowledges that, for purposes of complying with 


regulatory reporting obligations, an SDR may engage the services of a global trade repository regulated by one 


or more governmental regulators, provided that such regulated global trade repository is subject to comparable 


confidentiality provisions as is an SDR registered with the CFTC.  For the avoidance of doubt, to the extent 


that applicable non-disclosure, confidentiality, bank secrecy or other law imposes non-disclosure requirements 


on the DF Swap and similar information required to be disclosed pursuant to the Applicable DF Regulations 


but permits a Party to waive such requirements by consent, the consent and acknowledgements provided herein 


shall be a consent by each Party for purposes of such other applicable law.  





		Commissioners- Dodd-Frank Agend Request File

		Commissioners- Dodd-Frank Backup

		1- Fayette County Letter

		2- Fayette County Credit Support Annex

		3- Fayette County JPM Bilateral DF Agreement

		4- Dodd-Frank- Fayette County Resolution












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to extend annual bid #861 for course aggregate with Hanson's Aggregates of Tyrone as the source 


for virgin aggregate and with Stephens Rock & Dirt, Inc., in an aggregate amount not to exceed $270,672.00, for the purchase of recycled 


material for calendar year 2014. 


This contract is used to identify a vendor for the purchase of various sizes of stone to be used in calendar year 2014.  Stone prices over 


the past 3 years revealed an overall trend of increasing prices. Locking in existing contract prices for another year seems to be a better 


option than rebidding. 


 


Hanson Aggregates of Tyrone, as the primary vendor for 2013 for virgin aggregate, has agreed to extend the contract for 2014 without 


any price changes.  


Stephen's Rock & Dirt, Inc of College Park, as the source for certain sizes of recycled aggregate has also agreed to extend the contract 


for 2014 without any price changes. 


 


This is a contract for the remainder of calendar year 2014 with an expiration date of December 31, 2014. 


  


A not-to-exceed contract of $270,672 is recommended for the remainder of FY 2014 budget year. After the FY 2015 budget has been 


established (after July 1, 2015) a revised not-to-exceed amount may be brought before the BOC if needed. The not-to-exceed is broken 


down as follows: $20,000 for Stephen's Rock & Dirt; $250,672 for Hanson Aggregates. 


 Approval of staff's recommendation to extend annual bid #861 for course aggregate with Hanson's Aggregates of Tyrone as the source 


for virgin aggregate and with Stephens Rock & Dirt, Inc., in an aggregate amount not to exceed $270,672.00, for the purchase of recycled 


material for calendar year 2014. 


Funding for course aggregate is approved in the Road Department's O&M budget line item 100 40220 531173.  Project specific funding 


is generally included in CIP and SPLOST projects.


Yes Thursday, January 10, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Note: These types of calendar contracts will be converted to fiscal year contracts during next year’s budget process - along with revised 


NTEs to coincide with annual funding.


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
 
 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  December 2, 2013 
 
Subject: Bid #861 Extension 1 – Coarse Aggregate 
 
Last December, the Purchasing Department issued Invitation to Bid #861 to establish contracted 
prices for various sizes of coarse aggregate, which are used in the construction and maintenance 
of county roads.  The contract, effective through December 31, 2013 included prices for various 
sizes of coarse stone aggregate used in asphalt and concrete, base stone for stabilization 
beneath the asphalt, rip rap for erosion control, and similar materials.  The invitation to bid 
specified that the county would use its vehicles to pick up the aggregate at the quarry.  To 
determine the full costs, transportation expenses (including gasoline and employee pay) were 
added to the price per ton that vendors bid.  This allowed consideration of distance to each 
quarry. 
 
The invitation sought bids for both new materials and recycled materials.  Recycled aggregate is 
usually less expensive.  However, it may not have the hardness or other properties needed for 
some construction projects.  This must be considered on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Invitations to bid were direct-mailed to 26 contractors.  In addition, invitations were extended via a 
local newspaper, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23.  Five bids were submitted for new materials.  One of the 
vendors also submitted a bid for recycled materials (please see the attached display). 
 
For rip rap type 3, Stephens Rock and Dirt, Inc. bid a lower price than Hanson Aggregates, the 
recommended vendor.  Hanson Aggregates’ quarry is located in Tyrone, while Stephens’ quarry 
is near Hartsfield-Jackson Atlanta International Airport.  While both quarries are 20 miles away, 
there is a considerable difference in traffic congestion.  This makes Hanson Aggregates the more 
favorable vendor for rip rap type 3, since less time per trip would mean lower personnel and fuel 
costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://www.glga.org/�





 
 
The Road Department had determined that, given historical usage and relative prices, it 
recommended substituting other products instead of contracting for #7 stone.  For the other 
products, it recommended purchasing new materials from Hanson Aggregates and recycled 
materials from Stephens Rock and Dirt, Inc. as follows: 
 
                        New Materials                Recycled Materials   
      Material    Vendor  Per Ton  Vendor  Per Ton 
Rip Rap Type 1 Hanson Aggregates   $14.35                 N/A   
Rip Rap Type 3 Hanson Aggregates          13.35                 N/A   
Surge Hanson Aggregates          12.00                 N/A   
Graded Aggregate Base Hanson Aggregates            7.50                 N/A   
#4 Stone Hanson Aggregates          11.50 Stephens Rock & Dirt   $10.75 
#5 Stone Hanson Aggregates          12.30  Stephens Rock & Dirt    10.75 
#357 Stone            N/A Stephens Rock & Dirt    10.75 
#57 Stone Hanson Aggregates          12.00 Stephens Rock & Dirt    10.75 
#810 Stone Hanson Aggregates            6.00                 N/A   
M-10 Screenings            N/A Stephens Rock & Dirt      3.95 
 
 
The contract includes a provision that it may, with the consent of both parties, be extended for 
two additional years, one year at a time.  Both Hanson Aggregates and Stephens Rock and Dirt, 
Inc. have agreed to hold their prices firm for Calendar Year 2014.  The Road Department 
recommends extending the two contracts for the 12 months ending December 31, 2014.  Prices 
per ton would remain the same.  The not-to-exceed for both contracts would increase from a total 
of $200,000 in 2013 to $270,672 in 2014, due to changes in scheduled work.  I concur with the 
Road Department’s recommendations. 
 
Attachment 







P:\Ted B\Road Dept\861 Stone Ext 1\Calc - 861 Ext 1.xlsx


Est. Extended Extended Extended
Commodity Tons Bid Trans Total Total Bid Trans Total Total Bid Trans Total Total


Rip Rap Type 1 50 14.35 4.29 18.64 932.00 15.75 5.74 21.49 1,074.50 No Bid
Rep Rap Type3 600 13.35 4.29 17.64 10,584.00 11.75 5.74 17.49 10,494.00 No Bid
Surge 200 12.00 4.29 16.29 3,258.00 11.75 5.74 17.49 3,498.00 No Bid
Aggregate Base 5,000 7.50 4.29 11.79 58,950.00 7.50 5.74 13.24 66,200.00 7.00 5.74 12.74 63,700.00
#4 stone 1,000 11.50 4.29 15.79 15,790.00 11.75 5.74 17.49 17,490.00 10.75 5.74 16.49 16,490.00
#5 Stone 50 12.30 4.29 16.59 829.50 11.75 5.74 17.49 874.50 10.75 5.74 16.49 824.50
#7 Stone 50 16.50 4.29 20.79 1,039.50 11.75 5.74 17.49 874.50 10.75 5.74 16.49 824.50   #7 stone not awarded.
#357 Stone 100 No Bid 11.75 5.74 17.49 1,749.00 10.75 5.74 16.49 1,649.00
#57 Stone 1,000 12.00 4.29 16.29 16,290.00 11.75 5.74 17.49 17,490.00 10.75 5.74 16.49 16,490.00
#810 Stone 250 6.00 4.29 10.29 2,572.50 11.75 5.74 17.49 4,372.50 10.75 5.74 16.49 4,122.50
M-10 Screenings 250 No Bid 4.45 5.74 10.19 2,547.50 3.95 5.74 9.69 2,422.50


Est. Extended Extended Extended
Commodity Tons Bid Trans Total Total Bid Trans Total Total Bid Trans Total Total


Rip Rap Type 1 50 16.00 8.83 24.83 1,241.50 16.00 8.73 24.73 1,236.50 16.00 4.69 20.69 1,034.50
Rep Rap Type3 600 16.00 8.83 24.83 14,898.00 16.00 8.73 24.73 14,838.00 14.00 4.69 18.69 11,214.00
Surge 200 13.00 8.83 21.83 4,366.00 12.00 8.73 20.73 4,146.00 12.75 4.69 17.44 3,488.00
Aggregate Base 5,000 8.00 8.83 16.83 84,150.00 7.75 8.73 16.48 82,400.00 7.75 4.69 12.44 62,200.00
#4 stone 1,000 13.00 8.83 21.83 21,830.00 12.00 8.73 20.73 20,730.00 12.75 4.69 17.44 17,440.00
#5 Stone 50 13.00 8.83 21.83 1,091.50 12.25 8.73 20.98 1,049.00 13.25 4.69 17.94 897.00
#7 Stone 50 16.00 8.83 24.83 1,241.50 16.00 8.73 24.73 1,236.50 18.75 4.69 23.44 1,172.00   #7 stone not awarded.
#357 Stone 100 No Bid No Bid No Bid
#57 Stone 1,000 13.00 8.83 21.83 21,830.00 12.50 8.73 21.23 21,230.00 13.00 4.69 17.69 17,690.00
#810 Stone 250 10.00 8.83 18.83 4,707.50 5.00 8.73 13.73 3,432.50 No Bid
M-10 Screenings 250 10.00 8.83 18.83 4,707.50 5.00 8.73 13.73 3,432.50 10.00 4.69 14.69 3,672.50


Full Cost Per Ton


Full Cost Per Ton Full Cost Per Ton


Full Cost Per Ton Full Cost Per Ton


Full Cost Per Ton


VULCAN MATERIALS - MADRAS
New MaterialsNew Materials New Materials


Fayette County, Georgia
Bid #861 - Coarse Aggregate


Recycled Materials
HANSON AGGREGATES


MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS


STEPHENS ROCK & DIRT, INC. STEPHENS ROCK & DIRT, INC.


VULCAN MATERIALS - GRIFFIN


New Materials New Materials











ANNUAL CONTRACTS
November 25, 2013 Not-To-Exceed Estimates for Jan 1 - June 30, 2014


#861 #861 #872 #895
Stone Stone Asphalt Hauling


Stephens Hansons
531173 531173 531171 522111


2013 NTE 20,000$      180,000$          2,600,000$       150,000$          
2013 Actual


Remaining FY 2014 O&M Budget 46,066$            98,560$            2,181$              
LMIG2 225,377$          19,600$            
LMIG3 431,385$          56,400$            
LMIG4 431,278$          32,760$            


Road Projects:
Splost - 92 @ Veterans Pkwy 84,000$            148,000$          76,650$            
Splost - 85 @ Harp 51,468$            85,076$            46,247$            
Valleywood Rd 7,280$              


Drainage Projects:
Environmental Management Project #1 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #2 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #3 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #4 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Environmental Management Project #5 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Kirkley Rd Drainage 5,250$              2,475$              4,160$              
Road Dept Maintenance project #1 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              
Road Dept Maintenance project #2 4,500$              2,035$              1,300$              


Other Projects:
Dept of Driver Services - parking lot 9,600$              17,000$            1,000$              


TOTALS 227,884$          1,453,396$       255,378$          


Contingency 10% 10% 10%


2014 NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT 20,000$      250,672$          1,598,736$       280,916$          


Agreed to Agreed to Agreed to rebid
extend extend extend - primary


only





		Road- Course Aggregate Agenda Request File

		Road- Course Aggregate Backup Revised

		Road- Course Aggregate - Purchasing Backup 1 REV

		Road- Course Aggregate Backup

		Road- Course Aggregate - Purchasing Backup 1

		Road- Course Aggregate - Purchasing Backup 2

		Bid Recommendations



		Road- Course Aggregate Backup

		Road- Course Aggregate Backup

		Road- Annual Contract Hauling Backup





		Not To Exceed estimates-REV












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Recognition and rewarding of the County Department who won Fayette County's Annual Door Decorating Contest.


Each of Fayette County's Departments participated in a door decoration contest in honor of the Christmas holiday season. 


 


The doors were judged by Sheriff Barry Babb, Tax Commissioner George Wingo, Clerk of Superior Court Sheila Studdard, and Fayette 


County Chairman Steve Brown in order to determine which door should win the contest. 


 


The department winning the contest will be present at the Board of Commissioners meeting to receive a trophy for their success!


Recognition and rewarding of the County Department who won Fayette County's Annual Door Decorating Contest.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This event brings the County Departments together in friendly competition in an effort to celebrate the Christmas and New Year's 


holidays.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 12, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a Refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. This request is given to the Tax Assessors' Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioner's for their final approval of 


said requests.


Approval of the disposition of tax refunds as recommended by the Tax Assessor's Office.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had previously been erroneously assessed and taxes have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically through the year(s)


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013







Refund Requests BOC Pending
Taxpayer Year(s) Property Basis for Request Recommend Reason Amount


Ferrell, Darrell & Pam


04-2201-014


2010


2011


2012


2013


Residential


Taxpayer only ownes 5.024 


acres. County records showed 


6 acres 


Approve
Taxpayer has been taxed in error for 


.976 additional acres


2010 - $221.87


2011 - $216.87


2012 - $195.79


2013 - $196.23


Thompson, Suellen B. & Earnest C.


05-46-  028


2010


2011


2012


2013


Residential


Taxpayer only ownes 5.48 


acres. County records showed 


6.4 acres 


Approve
Taxpayer has been taxed in error for 


.92 additional acres


2010 - $77.64


2011 - $77.52


2012 - $68.46


2013 - $69.33


Tilwin Properties, Inc. 


07-3610-002
2012 Commercial


Taxpayer request sale price for 


2011
Approve


Tax Assessors are required by law to 


match sales price for following year.
2012 - $769.54


Total Amount Requested $1,893.25


Number of Recommended Approvals 9


Number of Denials 0


Amount Recommended to Refund $1,893.25





		Tax Assessor- Refund Agenda Request File

		Tax Assessor- Refund Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of Inman and Oak Grove Elementary Schools for being among the 78 highest performing Title I Schools in the State of 


Georgia.


The Georgia Department of Education has recognized Inman and Oak Grove Elementary Schools as being among the 78 highest 


performing Title I Schools in the state.  Students at both Fayette County schools scored in the top 5 percent on state-wide assessments. 


 


Source: Atlanta Journal Constitution


Recognition of Inman and Oak Grove Elementary Schools for being among the 78 highest performing Title I Schools in the State of 


Georgia.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionDecember 12, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Steve Brown


Proclamations honoring Fayette County couples who are celebrating their milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


The following couples are celebrating their milestone Wedding Anniversaries: 


 


Jim and Linda Robinson- 50 years 


Bogus L and Jewelean Y Miller- 50 years 


 


Fayette County is honored to recognize these couples and to celebrate their marriage. 


Proclamations honoring Fayette County couples who are celebrating their milestone Wedding Anniversaries.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionNovember 14, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System County Manager Steve Rapson


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to donate a $900 water meter to the Veteran's Memorial at Patriots Park on behalf 
of all Veterans, conditioned upon the City of Fayetteville or the responsible party signing a service agreement to pay the ongoing monthly 
bills.


During the November 13, 2013 Water Committee meeting, County Manager Steve Rapson recommended that a $900.00 water meter 
should be donated to the Veteran's Memorial at Patriots Park.  This donation will serve as a standard for any veterans park that opens 
within Fayette County. 
 
Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport has stated that whoever signs the service agreement will be responsible to pay for the water.  
Mr. Rapson suggested that the donation would be conditioned upon the responsible parties approval of the ongoing maintenance. 
 
The Water Committee unanimously approved a motion to recommend to the Board of Commissioners a one-time donation of the $900.00 
water meter to Veteran's Memorial at Patriots Park on behalf of all Veterans, conditioned upon the City of Fayetteville or the responsible 
party signing the service agreement paying the ongoing monthly bill.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to donate a $900 water meter to the Veteran's Memorial at Patriots Park on behalf 
of all Veterans, conditioned upon the City of Fayetteville or the responsible party signing a service agreement to pay the ongoing monthly 
bills.


Fayette County will donate a $900.00 water meter.  The County will not be responsible for the monthly bills associated with this water 
meter.


No


No No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This donation is made in honor of all United States military veterans, and it demonstrates multi-jurisdictional respect for those who have 
served on behalf of the citizens of this great country.


ConsentThursday, December 12, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of Ms. Hannah Newton of McIntosh High School for County Pitcher of the Year.


Ms. Hannah Newton is a student at McIntosh High School.  Hannah tallied ten wins, 143 strikeouts, six shutouts, two no hitters, and one 


perfect game while leading the Chiefs to the state playoffs. 


 


The Board of Commissioners is honored to recognize Hannah for her contribution to an All-County Softball Team. 


 


Source:  Fayette Daily News 


Recognition of Ms. Hannah Newton of McIntosh High School for County Pitcher of the Year.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 12, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of Ms. Kimberly Perkins of Whitewater High School for County Batter of the Year.


Ms. Kimberly Perkins is a student at Whitewater High School.  Kimberly is the MVP of the Whitewater Wildcats softball team.  She 


hit .506 with 11 doubles, six home runs, and 50 RBI. 


 


The Board of Commissioners is honored to recognize Kimberly Perkins for her contribution to an All-County Softball Team. 


 


Recognition of Ms. Kimberly Perkins of Whitewater High School for County Batter of the Year.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 12, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of Division Chief and Emergency Management Director Pete Nelms of Fayette County's Public Safety Division for his work in 


meeting the incentive standards outlined in the Georgia Emergency Management Agency- Homeland Security Federal-State-Local 


Disaster Match Policy.


Fayette County has met the incentive standards outlined in the Georgia Emergency Management Agency- Homeland Security Federal-


State-Local Disaster Match Policy.  Achieving this level of preparation qualifies Fayette County for a reduced local match requirement for 


Public Assistance programs subsequent to a major Presidential Disaster Declaration.  As long as this status is maintained, the rate will be 


reduced by 2 1/2 percent. 


 


This achievement was accomplished by many hours of hard work by Division Chief and Emergency Management Director Pete Nelms.  


The work included the development of four operational recovery plans, participation in the National Flood Insurance Program, the 


establishment and training of a local Preliminary Damage Assessment Team(s), completion of yearly standards as outlined in GEMA-HS 


Emergency Management Performance Grant Program, and the county's designation as a StormReady Community by the National 


Weather Service.  Each of these plans, programs, and initiatives is very important and plays a critical role in a communities overall 


preparedness and ability to respond to and recover from a disaster or emergency. 


 


The Board of Commissioners would like to recognize Pete Nelms for his work in meeting the incentive standards.


Recognition of Division Chief and Emergency Management Director Pete Nelms.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, December 12, 2013









		Commissioners- Pete Nelms Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Pete Nelms Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Mr. Brian Haren and Mr. Bob Simmons to the Fayette County 


Planning Commission, and for each appointment to begin on January 1, 2014 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


The Fayette County Planning Commission is a body comprised of five members who are appointed to three-year terms.  The Planning 


Commission hears and makes recommendations concerning amendments to the zoning ordinance, including the rezoning of property 


and the comprehensive plan.  The Planning Commission also approves preliminary plats, final plats, and minor subdivision plats, and 


hears variances on subdivision regulations, floodplain regulations, and watershed protection regulations. 


 


Two Planning Commission positions are set to expire on December 31, 2013.  Pursuant to Board direction, the positions were advertised 


for all interested citizens to apply.  The County Clerk received six applications.  Two other citizens expressed initial interest but chose not 


to apply.  Two of the applications were for reappointments from current appointees to the Planning Commission and the four remaining 


applications were new considerations.  Chairman Steve Brown and Commissioner Randy Ognio interviewed each applicant and decided 


to appoint the following two applicants:  Mr. Brian Haren and Mr. Bob Simmons. 


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation to appoint Mr. Brian Haren and Mr. Bob Simmons to the Fayette County 


Planning Commission, and for each appointment to begin on January 1, 2014 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


Not Applicable.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, December 12, 2013





























































		Commissioners- Planning Commission Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Planning Commission Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Shop Fayette County for the Holidays


Proclamation to encourage citizens to shop Fayette County shops during the holidays to promote economic prosperity and to keep 


Fayette tax dollars in Fayette County.


Shop Fayette County for the Holidays.


Not Applicable.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionDecember 12, 2013







 
FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 
               


SHOP FAYETTE COUNTY FOR THE HOLIDAYS 
               


 
A PROCLAMATION 


 
 


WHEREAS,  Fayette County offers a wide variety of retail shopping opportunities; and  


WHEREAS, Local sales taxes on goods purchased in Fayette County are distributed to the county 


and municipal governments to pay for services such as public infrastructure, recreation 


and public safety; and 


WHEREAS, Purchasing Christmas gifts and other goods outside of Fayette County means you are 


helping to pay for someone else’s government services; and 


WHEREAS, You really can make all your essential and extravagant gift purchases right here in 


Fayette County, from stylish clothing and high tech gadgets to furniture and toys;  


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS DO HEREBY 
PROCLAIM the months of December and January as the season of “SHOP FAYETTE COUNTY 


FOR THE HOLIDAYS,” and we encourage all our citizens to buy local and put your sales taxes to 
work in your community for your benefit. 
 
 


So proclaimed this 12th day of December 2013 


       


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


          


             


                 STEVE BROWN, Chairman     





		Commissioners- Shop Fayette Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Shop Fayette Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Selection Committee's recommendation to reappoint Mr. Thomas Mahon and Mr. George "Larry" Blanks to the 


Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals, and for each appointment to begin on January 1, 2014 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


The Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) is a volunteer body comprised of five members who are appointed to three-year 


terms.  The purpose of the ZBA is to hear and decide upon appeals where it is alleged there is error in any order, requirement, decision 


or determination made by the Zoning Administrator in the enforcement of regulations.  The ZBA may, in conformity of the provisions of 


regulations, reverse or affirm the order, requirement, decision, or determination of the Zoning Administrator.  The ZBA may also direct the 


issuance of a permit and, upon appeal in specific cases, authorize a variance from the terms of regulations as will not be contrary to the 


public interest. 


 


Three ZBA positions are set to expire on December 31, 2013.  Pursuant to Board direction, the positions were advertised for all 


interested citizens to apply.  The County Clerk received four applications.  Three of the applications were for reappointment from current 


appointees to the ZBA and the fourth application was a new consideration.  Chairman Steve Brown and Commissioner David Barlow 


interviewed each applicant and decided to reappoint the two of the current appointees:  Mr. Thomas Mahon and Mr. George "Larry" 


Blanks.


Approval of the Selection Committee's recommendation to reappoint Mr. Thomas Mahon and Mr. George "Larry" Blanks to the Fayette 


County Zoning Board of Appeals, and for each appointment to begin on January 1, 2014 and to expire on December 31, 2016.


Not Applicable.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The Selection Commission initially chose to appoint Mr. Brian Haren to the Zoning Board of Appeals, however, Mr. Haren also applied for 


the Planning Commission.  The Selection Committee chose to appoint Mr. Haren to the Planning Commission as will be noted in this 


agenda.  The remaining vacant ZBA position will be re-advertised in the near future.


New BusinessThursday, December 12, 2013





























		Commissioners- Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Zoning Board of Appeals Backup










MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


November 14, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on November 14, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.
in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the November 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow asked the Veterans to stand and be recognized in honor of Veterans Day.  He also informed
everyone that he had been asked to judge at the Patriot Pen’s essay contest where there was a young man who
wrote an essay from St. Paul’s Lutheran Church.  He said he asked the young man to come to the meeting to talk to
the people about patriotism.  Commissioner Barlow said examples like this young man “bode well for the United
States,” and he referred to former United States President Theodore Roosevelt who said “Patriotism stands by the
County.  It does not mean to stand by the President or any other public official.”  Commissioner Barlow then asked
Mr. Jacob Richardson to read his essay to the audience.  Mr. Richardson did so.  After Mr. Richardson read his
essay, a brief video was shown concerning veterans and patriotism.


Commissioner Barlow asked Pastor Rob Maulella of St. Paul’s Lutheran Church to offer the Invocation, and Pastor
Maulella did so.


Commissioner McCarty led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda, to move New Business Item #22 before Public Comment, that New
Business Item #23 be moved before Public Comment, to remove New Business Item #24, and to add New Business
Item #25– Highway 85 sewer line easement to the Agenda.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 2


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of the 7th Annual Chair-ity for The Children’s Village at Christian City.


Commissioner Barlow presented the recognition of the 7th Annual Chair-ity for The Children’s Village at
Christian City to Ms. Heidi Becker on behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners.  Ms. Becker
showed a video about the 7th Annual Chair-ity event, and commented about the need to contribute to
children who need help.  A copy of the request and recognition, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Giving Thanks and Donating in Fayette County: Recognition of a few organizations in Fayette
County that provide food and clothing donations and thanking them for their service to the
community.


Commissioner Oddo recognized the following charitable organizations on behalf of the Fayette County
Board of Commissioners: 


Real Life Center: Mr. John Leake , representing the Real Life Center, said it was because of the Fayette
County community that Real Life Center started more than ten years ago to provide a safe place for people
from all walks of life; knowing that hard times can happen to anyone at any time.  He said the main
programs they offer are food, clothing, and financial assistance all with accountability, follow-up and
encouragement.  He spoke about the organization’s involvement with Fayette’s Biggest Food Drive, and he
reported that about 400,000 pounds of food have been distributed this year throughout Fayette and Coweta
Counties.  He also spoke about the T-Shirts for Turkey’s promotion that the organization just completed,
and he reported that Real Life Center was able to distribute more than 900 turkeys to struggling families. 
He thanked Fayette County for being a community that helps those in needs.  


Bloom: Ms. Angela McNulty, who serves on the Board of Directors for Bloom, said Bloom has been serving
the Fayette County for more than 24 years.  She told everyone that Bloom was formerly known as Fayette
Youth Protection Homes, and that the organization went through a renaming.  She stated that Bloom is very
thankful for the support that it has had over the past years, and the decision to change the name took a
long time and much prayer.  She said the reason the name was changed was because the organization is
now serving children from across Georgia; not just Fayette County.  She reported that this year Bloom has
served children in 28 counties throughout the state and that more than 350 foster children and more than
200 foster families that have come to shop at the Bloom Closet. She stated that through the generosity of
the people of Fayette County, Bloom has given more than 32,000 items of clothing and shoes and
backpacks and school supplies to kids in foster care.  She said that at Bloom the heart and soul of every
child matters, and that the organization works to give dignity and respect to the children.  She explained
that Bloom has three basic services: 1) eight children currently live in the Friday-Johnson Home, 2) the
Bloom Closet, which was formerly known as Gracie’s Closet, provides clothing and supplies to foster
children and families with the idea of easing financial burdens on sponsored families, and 3) a foster
parenting program where families and individuals are trained to be foster parents.  She asked for donations
to the Bloom Closet as the needs are great.  She asked people to consider becoming a foster parent, or to
volunteer at Bloom.  She added that financial donations are always appreciated.  She closed by quoting
Nelson Mandela: “The measure of any society is in how it treats its children.”







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 3


Fayette Samaritans: Ms. Linda Ladd, representing Fayette Samaritans, stated that the organization was
established in 1991 as an emergent crisis type organization.  She said it is run solely by volunteers with no
paid employees.  She said the primary services include a food pantry, a food closet, and limited financial
assistance for utilities and rent.  She said that since they are a crisis organization, they are trying to keep a
roof over the heads of children and to provide electricity.  She asked for financial assistance, food items,
and gently used clothing to help meet the need.


Grandparents and Kin Raising Children: Ms. Queen Gordy, representing Grandparents and Kin Raising
Children, thanked the citizens of Fayette County for the recognition, and she presented members of the
Board of Grandparents and Kin Raising Children to those in attendance.  She explained that the name of
organization changed from Grandparents Raising Children to Grandparents and Kin Raising Children
because the scope was much larger.  She said the Grandparents and Kin Raising Children was a nonprofit
organization and was a benefactor of Bloom.  She explained that they were not foster parents, that they did
not receive any financial aid, and that the children were being raised often on a retirement income.  She
asked the community to help with financial support so that the children could experience cultural
opportunities that they could not otherwise partake of due to limited finances.


Mid-West Food Bank was also recognized; however, the representative from the organization was unable
to attend the meeting.


Chairman Brown encouraged Fayette’s citizens to consider helping out each of the organizations. Copies of
the request and of the certificates of recognition for each charitable organization, identified as “Attachment
2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Barlow asked Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee to stand and be recognized for
her department’s work with Special Olympics in Fayette County. He reported that Fayette County has the
“number one rated Special Needs education in the State of Georgia.”  He thanked Anita, her staff, and the
volunteers who make Special Olympics possible in Fayette County, and how the children smile as they
participate in the programs.


3. Recognition of Fayette County Public Safety’s Agreement with the Georgia Department of Public
Safety and the Georgia Department of Transportation regarding the Open Roads Policy.


Chairman Brown asked Fire Chief David Scarbrough and the Deputy Sheriff on duty to come to the front of
the room to be recognized.  He reminded everyone that there is a lot of traffic congestion in metropolitan
Atlanta, and that one thing that the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT), the Atlanta Regional
Commission (ARC), and the Georgia State Patrol was trying to do was to work out a system to move
vehicular accidents out of the right-of-ways as quickly and safely as possible.  He told the audience that the
Sheriff and Fire Chief had signed a resolution telling the GDOT, the State Patrol, and Governor’s Office that
Fayette County would work with them in their endeavor in what is known as the Georgia Open Road’s
Policy.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3",  follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 4


4. Proclamation honoring a Fayette County couple who is celebrating their 50th Wedding Anniversary.


Chairman Brown and the Board honored Mr. and Mrs. Darrell Clay and Karen Darlene Hatton who was
celebrating their 50th Wedding Anniversary.  Mr. and Mrs. Hatton were married on November 16, 1963. 
They met while attending church in Arlington, Virginia and were married in Alexandria, Virginia at the
Arlington Calvary Church of the Nazarene.  The Hatton’s have two children: Darla Lynn and Darren Keith. 
They have six grandchildren: Brittney Darlene (named after Grandma), Bradley Clay (named after
Grandpa), Mira Elizabeth, Cole Robert, Chloe Pamela, and Clark Nathaniel.  The Hatton’s are anticipating
their first great-grandchild in December.  Mrs. Hatton said that to be married for fifty years requires keeping
Christ first in the marriage and in life, and to never stop being who you are.  Mrs. Hatton said that married
couples must be tolerant of one another, patient, and kind to one another.  Copies of the request and
proclamation, identified as “Attachment 4“, follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Motion Concerning New Business Item #25: Chairman Brown moved to consider having New Business Item #25
to be heard prior to Public Comment.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.


PUBLIC HEARING:


5. Consideration of a transfer of the 2013 and 2014 licenses for the sale of alcoholic beverages
(package sales of beer and wine) from Amir Shahzid, Eight Era, Inc. DBA BP Kenwood, located at
1866 North State Route 85, Fayetteville, Georgia, 30214, to John Carter, Park Avenue C-Store II,
LLC., DBA Kenwood BP.


County Manager Steve Rapson informed the Board that all the paperwork is in order, and that Code
Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs was present to answer questions if needed.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept the consideration of a transfer of the 2013 and 2014 licenses for the
sale of alcoholic beverages (package sales of beer and wine) from Amir Shahzid, Eight Era, Inc. DBA BP
Kenwood, located at 1866 North State Route 85, Fayetteville, Georgia, 30214, to John Carter, Park Avenue
C-Store II, LLC., DBA Kenwood BP.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed. 
The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5“, follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


6. Consideration of Ordinance 2013-20 amending the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20.
Zoning Ordinance, regarding Article III. Definitions, Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-45.
Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers, and Article VI. District Use Requirements,
Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial
District.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina briefed the Board on this request.  He stated that this
request was basic housekeeping within the ordinance.  He said the county has a request from a property
owner to move a cell tower on the property, and it presented a new situation for the County since this had
never come up before.  He said this amendment would allow a person, for a period of time, to have an
existing tower on their property, to build a replacement, and then once the Certificate of Occupancy is 







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 5


issued for the replacement tower to give them 120 days to get it functional before they can dismantle the
initial cell tower.  Secondly, he explained the amendment would allow, within the M-1 and M-2 zoning
districts, that the building heights are raised from 35 feet to 50 feet.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve Ordinance 2013-20 amending the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, regarding Article III. Definitions, Article V. General Provisions,
Sec. 5-45. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers, and Article VI. District Use
Requirements, Sec. 6-22. M-1 Light Industrial District and Sec. 6-23. M-2 Manufacturing and Heavy
Industrial District.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2013-20, identified as “Attachment 6“, follow these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Mr. Ken Lindsey: Mr. Lindsay read a letter to the Board on behalf of Liberty Baptist Church–located at 1077
Highway 314.  The following is a transcript of what he read:


Dear Fayette County Commissioners,


Thank you for your faithful representation of the citizens of Fayette County.  The Commission,


residents, and church members share a common commitment to preserve the health and safety of


every family in Fayette County.  On Wednesday, November 13, 2013, the members of Liberty


Baptist Church of Fayette County, Georgia discussed the decision to zone two adult entertainment


sex shops in our neighborhood.  By unanimous vote, the members expressed deep concern.  The


north Fayette County area is a lovely family environment.  Local schools are safe havens for


children, the recently developed Kenwood Park provides our families with safe recreation.  Our


churches develop strong families and community values.  Providing room for sex shops in our


community invites crime, elicits sexual activity in an unsafe environment for the children and


families of north Fayette County.  We respect your efforts to limit sexually-oriented businesses, but


the churches in the north Fayette community feel targeted.  Liberty Baptist Church has been a


strong contributor to a healthy and safe family community.  The Commissions actions that target


our neighborhoods with sex shops diminish these two aims.  The members of Liberty Baptist


Church ask you to represent all the families of Fayette County and to stand with us in providing an


environment for healthy families in a safe community.  


Sincerely,


Dr. Randy S. Wood


Mr. Lindsey added that his thought was “if you don’t build a China shop, you wouldn’t have to take the bull by the
horns.”  The members of Liberty Baptist Church stood up in the audience in support Mr. Lindsey and the letter that
he read into the record.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 6


Mrs. Laurie Klonoski: Mrs. Klonoski reminded the Board that she had spoken to the Board twice before in favor of
the recently defeated Core Infrastructure SPLOST.  She explained that the electorate’s choice to deny the Core
Infrastructure SPLOST may have caused devastation for two homes on Merrydale Drive.  She said that prior to its
defeat, the County’s staff made a priority list of the infrastructure projects, and that her property was on Category I–
those considered the most serious and in the most need of resolution.  She said her problem was explained by the
fact that when her subdivision was built in the early 1980s, the developer devised a slipshod for a stormwater
drainage pathway that was totally unworkable.  She said the developer and the County Engineer should have known
better, but it was passed.  She said that when he realized the possibility of future stormwater problems, the County
Engineer signed a stamp on the property plat absolving the County of any responsibility for future drainage damage. 
She explained that at the time, the County already knew there were plans to build some homes near the older
homes and on higher ground.  Mrs. Klonoski said one option, albeit less profitable, would have been to leave the two
lowest lying lots empty so that a drainage system could be worked out that would function properly. She said the
County must reprioritize the infrastructure repairs they can afford.  She hoped the County would have $16 million
with the passage of the Core Infrastructure SPLOST, but now the County must settle for a $5 million bond.  She
understood that there are several dam projects would cost $3 million of the $5 million, and that the remaining money
was not nearly as much for the remaining infrastructure repairs.  She said she was worried that she may lose her
spot as a Category I concern.  She stated that the result of the poorly designed stormwater drainage paths is that
her property gets all the drainage from scores of homes, causing an enormous ravine that is 75 feet wide and 25 feet
deep.  She said the ravine has further erosion with every rain.  She reported that uprooted trees have fallen with the
ravine and others have their entire root structures exposed.  She stated that since Chairman Brown came to the
property that, in addition to their yard sliding toward the ravine, the property has dramatic depressions in both the
front and back yards.  She told the Board that this problem would only get worse unless the County can come up
with the $125,000.00 that was estimated to make the repairs.  Mrs. Klonoski said the consequences for her family, if
there was no money or repair, would be horrendous since the values of their two homes are plummeting.  She said
she could not possibly sell her homes in that condition, and that the equity they hoped to earn as part of their
retirement was nonexistent.  She hoped the Board would understand why she was at the meeting, asking for help. 
She said her family does not have $125,000.00 and cannot raise the money under any circumstances.  She added
that she should not have to raise the money since they did not cause the problem to begin with.  She invited the
entire Board of Commissioners to look at her property, saying the problem was pretty astounding when seen in
person and that it would help the Board understand why she was so worried about it.


Mrs. Alice Jones: Mrs. Jones, vice-president of the North Fayette Community Association, said she was echoing
the letter written by Liberty Baptist Church.  She said she was concerned, and that many residents have called with
concerns, about the proposed adult shops and businesses on the corridors of State Route 314 and Georgia Highway
85.  She thought that some people thought about the issue at the October 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners
meeting, and was told that this was publicized for public comment before a decision was voted upon.  She thought
that if the Board meant that the people were to read The Citizen newspaper, then the Board should know that her
neighborhood does not receive The Citizen.  She stated that there had been no prior communications with either her
or anybody else, including Mr. David Brill who is the president of the North Fayette Community Association.  She
said the community was outraged, and she urged the Board to revisit its decision in order to find other locations to
put adult oriented establishments.  She thought the Board’s decision was a disrespect to the community, and again
asked the Board to revisit the issue.  Secondly, Mrs. Jones spoke about the failure of the Core Infrastructure
SPLOST project to pass, and she said her street in her subdivision was one of the identified Category I items on the
proposed SPLOST list.  She said her street floods badly when it rains because they are located in the lowest point of
the subdivision.  She urged the Board to revisit that issue and to include the issue in the County’s budget for Capital
Improvements and road improvements.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 7


Ms. Dorothy Herring: Ms. Herring said she was the President of the Northridge Homeowners Association, and that
the homeowners in the Northridge community are caught between some bad things happening north of them in
Clayton County where adult entertainment shops are located, and now with the potential of being closed in on the
south with adult oriented shops.  She said the community has already had several break-ins, and that the community
is continually trying to guard its neighborhood and to keep it safe, and to keep the kids and adults in the
neighborhood safe.  She was hopeful that the Board would revisit the areas where it was potentially proposing for
adult entertainment to determine if there is a way to help the citizens protect their property values.  She said when a
person is on the north end of the county, it is much easier for unsavory things to happen.  She said her
neighborhood has been very lucky and blessed to have the Sheriff’s Office to come out since there have been
several break-ins in the past month.  She said the Sheriff’s Office is watching the neighborhood and monitoring the
neighborhood, but that the neighborhood would definitely need help from the Board of Commissioners in order to
maintain the value and sanctity of their property.  She said the people were looking toward the Commissioners to
help in that endeavor.  Ms. Herring said that she read that some of the places where the shops would potentially be
located, and she asked, if by some chance someone decided to put an adult oriented shop on each of those three
locations, what would the County be left with.  She suggested that the County would be left with senselessness to
their north and nothing much better south of them.  She added that even though people think it may not happen, the
possibility existed that it could happen, and that there is nothing in the legislation to protect the people and
neighborhood from being a victim.  She hoped the Board would revisit the issue, and know that on the north side,
and especially with Northridge, the people needed the County’s help.  Ms. Herring stated that she also attends Olivet
Baptist Church, and that the church is going through a major funding to build a bigger facility.  She said the church
was not going through that endeavor to be hemmed in by unsavory behavior around the church, and she asked the
Board to keep that in mind.


Mr. Clay Crim: Mr. Crim, of Crim Development,  spoke about New Business Item #25, and he corrected staff by
saying the address is 1391 Highway 85 instead of 1381 Highway 85.  Chairman Brown said this item would be
readdressed at the end of the meeting.  He also asked staff to verify the address and to ensure records are
accurate.


Mr. Gary Hogart: Mr. Hogart said he was attending the meeting with other members from Liberty Baptist Church. 
He said that within the last year, he and his wife were fortunate and blessed to be able to move to Fayetteville, and
that they had been looking forward to moving to Fayetteville for a number of years.  He said it was always known
that Fayetteville was a family-type of a city.  He said this was the first time he had ever been to a Commissioners
meeting, and he was very impressed with the very positive way that the meeting began and how people are allowed
to speak.  He thought the way the meeting was handled was awesome.  He wanted the Board to know how he and
others felt, namely, he was strongly opposed to those kinds of things that will demean the families in Fayette County. 
He spoke about how families are already in trouble today, and it seems that the only people who can do anything
about stopping some of the issues are people like the Commissioners who are placed in elected positions.  He said
that the church prayed daily for the Commissioners and those in leadership so that they would make the right kinds
of decisions.  He informed the Board that the church was not angry at the Board, and instead was grateful to the
Board for the opportunity to come and share how they feel.  He appreciated how much the Board listens to the
people, and he said the people would continue to pray that God would work in everyone’s hearts so that the terrible
trend of families breaking down could be stopped.  


Ms. Debbie Feemster: Ms. Feemster, a member of Liberty Baptist Church and a member of the North Fayette
Community Association, said many of the older members have great and valid concerns.  She said they would like to
know what means could be brought to the county to stop adult oriented businesses in Fayette County without
picketing or without standing in the rain.  She said the people have been in the community for years.  She said she







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 8


and her husband raised their children in the Fayette community, and that while they are not afraid, many people are. 
She knew that the issue was advertised in the newspaper, and she suggested that the advertisement may have
been very tiny; especially if it was not something the County wanted to reveal.  She said the people were concerned
with valid concerns since they are property holders, and that they need the Board’s help.  She stated that her family
lived in Fayette County for twenty years, but that they are still young enough that they could move out if needed. 
She told the Board that many of the older people cannot move anywhere, so they need help to protect their property. 
She said the people wanted to know what provisions are available through the County to revisit the issue.  She said
the people are sitting back there and are wondering when the Board is going to address the issue.  She asked the
Board to let the people know what provision they have, and how can this issue be revisited, and how to get the issue
on the Agenda.  She asked if there needed to be a number of signatures, do the churches need to come together,
do the communities need to come together, does a picket line need to be formed, or what needs to be done to get
this back in front of the Board.  She said the people needed to have answers tonight so that the people could start
working on the issues.


Ms. Carla Hollins: Ms. Hollins, who lives in the southern part of Fayette County, said she came in support of her
neighbors and friends in the north end of Fayette County.  She said she read about the adult sex shops that were
coming to Fayette community, and she understood that Fayette County has taken a proactive platform in order to try
to contain some of the actions of some of the adult clubs.  She said she understood the Board’s intention, but her
problem was that it seemed to be targeting the north end of Fayette County, and she thought that was unfair.  She
told the Board that she did not come to the meeting to speak, only to observe, but as she listened to the people
speak that she understood what they felt.  She suggested that if she were in their position she would feel the same
way.  She thought the people needed to come together as a county and try to address this issue together.  She
thought that the issue should be brought up again, and that a sampling should be taken from the county to try to
come up with a collective solution to the issue.  She suggested that the County needs to spread the love around,
and that if people on the north side of Fayette County have to deal with the problem then the people on the south
side should have to deal with it as well.  She did not think it was fair to continue to dump on the north end of Fayette
County because, at some point, that dump and waste will become so heavy that it will flush down into the south. 
She stated that those on the south side of Fayette County would have to support their neighbors to the north.


Mr. Johnnie Jones: Mr. Jones spoke about the ordinance that was passed at the October 24, 2013 Board of
Commissioners meeting pertaining to adult oriented businesses.  He said he listened intently to what was said and
that he read about the decision.  He proposed to the Board is to go back and delete the areas that would designated,
remove them from the ordinance, because what the County needs is a definitive proposal that says “that if you want
to locate these types of businesses they have to meet these criteria,” and then, when they come and try to decide
where they want to put the businesses, then they have to come to the Board with a place, then the community has a
chance to fight against it.  He suggested that if the Board has already designated a place for these types of
businesses to go, then the Board has already helped them put adult oriented businesses into communities where
they are unwanted.  He thought that was a disservice to the people.  Mr. Jones said he did not come to the meeting
to make the issue one-sided, and he commended the Board for being proactive.  He said his interest was in the
north side of Fayette County, and that he noticed that there is a lot of much criminal activity trying to encroach into
north Fayette County.  He said one of the things he really appreciated was the Sheriff’s Deputies who have deployed
the license plate recognition devises that are on the trunks of Sheriff’s vehicles, since they target people who are
coming to the County who do bad stuff.  Mr. Jones said he had a conversation with a South Fulton police officer who
serves in the helicopter unit, and he asked if Fulton County had an agreement with Fayette County.  He said the
criminals from south Fulton are coming to Fayette County thinking they can get away with crime, and these are the
things that he stays in tune with.  He wanted to commend the Sheriff’s Office and the Board of







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 9


Commissioners in the efforts to limit crime in north Fayette County.  He asked the Board to revisit the adult
entertainment ordinance and to eliminate the designation to designate any area.  He suggested that if the Board was
fearful of a lawsuit, then the Board would be sued one way or another.  


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 7-13.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion. 
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


7. Approval of staff’s request to purchase a custom lighting system that will replace existing
peripheral lighting at the Historic County Courthouse, from Universal Concepts, in the amount of
$5,000.00, utilizing Project Contingency Funds.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


8. Approval of staff’s request to replace an existing postage machine with a Neopost IN-750 postage
machine at the total first-year cost of $11,265.00, and to transfer $9,180.00 from Project Contingency
funds to pay the unbudgeted balance of the cost.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to accept monetary and non-monetary donations to the
Department of Fire and Emergency Services totaling $25,000.00.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of a request from the Chanticleer Subdivision Home Owner’s Association seeking
authorization for the use of motorized cart travel on all streets within the subdivision in accordance
with Chapter 10., Article III., Motorized Carts of the Fayette County Code.


Ms. Joy McElwaney, vice-president of the Chanticleer Subdivision Home Owner’s Association, said this
was the first she had heard of this issue and asked for clarity on the matter.  


Community Development Director Pete Frisina reported that this request was submitted by Ms. Becky
Bartell, president of the homeowners’ association, who requested that the interior streets be approved for
golf cart use.  He explained that currently Fayette County has twenty-three subdivisions that have similar
permission to drive golf carts on the street within the subdivision.  He stated that the County would post
signs at the entrances and exits saying golf cart use is not permitted outside of the subdivision.  He stated
that the County started giving this type of permission in the early 1990s, and that he was not aware of a
problem occurring within the approved subdivisions that currently have these permissions.


Chairman Brown added that the county has strict requirements on who can drive a golf cart, how to drive a
golf cart, and other requirements.  Mr. Frisina agreed with Chairman Brown and emphasized that the
permission would apply only for interior mobility within the subdivision.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 10


11. Approval of Ordinance 2013-18 amending Chapter 12 Offenses and Miscellaneous, Article I in
General, to include Sections 12-7 Disorderly Conduct; 12-8 Loitering and Prowling; and 12-9 Public
Drunkenness; and to provide for enforcement of said regulations by law enforcement personnel. 
Copies of the request and Ordinance 2013-18, identified as “Attachment 11", follow these minutes
and are made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of Ordinance 2013-19 amending Chapter 12 Offenses and Miscellaneous, Article IV Litter,
to include Sections 12-91 through 12-98, to meet the mandated requirements of the Metropolitan
North Georgia Water Planning District and to provide for enforcement of said requirements.  Copies
of the request and Ordinance 2013-19, identified as “Attachment 12", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.


13. Approval of the October 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


14. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the Fayette County
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 5, International Property Maintenance Code, Section 302.4 Weeds, to
include an allowable height of 14-inches, adding the exclusion of crops.  This item was tabled by
Commissioner Allen McCarty at the October 10, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina spoke about amendments made to Ordinance 2013-14 that
were made after it was tabled at the October 10, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  He said the grass
height had been raised from twelve inches to fourteen inches, and that verbiage was added for crops and
associated provisions.  He said staff took a spin at trying to rewrite the ordinance and placing it in a different
section, but the interim county attorney reminded staff that there is a copyright over the material.  He said
staff was returning in an effort to fill in a blank that was left when the ordinance was adopted several years
ago.  


County Manager Steve Rapson added that staff was making this effort at the direction of the Justice
System because the judges want a permissible height in the ordinance for enforcement purposes. 
Chairman Brown and Mr. Frisina added that grass more than fourteen inches high was due to someone 
cutting their grass or in relation to vacant properties.


Commissioner McCarty commented “dare we write anyone a ticket for weeds over fourteen inches as long
as the county has them over fourteen inches.”  He added that if the County wants to give citizens a ticket,
then the County needed to fix its problems first.  Chairman Brown thought that was fair.  


Commissioner Barlow said he had a copy of a book entitled International Property Maintenance Code, and
that on page nine, Section 302.4 it reads: “All premises and exterior property shall be maintained free from
weeds or plant growth in excess of “jurisdiction to insert height in inches.””  He said the Code was intended
to be a reference, and then the County selects the inches that will go in the code.  He said the County was
required to set the height but for approximately ten years this ordinance has been absent the “inch-
indicator.”  He stated that in a couple of cases where the County’s law enforcement has tried to get
someone to comply, there was an opportunity where a homeowner hired an attorney, and the attorney
proved to the Court and the County that because there was no inch designation the County could not
enforce the ordinance.  He stated that the County was basically housekeeping an ordinance that has been
on the books for ten years that was not able to be enforced.  He said this language was coming from the
International Code Book that is used as a guideline for all counties.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 11


Chairman Brown moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 5, International Property Maintenance Code, Section 302.4,
Weeds, to include an allowable height of 14-inches, adding the exclusion of crops.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.


Ms. Linda Sandwich asked the Board to clarify “what this puts us on the hook for and what kind of
enforcement is there.”  She also asked if the code would imply where specific areas of property such as
private property or public property.  Chairman Brown replied that it would cover everything.  He stated that
the ordinance has been on the books for some while, but the problem was that when the ordinance was
adopted the height of the grass was not inserted.  He said the County has been taking people to court
based on this ordinance, and a judge finally called the county on the ordinance saying “You’ve got to put
something in there; a measurable increment in order for this to be enforced.”  He proposed that if a
neighbor just quit cutting their grass and it gets to fourteen inches or above, then the neighbor would be
applicable for a citation.  He said the way this is discovered by the County is generally by a neighbor calling
Code Enforcement.  


Ms. Eloise Delaine reported that she has called Fayette County for her neighbor’s yard that has not been
cut for three years.  She said as she called the Marshal’s Office, she was informed that they did not have
someone to enforce the code, and she was passed from one department to another.  She asked, once the
neighbor has been cited, how long would the neighbor have to cut the yard.


County Manager Steve Rapson replied that the County would give the violator a period of time to correct
the problem.  Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs replied that once Code Enforcement is notified a
citation is issued with a court date.  She stated that if they go to court they could be fined and would be
given an amount of time to cut their grass and they will be on probation with the court until such time that
the grass is cut.


Ms. Delaine replied that her neighbor’s yard was checked, that she did get a notice, that she cut half of the
yard.  Chairman Brown replied that if a citizen was not satisfied with anything the county was doing, then
call one of the commissioners and there would be immediate conversation with staff.  Officer Hobbs
clarified that if there is a fence in the backyard, and if the officer is not able to visually see the property, then
there are privacy laws that prevent officers from going into a fenced area.


The motion to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-14 amending the Fayette County
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 5, International Property Maintenance Code, Section 302.4, Weeds, to
include an allowable height of 14-inches, adding the exclusion of crops passed 4-1 with Commissioner
McCarty voting in opposition.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2013-14, identified as “Attachment 13",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS:


15. Consideration of staff's request to award the bid for construction of the Emergency Operations
Center to Atlantic South Construction, Inc., in the amount of $785,400.00, utilizing funding from
37530930-541320 2930C.


Fire Chief David Scarbrough reported that some time ago, staff received a federal grant for $1 million to
build an Emergency Operations Center.  He said it took time to develop the plan and to constantly re-







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 12


evaluate it. He said staff has put the Emergency Operations Center out to bid, that there were eleven
proposals received, and he asked for the Board to award the low bid in the amount of $785,400.00 utilizing
federal funding which is the money that will go into the capital fund.  He stated that staff hoped to have the
facility built and operational sometime next year around July or August.  


Chairman Brown added that the County did receive a very sizeable grant from the Georgia Emergency
Management Agency (GEMA) saying they would pay for the Emergency Operations Center.  Chief
Scarbrough agreed saying that it was a $1 million dollar grant but that GEMA gets to keep $50,000.00 of
the grant money.  Chairman Brown credited Fire and Emergency Services’ staff for doing a fantastic job of
pulling in the grants, and the funding is a result of staff’s effort.  He stated that the County would be getting
a first-class facility that has to withstand natural disasters so that emergency communications could still be
provided in the event that something goes wrong.  Chairman Brown said the county currently does not have
an Emergency Operations Center since the Emergency Command is in the second story of the
Administration Building, which is a retail shopping center that was converted into a government building. 
He stressed that when a tornado comes then the entire second floor is going off with it, along with the
command staff.  He said the beauty of having an Emergency Operations Center is that there will be people
in place who can protect the citizens, and he said the effort was owed to Fire and Emergency Services staff
that brought in the grant.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve staff’s request to award the bid for construction of the Emergency
Operations Center to Atlanta South Construction, Inc., in the amount of $785,400.00, utilizing funding from
37530930-541320 2930C.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.


Commissioner Barlow asked Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott if she had verified the account number as
read.  Mrs. Parrott replied that the account number was correct, and that the funds had not yet been
received by the County.


  The motion to approve staff’s request to award the bid for construction of the Emergency Operations Center
to Atlanta South Construction, Inc., in the amount of $785,400.00, utilizing funding from 37530930-541320
2930C passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.


16. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill (Engineer of Record for
the Water System) as outlined under Task #1 (Eng. Svc 90-Day-NTE) in the amount of $312,300.00
and Task #2 (Attached-Regulatory/CIP-Hrly Rate) in the amount of $26,250.00, and for the County
Manager to execute said contract and related documents.


County Manager Steve Rapson said this request was a follow-up to the approval for the CH2M Hill contract. 
He stated that there were actually two contracts that staff was asking the Board to adopt.  He said the first
contract was a fixed-base contract that was outlined as Task #1.  Mr. Rapson said he may have beat up on
Mr. Frank DeStadio of CH2M Hill a little bit in order to lower the cost, but basically there was negotiation to
get the rates to get to the $312,300.00.  He explained that Task #2 was a separate contract based on an
hourly rate.  He asked for approval for both contracts.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 13


Chairman Brown reminded everyone of the recent problems with the Water System, that the Board has
taken ownership of the problems and continues to work on the problems, and that CH2M Hill is one of the
best water engineering firms in the United States.  He said the County went after CH2M Hill because they
were the best and because it wanted to solve the problems.


Mr. Frank DeStadio, representing CH2M Hill, said his firm was pleased to be awarded this contract.  He
said he wanted to be clear that CH2M Hill resides in Fayette County, that he and his wife and his
grandchildren live in Fayette County, and that they certainly do not want to be just a vendor, but instead
want to be a partner.  He said CH2M Hill intended to work long and hard to guarantee its partnership to the
County.


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff’s recommendation to award a contract to CH2M Hill
(Engineer of Record for the Water System) as outlined under Task #1 (Eng. Svc. 90-Day-NTE) in the
amount of $312,000.00 and Task #2 (Attached-Regulatory / CIP-Hrly Rate) in the amount of $26,250.00,
and for the County Manager to execute said contract and related documents.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request
and contracts with CH2M Hill, identified as “Attachment 15", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


17. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-17 amending Chapter 14
Recreation and Parks of the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia.


Parks and Recreation Director Anita Godbee stated that the current ordinance located in Chapter 14 of the
Code of Ordinance applies only to water parks.  She stated that staff and the Recreation Commission
recommended an amendment to the code and to add to the General Section of the Ordinance the Policy
and Procedures that have been employed for years into the code.  She also asked the Board to change the
penalty of the violation in the water parks to be in alignment with the penalty for all ordinances in the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Commissioner Ognio pointed out that there are several parts of staff’s recommendation that really bothered
him such as the part about changing clothes.  He suggested that there were no real exceptions in the
language, and he knew from experience that those at the parks may change their shirts.  He thought the
recommendations could create an issue.  He understood that people needed to use common sense, but
some people do not use common sense and they could be charged with a misdemeanor changing their
shirt.  He said when he coached that there would be many times when he rushed from work to coach, and
he would change his shirt in the parking lot.  He suggested that these are the kinds of things that he did not
want to come into effect and make everybody a criminal.  He said he wanted to put this recommendation off
until the issues were addressed.  He understood those changing areas were available, but that there were
times when changing shirts in a hurry to play a game would occur and that the County would not want to
make somebody a criminal simply for changing a shirt.  Commissioner Ognio added that he had another
issue with restricting people from flying remote control planes, and he suggested that if someone was flying
a plane on an empty football field that had no signs prohibiting such activity, that the person could be
charged with a misdemeanor.  He said they were issues that should be better defined.  Ms. Godbee replied
that the county would use common sense in these matters.  Commissioner Ognio agreed, but he added
that once everyone was gone and others come into the County that they may not use common sense.  He
stressed that the County needed to make the law clear, and he suggested that this item needed to be
tabled until the issues are corrected.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 14


County Manager Steve Rapson said staff could work on tightening up the ordinance to make people more
comfortable.  He added that the County cannot legislate common sense, but that language could be added
that would address the majority of the concerns. 


Commissioner Ognio moved to table this item until the changes were made.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.


Commissioner Barlow pointed out that Mrs. Godbee had been the Parks and Recreation Director for twelve
years, and had actually worked in the department for 26 years.  When asked how many ball games and
recreation activities she had attended over her years, Mrs. Godbee replied that there were more than she
could count.  Commissioner Barlow stated that the reason he asked the questions was because he has no
prior experience of what Commissioner Ognio spoke about, and he asked Mrs. Godbee what she had
witnessed people changing shirts that would be in violation of the ordinance.  Mrs. Godbee replied that she
had not personally witnessed them on the ball field, but that people could be changing their shirts in cars,
but she had not seen them on the ball fields doing it.  Commissioner Barlow asked Mrs. Godbee what she
would recommend for the Board to do.  Mrs. Godbee replied that it would be a good idea for legal staff to
look at the proposed amendments.


County Manager Steve Rapson added that staff would get with the Sheriff’s Office on this matter.  He said
he had personally witnessed kids changing their shirts and plays skins versus shirts, and he said it was
certainly not the intention of the proposed amendments.  He stressed that there has to be some common
sense exercised, and even if a citation was issued the judge would throw the citation out.  He stated that
the proposed amendments could be modified to address some of Commissioner Ognio’s concerns.


Commissioner Barlow suggested that if the County were being reasonable with what was put into the
ordinance, then typically any citation would be upheld by the court system, but if it was unreasonable and
the ordinance was too strict, then the judges will bypass the ordinance saying it is not reasonableness.  


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport informed the Chair that the motion to table needed to include a
date certain when it would come back up again.  Commissioner Barlow asked what staff was doing now in
the absence of an ordinance.  Mrs. Godbee replied that the County was basically enforcing policies and
procedures that are in the books, and she added that the manuals do not address clothing.  Mr. Rapson
asked each Commissioner to provide staff with their individual concerns in order to ensure they are all
addressed.


Commissioner Ognio amended his motion to table this item until the January 23, 2014 Board of
Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the amended motion. The motion passed
unanimously.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2013-17, identified as “Attachment 16", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.


18. Consideration of staff’s request to design and construct a parking lot at the Georgia Department of
Driver Services facility, with said parking lot including seventy-three parking spaces, a driveway,
and upgrades to the stormwater detention pond, for an estimated materials cost of $50,938.00,
utilizing Project Contingency Funds.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 15


Public Works Director Phil Mallon stated that a state agency operates the county property at the McElroy
and McDonough Road.  He said the county provides the property and building and that the state provides
the services.  He said that those who have gone to the location realize that there is insufficient parking.  He
told the Board that both he and County Manager Steve Rapson met with representatives of the Department
of Drivers Services several times and looked at various options.  He said they felt the best solution at this
time was to expand the parking on the facility.  He said a concept plan had been prepared, and he
displayed the plan on the large screen for all to see.  He explained that the plan was to put in approximately
seventy parking spaces on the existing property and at the same time to improve the stormwater
management pond at the location at a material cost of about $51,000.00.  He asked the Board to provide
direction and to make funding available.  Chairman Brown asked Mr. Mallon to describe the map so that
people in the audience would understand what is being proposed.


County Manager Steve Rapson explained that there would be a barrier installed that would prevent people
from parking at the intersection because, currently, people were parking along the road at the intersection
and creating for real safety concerns.


Chairman Brown explained that the Department of Drivers Services is a state entity, and that the County is
providing them with the use of the facility and is paying for the utilities so that they can issue drivers’
licenses.  He said it was realized that they are having a problem in that facility and they are feeling the
pressures of a lot of usage.  He said the parking issue was one of the problems they were feeling.  He told
the people that he has asked if the state could come up with some money in order to get them in a different
location.  He told the people that there is currently no money available from the State for this matter, and so
the County was trying to put a Band-aid on the situation and just eliminate the dangerous parking element. 
He stated that this effort would still keep the people in crowded conditions and this issue would have to be
addressed down the road.  He suggested that as the State generates more money as the economy
recovers, then the County will ask them to come up with a better facility.


County Manager Steve Rapson suggested that this work was intended to be a short-term fix and that
hopefully the Department of Drivers Services will find another location.  He stated that if they did not find
another location then ultimately the County could close the facility due to safety concerns.  He said the
residents of Fayette County would then be affected due to the lack of convenience in obtaining the
services. 


Commissioner Barlow asked how long the effort to fix this problem had been in the works.  Mr. Mallon
replied that this problem had been explored for several years, but that it had become a top priority in the
past ten to eleven months.


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff’s request to design and construct a parking lot at the Georgia
Department of Driver Services, with said parking lot to include seventy-three parking spaces, a driveway,
and upgrades to the stormwater detention pond, for an estimated material cost of $50,938.00, utilizing
Project Contingency Funds.  Commissioners McCarty and Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 17", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


19. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Ordinance 2013-21 amending the Code of Ordinances for
Fayette County, Georgia by enacting provisions pertaining to the regulation of on-site sewage
management systems.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 16


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport briefed the Board on staff’s request saying it was a
housekeeping measure since it effectively takes state regulations and adopts them as a local ordinance for
enforcement purposes.  He said it would not change anything, but it would allow Code Enforcement Officers
to write citations on these issues where before it would have to be enforced through the Board of Health
and ultimately through the State Board of Health in Atlanta.  He suggested that it would remove the
inconvenience of enforcing the state’s regulations through the Health Board and it would make enforcement
more efficient.  Mr. Davenport explained that some of the problems addressed would be the occasional
failed sewage system that requires quick action and results.  


Commissioner Ognio pointed out that one section of the ordinance that talked about the type of pipes to be
used and referred to them as Schedule 40 PVC, and he hoped that requirement could be put as a minimum
standard.  Environmental Health County Manager Robert Kurbes replied that it is a minimum standard since
it is the minimum sized pipe that can be used for the conveyance piping.  Commissioner Ognio stressed
using Schedule 40 PVC as a minimum and that someone could upgrade to better pipes for their jobs.  Mr.
Kurbes replied that the State’s mandated Code that the Board of Health has to enforce only allows PVC as
the only acceptable piping for conveyance piping.  He said a person could go stronger than a Schedule 40,
but that the person could not use any other material than PVC pipes.  Commissioner Ognio replied that he
was aware that in other counties they have used stainless steel and pure iron pipes, and he said he was
confused.  Mr. Kurbes replied that they were not allowed for on-site sewage, but that they may be allowed
for sewer systems and he referred to the code in providing his answer.  


Commissioner McCarty asked if this ordinance applied to septic systems.  Mr. Kurbes replied that this
ordinance applied to septic systems since on-site sewage management systems are septic systems.


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-21 amending
the Code of Ordinances for Fayette County, Georgia by enacting provisions pertaining to the regulation of
on-site sewage management systems.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed. 
The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2013-21, identified as “Attachment
18", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


20. Consideration of Ordinance 2013-22 amending the Fayette County Code, Chapter 19., Article IV.,
Stormwater Management and establishing a rate-fee schedule and amendments to the Stormwater
Utility Credit Technical Manual referenced in this ordinance.


Environmental Management Director Vanessa Birrell briefed the Board on this request by saying after a
long year of assessing stormwater that she was coming to the Board to bring an amended ordinance.  She
said the ordinance had been dissected, that the rate schedule was removed from the ordinance and is
being presented as a separate document for the Board’s consideration.  She said staff also amended the
Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual as directed by the Board members to exclude the credits
pertaining to water quality, and to give those credits toward structural stormwater improvements.


Commissioner Oddo said the ordinance was still a work in progress and there were still areas that needed
to be clarified.


Commissioner Oddo moved to amend the Stormwater Ordinance as follows: to establish a late payment
penalty removing sections pertaining to filing notice of liens as a payment enforcement method, to remove
the credits for rain barrel watershed stewardship and septic tank maintenance, and to add credits for ten







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 17


and fifteen acre lots, and for residential ponds, with the balance of the actual finalization of the ordinance to
be taken up at a later date. Commissioners McCarty and Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Commissioner Oddo moved to establish a date for the finalization of the ordinance to January 23, 2014. 
Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. 
Copies of the request and Ordinance 2013-22, identified as “Attachment 19", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.


21. Discussion of a Future Land Use Plan study for the State Route 74 Corridor.


Chairman Brown told the audience that the Board had additional documents on the dais.  He explained one
document was provided from Ms. Linda Sandwich and it was dated November 14, 2013 to the Fayette
County Board of Commissioners, that there was a Fayette County GIS map, and there was another GIS
map entitled Highway 74 South, and a Group Six Starr’s Mill Professional Center Conceptual Master Plan,
and a Conceptual Plan for the Gates with Integrated Science and Engineering.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina reported that Ms. Sandwich approached Planning and
Zoning some while ago in order to rezone some property on State Route 74 South.  He said staff discussed
the issue with Ms. Sandwich and relayed to her that the County’s Land Use Plan does not reflect those
types of Land Uses in the southern portion of Fayette County in that area.  He said staff suggested that she
bring the question to the Board of Commissioners in order to determine if the Board wanted to consider
making Land Use changes on the State Route 74 South corridor.  Mr. Frisina then displayed maps of the
area and described the area under consideration and told of some considerations to bear in mind. 
Chairman Brown informed everyone that the State Route 74 Corridor recently went through a widening
project and is now a four-lane highway.


Ms. Sandwich informed the Board that the four lots that she was looking at for possible rezoning do have
“some detractable” for future sales.  She said there is one home for sale which is located next to a church
and it has a horse farm, and that there is another house for sale.  She said the owners of both houses are
not opposed to rezoning or a future land use because this should open up the market for those houses that
are somewhat landlocked.  She requested that the Board submit her suggestion to the Planning
Commission in order to look at a future Land Use Plan change.


Chairman Brown said he had looked at the area for quite a while and said that the borders of Peachtree
City were going to rest where they were and that he did not anticipate any change to them.  He explained
that one thing he was looking at was that he did not want to see properties get subdivided and split into
more houses that would cause more access problems.  He thought the office concept might be a pretty
decent proposal.  He added that one thing that the Starrs Mill School Complex is looking at is that some
schools do have capacity and they could bring in a few more students, but that Starrs Mill is not one of
those schools; so space is an issue in the area.  He suggested that there would be low traffic counts by
placing office facilities in the area, and they do not interfere with the subdivisions nearby since they have
different access points onto the highway.  He said he did not have a real problem with Ms. Sandwich’s
request, and he thought the rural boundary would make a great line of demarcation.  He said he would be in
favor of having the Planning Commission explore what the possibilities would be for office use in that area
since it would bring revenue, since it would not produce more students, and since it will not have a negative
traffic effect on State Route 74.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 18


Commissioner Barlow asked Ms. Sandwich if he heard her correctly that there were several houses in the
area.  He recalled that Ms. Sandwich said she had spoken to homeowners, but he asked if she had spoken
to the church as well.  Ms. Sandwich replied she had not spoken to the church.  Commissioner Barlow
thought it would be a real plus to talk to the church since the church was really well respected and since the
leadership is well respected.  He suggested that if the church were in favor of the initiative then it would be
a plus for Ms. Sandwich.  He added that he saw nothing that would prevent the Board from going forward
with the Planning Commission.


Commissioner Oddo said he had driven the area as well trying to observe the area.  He said he saw the
retail moving south.  He suggested that Georgia Highway 85 would serve as a natural barrier as a step-
down to A-R Zoning.  He agreed that people would probably not want to build homes in the area so the
request should be considered.


Commissioner McCarty added that he has driven through the area and he thought the request would make
great use of the property in the area, and he added that he could not think of anything else that could go
into the area any better.


Chairman Brown moved to send this item to the Planning Commission to review for a possible decision on
the Future Land Use Plan being amended to allow office in those specific sites that have been mentioned. 
Commissioners McCarty and Oddo seconded the motion.  


Mr. Dennis Chase commented said the area near The Chimneys is already being served with sewer line,
and that the County would be running into a situation with the Peachtree City Water and Sewerage
Authority who will want to service some of the area, especially since areas are adjacent to properties
already being served.  He thought the County should be sure that when the plan is under consideration,
then the County should consider how it is going to address that problem.  He predicted that the problem
would come up, that the Peachtree City Water and Sewerage Authority was desperate to sell their excess
capacity, and that they will want to sell it to the County.  He said that in the past the Board of
Commissioners has opposed any extension of sewer lines into county properties or county zoned areas,
and when the County does this, then it would begin looking at starting a precedence.  He said these issues
should be taken into consideration before the County makes too hasty a decision.


The motion to send this item to the Planning Commission to review for a possible decision on the Future
Land Use Plan being amended to allow office in those specific sites that have been mentioned passed
unanimously.  Copies of the request and the additional documents specified by Chairman Brown, identified
as “Attachment 20", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


22. Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee to appoint Mr. Allen Phinney to
the Fayette County Development Authority, and for said appointment to begin immediately and to
expire on April 9, 2014.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept the Selection Committee’s recommendation to appoint Allen Phinney
to the Fayette County Development Authority, and for said appointment to begin immediately and to expire
on April 9, 2014.  Commissioners McCarty and Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.  







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 19


Commissioner Oddo commented that he was on the Selection Committee for this appointment, and he
wanted everyone to know that all the candidates were very qualified.  He said both he and Commissioner
McCarty had a difficult time making the selection.  He said there were many people in the County who want
to serve and are capable of serving.  He said in this situation, Mr. Phinney had some excellent qualifications
that would really be good for the Development Authority.  He encouraged everyone to keep applying for
other positions.  He thanked Mr. Phinney for offering to take on the position, and he thought the
appointment was good for Fayette County.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 21", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


23. Consideration of a resolution from the City of Fayetteville consenting to the inclusion of Certain
Fayette County Ad Valorem Taxes in the computation of the Tax Allocation Increment for the City of
Fayetteville Tax Allocation District Number One- Highway Corridor.


Mayor Greg Clifton of the City of Fayetteville stated that the city appreciated the Board’s cooperation on this
matter, and that the city looked forward to renovating the older parts of the City of Fayetteville.  He
suggested that with Pinewood Studios coming to Fayette County the city was going to see growth and
economic activity, and it was his desire and hope that the Tax Allocation District would play a part in
revitalizing the city with new growth.  Mayor Clifton explained that a Tax Allocation District is an area that is
mapped off within the confines of a jurisdiction that must have sewer, and the properties within the mapped
out property must be contiguous by way of right-of-way.  He said the properties have to be in state of
distress or are underutilized.  He stated that the taxes for the properties within the mapped out area would
be frozen and the future increase of the value of property goes into a fund for the TAD district.  He said the
incremental valuation of those properties are paid to a fund instead of to a city of school board, and those
funds are used to finance future economic growth.  Mayor Clifton said the TAD has been on the law books
within Georgia over the past fifteen years, that over half of a billion dollars of economic development have
been funded through TAD, and that no TAD initiative has failed, even during the past recession. He thought
this was perfect timing for the city since old Fayetteville needed to be renewed.  He repeated that he
appreciated the County and the School Board’s support in this matter.  He clarified that the hope for result
of the TAD is not only for property in the TAD district but also for properties adjacent to the TAD district, and
that there will be an increased tax digest that will benefit everyone.


County Manager Steve Rapson agreed with the mayor’s comments, clarified that the Tax Allocation District
has to be for distressed properties, and that the definition of distressed properties is the State government’s
definition of distressed properties.  He explained that the thought process was that those properties would
not develop as quickly, so it is a good economic development tool as well as a good revitalization tool.  He
suggested that since the taxes are fixed, the two other aspects of this particular TAD that was being put into
place established a TAD Advisory Board that will be made up of the city manager, the county manager, and
the superintendent of the school board so that the projects, as they are coming before the TAD to be
funded, will be vetted by the Advisory Board who will then return to the respective Boards or Council.  He
said that as far as Fayette County is concerned, this TAD would exclude EMS and E-911, so as those
incremental properties develop, they would not have derogatory impact to public safety.  


.  
Commissioner Oddo moved to accept the resolution from the City of Fayetteville consenting to the inclusion
of Certain Fayette County Ad Valorem Taxes in the computation of the Tax Allocation Increment for the City
of Fayetteville Tax Allocation District Number One- Highway Corridor.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the
motion.  







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 20


Chairman Brown said he had seen the TAD tool work before, and he thought the City of Fayetteville was on
the right track.  He said the County would not lose a dime over what it is already collecting in ad valorem
revenues on those properties.  He said that on January 1, 2014, the County would be collecting the same
amount that it is collecting currently, and he clarified that while the County would not lose revenue it would
also not gain additional revenue as the property grows over the allowed timeframe.  He said that was the
incentive for developing the property.  He pointed out that what is good for Fayetteville is good for Fayette
County, and that the County would help the cities any way that it could.


The motion to accept the resolution from the City of Fayetteville consenting to the inclusion of Certain
Fayette County Ad Valorem Taxes in the computation of the Tax Allocation Increment for the City of
Fayetteville Tax Allocation District Number One- Highway Corridor passed unanimously.  Copies of the
request and Resolution with the City of Fayetteville, identified a “Attachment 22", follow these minutes and
are made an official part hereof.


24. Request for Fayette County to pay for legal representation for Ms. Marilyn Watts.


This item was removed from the Agenda at the Acceptance of the Agenda.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 23", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


25. Water Committee recommendation to approve the City of Fayetteville to use the waterline easement
on Highway 85 to service 1391 Highway 85 with sewer conditioned upon any future ongoing
maintenance associated with the waterline under the sidewalk not to be paid for by the Fayette
County Water System.


Chairman Brown informed everyone that this item was added to the Agenda 24-hours prior to the start of
the meeting, and that the media was notified, and that copies of the Agenda item were given to the press. 
He explained that the Agenda item was with each Commissioner at the dais and that if anyone wanted a
copy of the material that they could contact the County Clerk.  


County Manager Steve Rapson explained that this issue was basically a housekeeping item that was talked
about when a similar request was rescinded at the October 24, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  He
said the owner and the developer have worked out the issues in regards to the easement.  He said Matt
was in the audience to answer specific questions, and he repeated that this was basically the same project
that the Board recently rescinded.  


Chairman Brown stated that the reason that this item had to be added to the Agenda so quickly was
because the parties were closing on December 5, 2013, prior to the Board of Commissioners December 12,
2013 meeting.  He said the Board was trying to accommodate the parties so that they could make their
closing date.


Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the Water Committee’s recommendation to approve the City of
Fayetteville to use the waterline easement on Highway 85 to service 1391 Highway 85 with sewer
conditioned upon any further ongoing maintenance associated with the waterline under the sidewalk not to
be paid for by the Fayette County Water System.  


Chairman Brown indicated that staff was informing him that the address was 1381 Highway 85.  







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 21


Commissioner Barlow amended his motion to approve the City of Fayetteville to use the waterline
easement on Highway 85 to service 1381 Highway 85 with sewer conditioned upon any further ongoing
maintenance associated with the waterline under the sidewalk not to be paid for by the Fayette County
Water System.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport said he understood Commissioner Barlow to say that the County
would not pay for maintenance.  He said the issue was not paying for maintenance, but that the portion of
the waterline easement that is going to have a sidewalk over the top of the waterline to the extent that the
County would have to maintain the waterline by going through the sidewalk.  He said that is what the
County would not pay for–replacing the sidewalk.


 The motion to approve the City of Fayetteville to use the waterline easement on Highway 85 to service
1381 Highway 85 with sewer conditioned upon any further ongoing maintenance associated with the
waterline under the sidewalk not to be paid for by the Fayette County Water System passed unanimously.


The Board returned to this Agenda item based on Mr. Clay Crim’s correct information provided during
Public Comment.  Mr. Rapson verified to the Board that the property in question is located at 1391 Highway
85 as originally listed.


Commissioner Ognio moved to change the address on the Water Committee recommendation to approve
the City of Fayetteville to use the waterline easement on Highway 85 to service 1391 Highway 85 with
sewer conditioned upon any further ongoing maintenance associated with the waterline under the sidewalk
not to be paid for by the Fayette County Water System.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and other documents
specified by Chairman Brown, identified as “Attachment 24", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Direction Sought on New Business Item #24: County Manager Steve Rapson asked for Board direction on how
staff should handle the request.  Commissioner Oddo suggested that it would be better to redirect the matter to the
County’s Insurance Agency, and to let the Insurance Agency analyze the matter and take it out of the Board’s hands. 
Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport agreed that this is a coverage issue, and that the County typically sends
coverage issues to the Insurance Agency.


Chairman Brown informed everyone that he would abstain from the conversation because he was named in the
matter.


Commissioner Oddo moved to send the request for Fayette County to pay for legal representation for Ms. Marilyn
Watts to the County’s Insurance Agency.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed 4-0-1 with Chairman Brown abstaining from the vote.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 22


Update on the Core Infrastructure SPLOST: County Manager Steve Rapson informed the Board that there were
plenty of rumors and speculation about what the County would do since the Core Infrastructure SPLOST was not
passed in the recent election.  He explained that staff would take the Category I, Category II, and Category III
projects and short-list them according to how the County would like to spend half a million dollars on the needs.  He
told the Board that Stormwater Utility bills would be issued shortly around Thanksgiving and Christmas.  He
suggested that this issue would be taken up at the April 2014 Retreat in preparation of next year’s budget in regard
to what the long-term plan will be.


Consent Order from the Environmental Protection Division: County Manager Steve Rapson reported that the
County received a draft Consent Order from the Environmental Protection Division (EPD) and that it is under
evaluation at the moment.  He reported that staff had a meeting with EPD on October 21, 2013 to review the
County’s comments with regard to the issue, and he reported that the County has a 45-day window to respond to the
draft Consent Order.  He informed the Board that staff intended to respond to the draft Consent Order right after the
Thanksgiving holiday as opposed to taking the entire 45-day window to respond.  He stated that an update could be
given to the Board at the December 12, 2013 Commissioners meeting.  He added that the County has completed 89
out of the 150 deficiencies listed in the Sanitary Survey, meaning 59.3% of the deficiencies have been completed.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Four Items for Executive Session: Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that he had four items to be
discussed in Executive Session composed of one item of Real Estate, two items of Threatened Litigation, and one
review of the October 24, 2013 Executive Session Minutes.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow responded to Mr. Hogart’s public comments, and he thanked Liberty
Baptist Church and Mr. Hogart for keeping the Board in prayer.  He said he thought about II Chronicles 7:14, quoted
the verse, and submitted that it was prayer that is going to solve the issues in Fayette County.  He stated that God
was needed in America and that God is needed in Fayette County.  He thanked staff for their work, and he said he
prayed for staff’s safety in travel and he wished staff would have a wonderful time with their families.  He also said
he prayed for those in attendance and he would pray that they have a good time with their families.  Commissioner
Barlow closed by thanking the citizens who come to the meeting and express their opinions.  He recalled that the
first Commissioner meeting that he attended about three years ago had all of about five citizens in the audience.  He
suggested the reason that was the case was because the Commissioners did not pay attention to what the citizens
had to say, so the citizens stopped coming.  He said that current Board has turned that matter around, that he was
proud of that, and that he was thankful for the people who come to the meetings.  He acknowledged that he may not
always agree with what a citizen says, but he agrees that they have the right to say it, and that he volunteered and
was elected to hear the citizens, and that he gladly does so.  He reiterated that he would pray for everyone’s safety,
and thanked them for coming out.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty stated that Mrs. Emily Louise Burgess, who is the mother of
Purchasing Director Ted Burgess, passed away earlier in the week.  He informed everyone that she was 92 years of
age when she passed, and she left a husband that she had been married to for 72 years.  He wished that they had
been around so that the Board could celebrate their 73rd wedding anniversary.  He said everyone knew, and that the
family knew, where Mrs. Burgess is at the moment.  He said the Commissioners wanted everyone to know that they
were remembering Ted and his family in the prayers.  Commissioner McCarty closed his remarks by wishing
everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 23


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio said he wanted to address the Sexually Oriented Businesses that were
discussed in public comment.  He said he personally did not like where they were going because he has a business
in those areas and that he does not want “sex shops” next to his business.  He understood that his business is not
his home, and he understood that those who live in the area are affected differently.  He said that as far as being
afraid of being sued over where “sex shops” can be located, the fact is that if the ordinance was not passed and a
sexually oriented business decided to come to the County, in most cases the “sex shops” have won the suit and
been able to locate anywhere they want.  He thought that if the people wanted to address the problem it would be
more beneficial to get with the State legislatures to see if there is a way to prevent them altogether.  He explained
that the Board of Commissioners does not have the power to prevent sexually oriented businesses from coming to
Fayette County, but that it does have the ability to try to limit them to areas.  He suggested that if the people had a
better way to figure out a limited area, then the Board would be open to those suggestions.  He emphasized that the
County has to do something and not just open for “sex shops” to locate anywhere they want.  Commissioner Ognio
closed his remarks by wishing everyone a Happy Thanksgiving and hoped everyone would have a safe holiday.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo agreed with Commissioner Ognio’s remarks.  He suggested that the
Board’s recent action can be fixed or changed or amended, but that the Board’s action did put protections into place. 
He wished the Burgess family well.  He told the audience that each Commissioner went to the visitation, that Ted
and his wife, Del, are great people.  He said he understood how Ted feels, and wished him well.  Commissioner
Oddo wished everybody a Happy Thanksgiving.  He said he was very thankful that Fayette’s citizens gave him the
opportunity to represent them this year by being a Commissioner.  He understood that everything he did may not
have exactly accorded with what everyone wants, but he suggested that he did not think anyone could find others
who are trying as hard as the Board is trying to do what is right by the County.  He said serving was a great privilege,
that he appreciated the opportunity, and that he looked forward to the rest of his term.  


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown strongly advised everyone to use the internet and look at the October 24, 2013
Board of Commissioners Minutes and recordings to see the discussion that was had concerning sexually oriented
businesses, or “sex shops.”  He corrected a misconception by saying that there are no proposed “sex shops”
currently coming to Fayette County, and that the Board’s action was strictly a preventive action in an effort to head
off the issue.  He reminded the people that there have been many lawsuits concerning this issue in the past
throughout metropolitan Atlanta, and that the jurisdictions have lost almost all of them.  He said the County had to do
something, and that the Board is determined to do something about this issue.  Chairman Brown told everyone that
when he was mayor of Peachtree City this issue came up around 2002 or 2003.  He said the city rushed on the
matter since several jurisdictions had just lost lawsuits, and it did the same exercise that the County just did recently. 
He told everyone that the area that was designated was the closest to his subdivision as it was across the street
from his subdivision in the industrial area.  He said the decision did not go over well at his house or street, but
something had to be done.  He pointed out that to date, not a single “sex shop” has moved into Peachtree City, and
he hoped it was because the city took the right action at the right time.  He encouraged the citizens to give the Board
alternatives that could be considered, and if better alternatives can be found, then there would be five
Commissioners who would go back and change the current ordinance.  He reminded everyone that there would be
no easy choices, that there are no easy alternatives, and that somebody would feel pain no matter what zoning
classification is used.  Secondly, Chairman Brown stated that he accepted the 2013 Democracy Award, and it was
for trying to improve State Ethics.  He said the Board had passed a resolution on the matter and that he had testified
at the state level.  He stated that at the award ceremony that he told everyone that Senator Josh McKoon was the
only person in the entire State Senate willing to do the ethics changes and that Senator McKoon took much abuse
and was maligned for taking that stand.  He said if Senator McKoon had not had the courage to put forth ethics
reform into legislation, under fierce retribution, then there would have been nothing to talk about.  Chairman Brown
said he owed Senator McKoon a great deal of gratitude.  He added that had it not been for the four County







Minutes
November 14, 2013
Page Number 24


Commissioners who sit at the dais with him and who also voted for the resolution that he drafted for consideration,
then he would again have nothing to talk about.  Chairman Brown said he was very proud of the Board that he
serves with, acknowledged that they stood with him on this matter, and that Fayette County was the only local
jurisdiction in the State of Georgia who called for ethics reform for the State Legislature.  Chairman Brown said he
owed a debt of gratitude to the Board of Commissioners, and that the award that he received goes five times over all
the way across the dais.  He said he was grateful to serve with the Board, that their hearts are in the right place, and
they do the right things.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Four Items of Executive Session: Chairman Brown moved to recess into Executive Session for one Real Estate
Item, two items of Threatened Litigation, and to consider the Executive Session Minutes from October 24, 2013. 
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:51 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 10:16 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved to exit Executive
Session and for the Chairman to sign the affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 25",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Approval of the October 24, 2013 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the October
24, 2013 Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The
motion passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the November 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned the November 14, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting at 10:17 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 12th day of December 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk





